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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on the Company’s website at
www.yff.com (the “Company Website”).

Shareholders who have chosen or have been deemed consented to receive the corporate
communications of the Company (the “Corporate Communications”) via the Company Website
and who for any reason have difficulty in receiving or gaining access to the annual report posted on
the Company Website will promptly upon request be sent the annual report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of the means of receipt (either in printed form or
via the Company Website) of Corporate Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to receive the annual report in printed form, and/or to change
their choice of the means of receipt of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the share
registrar of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at 17M Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by sending an email to the share
registrar of the Company at yunfeng.ecom@computershare.com.hk.

AREERENF » EXAREBEHARQTEM www.yff.com ([ RA T ]) ©

CEEIWNAD/RZEBA D A WEA R TN FEM (T ARERDORR - EAEEREREET
ERARARUEHENFERSAEAMNRE  RERHER YAV ABRER XA FERENEDRIA

JiR R T BB B BB SR W B BB AN B 5 AV ER B (BN ER 2 BB AV ENRI AR - SREB AN D R4 A VS 2 ") o
BRRAUEEBHNALANRDBFLELE  EBPARSELARLAE U AEBEFERFRNER183

WEFPMMIME > RUEBHRARQAANRMDBFEZRE(ZEEF #h I A yunfeng.ecom@computershare.
comhK) REWERAFEREDRMANER » R IEXRERAFBANGR o




Corporate Information

REER

CEQ’s Statement

THRARRE

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESENEREBABER

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

Report of the Directors

EEEWE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREBRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZEENRE

Consolidated Income Statement

FElaERk

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mE2ERRERK

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FE BRI R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERRBER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEEERER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR R MY

Five Year Financial Summary

FFUBEHE

EHSMEBERAT
ey

Contents
B &%

Page(s)
BX

23
30
47
65
77
86
87
88
90
91
93

208



Corporate Information
NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Chairman

Mr. Yu Feng (Non-Executive Director)
Executive Directors

Ms. Li Ting (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Lijun
Mr. Qi Daqging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard (Chairman)
Mr. Lin Lijun
Mr. Qi Daqging

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lin Lijun (Chairman)

Mr. Qi Daging

Mr. Huang Xin

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yu Feng (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Lijun

Mr. Qi Daqging

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. Li Ting
Mr. Chan Man Ko

Exg

ES: 3

REBRE (FHITESE)
BITES

FIE Lt (THAEE)
BEERE

FHUTES

SixIELE
BELt

BAFITEESE

MAE KL
ERERE
RKRFRE

BEREEE

RRFRE(EE)
MAELE
ERERE

FMEES

MAELE(LE)
BARELE
BEELE
RRFRE
REZES
REEE(EE)
MAELE
=mRBE KL
RRFRE
RERRX

FEL L
BRI &k

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Man Ko
AUDITOR

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited

China Citic Bank International

China Construction Bank (Asia)

Bank of China (Hong Kong)

Bank of Communications

REGISTERED AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Suites 3201-3204
One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
WEBSITE

www.yff.com

STOCK CODE

376

EHSMEBERAT
ey

Corporate Information
NEER

DNEAME
BRX &L
¥ BB

A=
2 ST

FEAREL T
TR T

HZ 8R4 (IR

HhE AR AT (TN
R EIRT (B8
ZBIRIT
SMRTERER

=8
BREES R
R ES—E
3201 £3204 =

BB EERLE
EBPRABEETHRAT
EHBET
BREKER1835E

&M A
171#81712-1716 &

b
www.yff.com
R EA R

376



CEQ’s Statement
THERHRE

We believe year 2017 was one of the best performing
years in terms of global economy and also a year
of turning point for the Hong Kong financial market.
During the year, the Company continued to improve
its financial technology business and established its
presence in the insurance industry while increasing
its market influence. The business lines generated a
synergistic effect. The asset end created distinctive
product lines. The user end achieved an echelon from
institutional customers and high-net-worth customers
to retail customers. In 2018, the Company will
continue to make breakthroughs in the differentiation
of financial services and strive to achieve rapid growth
in the number of customers and asset size.

RIDING THE WAVE AMIDST THE GLOBAL
ECONOMIC RECOVERY TIDE

In 2017, the expansion of the U.S. economy
accelerated. Europe saw a temporary pause in
political “Black Swan”. Benefiting from a pickup in
the global trade recovery, emerging markets got out
of the recession caused by the bear market for bulk
commodities. The economy of China gained ground
and recovered, with its growth exceeding market
expectations.

The recovery of the economy has brought about an
improvement in corporate profits. In 2017, global
stock markets ushered in a bullish spectacle. This
year, stock markets in developed regions rose by
more than 20%, among them the U.S. stock market
ushered in the eye-catching performance after the
crisis, with the Dow Jones Index rising by 24%.
Among the emerging markets, the Hong Kong stock
market posted remarkable performance, with the Hang
Seng Index rising by more than 37%. The MSCI China
Index covering Chinese concept stocks listed in the
United States soared by 51%.

The opening of the big era for the Hong Kong stock
market cannot be separated from a pickup in the
economy of China, and even more, is inseparable
from the in-depth and frequent interactions between
the Mainland and overseas markets. With the help
of Hong Kong Stock Connect, “North Capital” has
become a force that cannot be ignored in the Hong
Kong stock market. The main board reform plan and
the policy of the full circulation of H shares launched
by the HKEx at the end of the year will bring even
more vitality to the market. The business lines of
the Company are ready for ushering in a new era of
capital access with Hong Kong as a bridge.
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REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT
OF THE COMPANY IN 2017

In 2017, the business lines of the Company continued
to lay a solid foundation. All product APPs were
officially launched, and functions and experience were
continuously improved amidst customers’ feedback.

Youyu Stock achieved the iteration of 10 versions with
a substantial improvement in user experience. The
Hong Kong stock investment simulation system self-
developed by the team covers derivatives and played
an active role in educating investors at the Hong Kong
stock investment simulation contest supported by the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Meanwhile, functions
such as bank securities transfer and IPO shares
subscription were successively launched, making
customer transactions more convenient.

Youyu Wealth was updated for 11 versions and
entered into distribution agreements with a total of
18 global fund managers. More than 300 selected
funds were launched on the platform. Youyu Wealth
broke through the restrictions of lacking customized
functions and financial expertise for existing similar
products in the market. The team established a
database for as many as 10,000 mutual funds
registered in Hong Kong and carried out screening
and rating by adopting the five-dimensional model
and conducting interviews with managers so that
retail investors and professional investors without
global investment experience can receive tailor-made
services.

The ESOP Admin (Employee Stock Ownership Plan
Administration) business line established a solid
customer base in 2017. Tailor-made and automated
services won very high recognition from customers
and increased the working efficiency of the HR and
finance departments of corporate customers.

Breakthroughs have also been made in the offline
products of wealth management. The three private
equity funds of funds correspond to three different
types of alternative credit investment respectively,
and were actively subscribed by institutional investors
and high net worth customers, raising more than
HKD1 billion. Meanwhile, the Company and Chinese
state-owned bank co-issued the first note with bank
loans as the underlying assets, which made up the
market gap. The differentiation of offline products
has reflected the Company’s ability to invest in
international markets and innovate products.
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THEBRRE
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CEQ’s Statement
THERHRE

Corporate finance team provided advisory services to
23 corporate clients in addition to providing financial
advisory services on the Group’s acquisition of the
share capital of MassMutual Asia Limited. We are
committed to providing high quality corporate finance
advisory services to our clients and our corporate
finance team will continue to focus on providing
advisory work in respect of mergers and acquisitions
and fund raising activities as well as providing in-
house support to the Group’s other lines of business.

The asset allocation plan provided by the investment
research team to customers in 2017 demonstrated the
team’s ability to make decisions on global investment.
The timely tracking of market focuses and the in-
depth analysis of industries and individual companies
struck a balance between professionalism and
readability, winning unanimous favourable comments
from both the industry and non-professionals. Its
influence on new media platforms such as WeChat
and Zhihu was constantly expanding.

In order to provide customers with better and more
diversified financial services, the Company, together
with other investors, initiated the acquisition of
MassMutual Asia and issued a shareholders’ circular
in December 2017.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2018

The Company will further strengthen the integration
advantages of internet technology and financial
expertise, and actively cooperate with other financial
institutions to enhance the financial service standard
of the industry. In the meantime, the Company
will continue to seek cross-sectoral cooperation
opportunities and realize the vision of financial
investment services entering the life scene.

The brokerage business line will further strengthen
characteristic services, especially information and
investor education, to help customers make better
investment decisions. For intelligent investment
consulting, continued efforts will be made to increase
new investment products and services, further reduce
the investment barriers and provide institutionalized
professional services to ordinary investors. Offline
products will be continuously enriched and sales
pipelines will be broadened. The ESOP Admin
business line strives to achieve an explosive growth in
the number of customers and enhance its interaction
with other business lines. The Corporate Finance
Department will actively pursue opportunities in the
merger and acquisition sector and help customers
to go global by fully leveraging its understanding of
overseas markets. The Company will also strive to
complete the transaction in relation to MassMutual
Asia as soon as possible so as to realize synergetic
development as soon as possible.
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2017 was the first year of the development of each
new business line of Yunfeng Financial and we made
a solid start. In the new year, we will carry forward
our efforts to continuously promote innovation in
financial technology, create distinctive services and
build a one-stop online financial service platform.
We will also actively seek partners to jointly drive the
intelligence level of the financial services industry. In
2018, as the global monetary policy tightening cycle
approaches, volatility in the financial market will
increase dramatically. We will exercise stringent risk
control and continue steady operation. | would like
to express my gratitude to our shareholders for their
patience and support, and would also like to express
my gratitude to our partners and customers for their
trust.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

MATERIAL EVENT

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 17 August 2017, the Company and the
other Asia investors and MassMutual International
LLC, entered into the Share Purchase Agreement
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to acquire 60% of the issued share capital of
MassMutual Asia Limited (“MassMutual Asia”). The
portion of the consideration payable by the Company
is HK$7,860 million of which HK$5,200 million will be
satisfied by the issue of an aggregate of 800,000,000
shares of the Company at the issue price of HK$6.50
per share representing approximately 24.8% of the
issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the issue of the shares.

On 21 December 2017, the Company issued a circular
related to the above mentioned transaction to its
shareholders. The transaction was approved by the
independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 10 January 2018 and the details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
10 January 2018.

The long term vision of the Group is to leverage its
fintech capabilities to develop a financial services
ecosystem comprising information technology and
online and offline platforms that offer a broad range of
financial services and products along with high quality
expert advice. This transaction is a milestone for the
Group’s integration of existing financial technology
services and traditional insurance business as well as
its growth into a large financial group.

OVERVIEW

The Group’s major sources of revenue includes
subscription fees and management fees for products
launched by the Group, platform fees for distribution
of third-parties products, administration fee for
employees stock ownership plan management
services, brokerage commission income and corporate
advisory fee income, etc. In addition, the Group
generates other operating income and gains from
its own general capital. The Group is still in the
process of building its client base and scale of asset
under management. The Group’s revenue and other
operating income and gains including disposal gain of
available for sales investment were HK$21.1 million
and HK$106.2 million respectively, representing
a decrease of 54.2% and an increase of 203.4%
compared to the prior year respectively. The decrease
of revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
of consultancy and advisory revenue and securities
brokerage commission. However, the operating
income (mainly derived from Group’s own capital fund
management) increased significantly.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW (Continued)

The amortization expense in relation to share awards
granted by the Company in January 2017 is recorded
in year 2017. As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 17 August 2017, the legal and
professional fees incurred in relation to the acquisition
of 60% of the issued share capital of MassMutual Asia
Limited are recorded in 2017. As the fair values of
certain financial assets (measured at fair value through
profit or loss) held and disposed by the Group in 2017
are lower than their values as at 31 December 2016, a
net loss is recognised in 2017 as a result. Taking into
account of the above factors, the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company for the year is
HK$379.0 million compared to HK$316.7 million in
prior year.

BROKERAGE BUSINESS

In 2017, the Group launched new version of “Youyu
Stock” mobile application and upgraded the “Youyu
Stock” website with the primary objective of improving
the transaction process and presenting account
information in a more concise manner. Our new user
interface design for both the mobile application and
the website is able to 1) enhance the stability of
the market price quotation function 2) provide more
comprehensive information on companies and 3)
improve the user experiences. The Group proactively
increases promotion effort of “Youyu Stock”.
During the year, the turnover of brokerage business
amounted to HK$1,539.9 million, representing a
decrease of 36.3% as compared with prior year.

CORPORATE FINANCE CONSULTANCY
SERVICE

The Group’s corporate finance business provides
financial consultancy service primarily to Hong Kong
listed companies. In 2017, the Group has completed
33 financial consultancy projects. During the year, this
business segment recorded an income derived from
external customer of HK$11.1 million, representing a
decrease of 73.8% as compared with the prior year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP PLAN
ADMINISTRATION

In 2017, the Group launched the “Youyu ekeeper”
website to provide employee stock ownership plan
administration service and complete a system
connection with our strategic partner. The long-term
business plan is to develop the sustainable business
model and create synergistic impact for other
business lines. The external employees under the
employee stock ownership plan administration service
are able to open accounts and inject their assets
with Youyu Stock and Youyu Wealth for investment
purpose. Overall, the Group considers Youyu
ekeeper to be able to provide positive impact to
trading volume and amount of asset under securities
brokerage business and, as well as enhance customer
loyalty to other business line of the Group.

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

The Group successfully launched the “Youyu Wealth”
online mobile application in 2017. The application has
received positive feedback and support from fund
managers in the market as well as the social media.
For the long-term development strategy, the “Youyu
Wealth” mobile application will continue to enhance
the fund product trading process and user experience
by providing different investment performance data
and up-to-date investment portfolio information.

On the other hand, our wealth management
business has made substantive progress offline in
fund management, investing and financing solution
services. In 2017, the Group has offered the following
three offline fund products for subscriptions:

Investment focus

REEH

Name of offline fund products

HEES AR

Majik Access USD Fund 1 LP

ETIRKREEE

RZZB—LF  XEBERDELBRIER 4
BEMRAERBEBHETREE  SEHAFRK
BAZFRESETEHRRY  -RBLEFTHZ
BRAUEFHNEFENEBES FFETTH
NMEAANBRARE IR BAER KRS A&
ANEEFERE -REMS ARERR  BA
FREHESECEBNRZENEETHE
%E%%%  WRAFFEHAEEEMERR

MEERE

REZB—tF  RXEERNELERER IR
EBEEFIK(APP) - [BRAER |IBGIHER
SEBEURHIEBNER KBNS - HR
RigesR [ARERJEERBREATRE
MREXEBENEHNREASES - BR
ESERRSRENAFER -

S—FHH BMNUEEEXBERTEESE
BAREBEBALDERELIEDE TEEAM
ER - E_T—tHF  EMB=ZEAKTEESE
mAHRBUT

Third-party managed private credit funds — directly or indirectly invest

in credit and real estate-related debt market sectors

FRBEITESIN
Majik Access USD Fund 2 LP
BRBEXTES 2R

Majik Access USD Fund 3 LP

FEZHEEAEERES - ERIBERENGEAREHERBEESTS
Third-party managed distressed assets funds — specialising in different
distressed credit strategies

FZREEFREEES — RETEANTREERE

Third-party managed collateralised loan obligations — investing in

senior secured first lien bank loans, second lien loans, unsecured loans,

and other debt obligations

F=LERFEEHNER - REBLERELERRTENR  $-HE

BRIFEXZTES IR

BEXN - BERERNEMER
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Management Discussion and Analysis

WEALTH MANAGEMENT (Continued)

For the above fund products, we continued to attract
new professional investors. For further growth in
offline wealth management operation, we have
successfully locked in a handful of rare investment
targets including credit linked note and distressed
fund investment opportunities being managed by the
top tier managers in the field. As at 31 December
2017, the total investment capital commitment of the
three offline products amounted to US$151.3 million.

GENERAL CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group adopted the following capital usage and
management strategies:

(1) To achieve positive synergies between the
Company’s capital management and growth of
its asset management business, and to facilitate
external fundraising for such products, the
Company intends to provide seed capital, as a
direct investor or co-investor in fund products
and high-quality early-stage private equity
products developed by the Company;

(2) Used as standby capital to support the securities
brokerage business and the securities financing
business when needed;

(3) Towards acquisition or development of projects
related to the Company’s personal wealth
management business or financial technologies
development or into opportunities that provide
synergies with other businesses of the Company;
and

(4) For better effectiveness and returns in respect
of the Company’s capital management, and to
improve cash flow management, the Company
shall adopt a treasury management model that
may involve (but shall not be limited to) holding
fixed income instruments, high grade equity
instruments and other financial investments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

GENERAL CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

For the year 2017, the use of Group’s general capital
is as follows:

HEESEEH)
—T—tF AEEAEASERELNT

HK$ million BE&EET
At 31 At 31
December December
2017 2016 Change
ZE—tF ZE-RE
+-A=+t—H +=A=t+—H 21
Fixed bank deposits and cash RITERFEARES
(note 1) (M 1) 3,544.7 4,164.7 -14.9%
Mutual fund investment (note 2) HERERE (M72) 326.7 - -
Fixed income type of investment EEBWANERE
(note 3) (B1z3) 77.3 75.4 2.5%

Equity and option BRERENERTE 5.9 210.3 -97.2%

Majik Access USD Fund 1 LP BRBEETES1HERE 11.0 - -

Majik Access USD Fund 2 LP BABEITES2ERE (3.0) - -

Majik Access USD Fund 3 LP EAREITESIERE 199.0 - -

4,161.6 4,450.4 -6.5%

Note 1:  The amount includes US$25 million committed Bt : Hbh G FEc8EAMEITES
for investing in Majik Access USD Fund 1 LP and 2500 BENRAEXLSERBFES
US$19.5 million committed for investing in Majik HERBEEZTESL251,950BX TR
Access USD Fund 2 LP. ARHELE -

Note 2:  This includes investments in five mutual fund a2 : HRERBARBES  AFEEAEELEE
investments managed by different fund management BERRELHNEEEEQARERE - Lt
companies with abundant international investment HEeWBREACEREERERFRR
experiences. The investment portfolio of the mutual Z,EREEREFSHLEERS - £E
funds mainly comprised of fixed income securities ESARBMHEAEELRKRRS -
and equity, with a higher proportion being fixed-
income securities. The mutual funds are liquid assets
and can be converted into cash upon request.

Note 3:  This includes perpetual capital. BEE3 - BIEKELEERES o
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS REMKERE

REVIEW
FEBMFRAEHMBRENOT
BE+T-A=T+T-HLFENGSBERIN

The financial highlights of the Group were as follows:

Consolidated profit and loss analysis for the year
ended 31 December

HKS$ million BEEET
2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —E-REF 21t
Revenue 2 21.1 46.1 -54.2%
Other operating income H L& WA R W
and gains 91.2 35.0 160.6%
Disposal gains of available-for- HEMHHEESHEE
sales financial assets g 15.0 — -

Net loss on financial assets and RAFETAIERZ S

financial liabilities at fair value MEERESREEEE

through profit or loss FEE (89.2) (75.7) 17.8%
Staff costs (excluding staff share ETHAN(TEE IR E

award amortisation expense) Bt EE ) (190.4) (198.0) -3.8%
Staff share award amortisation & T B0 52 E5T 208 64

expense (56.7) (2.1) 26 timesfZ
Depreciation and amortisation ITEREE (18.5) (8.0) 131.3%
Finance cost BE AR (9.5) (0.1) 94 timesfZ
Other operating expenses Hihee st

(including net provision for (EFREBEZRE)

impairment loss) (141.2) (122.1) 15.6%
Loss before taxation MREBATE B (378.2) (324.9) 16.4%
Income tax st (1.1) 8.3 —
Loss for the year REEEER (379.3) (316.6) 19.8%
Loss for the year AR FEESE :

attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the AARERFE A

Company (379.0) (316.7) 19.7%
Non-controlling interests R ERS (0.3) 0.1 -

(379.3) (316.6) 19.8%

EHSMEBERAT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FITYN
EEETWmE N
ANALYSIS ON LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEBEIN
2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —ZT-RF 1t
Loss for the year REEEE (379.3) (316.6) 19.8%
Adjust for the following profit FAEUTIERRER
or loss and expenses impact: e
Less: Net loss on financial B BRAFEFABEZ
assets and financial liabilities cREEREMAEE
at fair value through profit BFE
or loss 89.2 75.7 17.8%
Less: Staff share award B BIRDIEEGE
amortisation expense 1 5K 56.7 2.1 26 times
Less: Legal and professional B BB BN AR
fee for acquisition of REXERE
MassMutual Asia 47.3 — -
(186.1) (238.8) -22.1%
Revenue W 2

TE-LFZWAR210E8EB T  REFE
W 54.2% o WHmBALINT -

For the year 2017, revenue amounted to HK$21.1
million, representing a 54.2% decrease compared to
that of the prior year as follows:

HK$ million B EET
2017 2016 Change
—E—+F —E-RE 1k
Brokerage commission gLme 2.0 3.8 -47.4%
Consultancy and advisory fees BRI R B E 11.1 42.3 -73.8%
Subscription, management g - EERENE
and rebate fees income ON 3.8 — —
Interest income from loan FEWERFE WA
receivable 3.7 — —
Other service revenue HAbRB WA 0.5 — —
21.1 46.1 -54.2%
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ANALYSIS ON LOSS FOR THE YEAR
(Continued)

Other operating income and gains
For the year 2017, other operating income and gains

amounted to HK$91.2 million, representing a 160.6%
increase compared to that of the prior year as follows:

REEBRD N @)

H &g W AR K=

CEtEFHMEREWRARKEE9,1208
BT BMEFEMN160.6% @ WWHBMOT ¢

HKS$ million BEET
2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —E—RF &1t
Handling and settlement fees FEENEEER 2.3 0.5 3.6 timesfZ
Bank and other interest income  $R{TR HMtFIE UL A 72.5 32.9 120.4%
Dividend and distribution AHEEEREEN
income from available-for- BRERDBEUA
sale financial assets 14.3 — —
Other income Hug A 2.1 1.6 31.3%
91.2 35.0 160.6%

Net loss on financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

For the year 2017, the net loss on financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

BAVERABEZERMEERSRER TR

TE-tRAFEFAERZCEREEEES
8,920E BT MEAFILMN17.8% - EEMM

amounted to HK$89.2 million, representing 17.8% T
increase compared to that of prior year as follows:
HKS$ million BEEET
2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —E-—REF 24t
Net unrealised loss on financial RAFEFAEBH 2
assets at fair value through EREERBEER
profit or loss R (16.8) (32.1) -47.7%
Net realised loss on financial BAFEFTABRZZ
assets at fair value through SREECDEBEER
profit or loss R (64.7) (43.6) 48.4%
Fair value change of financial BRAFETTABRZ
liabilities at fair value through smadEzEE
profit or loss RER (7.7) - -
Total net loss on financial assets RA TV EF ABHZ
and financial liabilities at fair ﬁrﬂﬁ?&%rﬂﬁﬁ
value through profit or loss EEFERA (89.2) (75.7) 17.8%

EHSMEBERAT
ey
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EEENWR DM

ANALYSIS ON LOSS FOR THE YEAR
(Continued)

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
investments held by the Group are mainly listed equity
instruments and derivative financial instruments.
When comparing the historical acquisition cost to
the fair value of the financial assets, the net realised
gain on financial asset would have been HK$73.1
million by the Group. However, all the financial assets
were recorded and measured at fair value through
profit or loss. For the year, the fair values of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss held as at
31 December 2017 or disposed by the Group during
the year were lower than their fair values as at 31
December 2016.

STAFF COSTS AND STAFF SHARE AWARD
AMORTISATION EXPENSE

For the year 2017, the staff costs amounted to
HK$190.4 million and the amortisation of share based
payment expense amounted to HK$56.7 million
respectively. The staff cost decreased by 3.8%
compared to last year.

Other operating expenses
For the year 2017, other operating expenses

amounted to HK$141.2 million, representing a 15.6%
increase compared to that of the prior year as follows:

REEBRD N @)

AEEEECEREERE(RAFEAEARE
BINAFEFTELA I THEERTTESHTIEA
BEE RBANBESIFRAHEANFTEEZSR
PORTE  REACALREESRKIEER
W 17,3108t - BIRBRITSMER
g AMBREASHRESEBEEIEIENR2017
F12H831BEMAFERFHIHERFEHE
2016 F 12 B31 HM A FEELETE -

BETRARE TR 4% E S

RZBE—+tF  BEIRADHB19EBT
FBTEIRMERT2EENE R #H
B56708 c B EFMHEE ETIRABREKET
3.8% o°

HihiseEmx

R-Z—+F HttgEEIHRB1.41EE
T BREFEM15.6% » THBMMT -

HKS$ million BEET
2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —E-REF 1t
Information, data and B  BERBEMEX
communication expenses 33.0 30.5 8.2%
Legal and professional fee EERBEER
expenses 66.2 20.6 221.4%
Operating lease and related  ¥J¥ 2 &&HELH
charges in respect of RiEBEER
properties 26.0 19.9 30.7%
Business promotion and (¥BERERTSEBER
marketing expenses 5.9 18.2 -67.6%
Net exchange (gain) loss TRIMNE (W) B (16.2) 3.6 —
Net provision for impairment SER{EEE 2 &E 2.1 8.2 -74.4%
Others HtER 24.2 21.1 14.7%
141.2 122.1 15.6%

Legal and professional fee expenses increase mainly
due to as the legal and professional fees incurred in
relation to the acquisition of 60% of the issued share
capital of MassMutual Asia Limited are recorded in
2017.

EERNSEXERENNEREZRHNKESR
& ER BN AIRDE60%C BITRAFT
E%Ziﬁfi&%%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%zi—tiifﬁ
AR e
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STAFF COSTS AND STAFF SHARE AWARD
AMORTISATION EXPENSE (Continued)

EEENWR DN

BEIMARETROEESME @)

Changes in owner’s equity REREREE
HK$ million HEETT
2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RE
Balance at 1 January —B—Bz&#®E 4,444.1 4,761.3
Share based payment transaction LR ESEEEERNIRS 56.4 2.1
Loss for the year REEEE (379.3) (316.5)
Other comprehensive income and others ~ Hfh 18.1 (2.8)
Balance at 31 December 4,139.3 4,444 1
Attributable to: FE{LRERS -
— equity shareholders of the Company — RPABERFEAEMN 4,139.3 4,443.0
— non-controlling interests — FFERER - 1.1
Total equity ESMAE 4,139.3 4,444.1

The Group’s total shareholders’ equity amounted to
approximately HK$4,139.3 million as at 31 December
2017 as compared to the total shareholders’ equity of
HK$4,444.1 million reported at the end of last year.
The decrease is mainly due to the operating loss and
the decrease in fair value of financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.

PROSPECTS

The Company will further strengthen the integration
advantages of internet technology and financial
expertise, and actively cooperate with other financial
institutions to enhance the financial service standard
of the industry. In the meantime, the Company
will continue to seek cross-sectoral cooperation
opportunities and realize the vision of financial
investment services entering the life scene.

EHeRMEBERAT
T LEER

RZZE—tHF+ZA=+—8B  A&EZRR
BafBABMn 488 MEFRRE
BRREDBFEADR44.4BBT - RREZR
LPEIERHEEFREREQNVESAREZE
BMEEREMH

RE
DA — SR AR SR E R
MREEY BEEEHAMSHEESE BA

TENESRBRHEKE - S AASRESK
BITENAFERE  BRSBRERBEAL
SRR
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EEENWEDN

PROSPECTS (Continued)

The brokerage business line will further strengthen
characteristic services, especially information and
investor education, to help customers make better
investment decisions. For intelligent investment
consulting, continued efforts will be made to increase
new investment products and services, further reduce
the investment barriers and provide institutionalized
professional services to ordinary investors. Offline
products will be continuously enriched and sales
pipelines will be broadened. The ESOP Admin
business line strives to achieve an explosive growth in
the number of customers and enhance its interaction
with other business lines. The Corporate Finance
Department will actively pursue opportunities in the
merger and acquisition sector and help customers
to go global by fully leveraging its understanding of
overseas markets. The Company will also strive to
complete the transaction in relation to MassMutual
Asia as soon as possible so as to realize synergetic
development as soon as possible.

2017 was the first year of the development of each
new business line of Yunfeng Financial and we made
a solid start. In the new year, we will carry forward
our efforts to continuously promote innovation in
financial technology, create distinctive services and
build a one-stop online financial service platform.
We will also actively seek partners to jointly drive the
intelligence level of the financial services industry. In
2018, as the global monetary policy tightening cycle
approaches, volatility in the financial market will
increase dramatically. We will exercise stringent risk
control and continue steady operation. | would like
to express my gratitude to our shareholders for their
patience and support, and would also like to express
my gratitude to our partners and customers for their
trust.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had fixed bank
deposits with original maturity over 3 months and
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$3,762.7
million (31 December 2016: HK$4,164.7 million). The
Group generally financed its daily operations with
internal resources. As at 31 December 2017 and
during the year of 2017, the Group has no bank or
other external borrowings.

R (#)

REEBRSE-TMRIFELRE  LHR
BMMREERBELE  HATFEHFHET
REARK  EERESHEENHNRERE
MR - E—SREREFE  REBRRESE
RUEEBLCNEXERYE  BESERTER -
THBEHEEE  EISRBNIFEREFY
AREESUIER - WINBEEMERRNEE
TERMEPSERMGHGBAIRS  ToH
BERIITIENERE  BPRFELS QT
HENFRRTRBERBEMOWETE
BREERBRERE

01I7TFRERTRERTEBENER T
F ﬁﬁm THENRRE  HN-—FRMS
BAERR - HEEDESRMBRAR - EREE
RS - TE—URXELERBHE LA - RfE
SEBSHREEREY  HEEDSHBRBEES
Bk 0 2018 5F - BE 2 S = R R 48
BEXE  SRHENKBEAERES @ M
B ERAR RIS - TE%EWE =)
BURROM MR tRHSERHNE
FHEE-

RBETRUHKER

R=ZB—LE+T_A=1—H ' ARE2H
HRZR=ZBEANRTERNRAEREAESE
BB B & #43,762,700,0008 T (=2 — X
% 1 4,164,700,000/8 7T )  ANEE — KUK
iﬁ‘éiﬁvﬁ%,ﬁ\aﬁ*éa_a% R-F—+F
T-A=+—-HRRBEHA  FAEERAR
THAEMEIMEE -
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details of movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

The Group is exposed to market price changes
from equity investments and derivative instruments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss held by the Group. Gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with
in the consolidated income statement. On the other
hand, the Group has invested in fund investments
classified as available for sale financial assets with
the fair value change going through reserve. The
investment performance is monitored regularly as set
out in note 33(e) to the financial statements, together
with an assessment of its relevance to the Group’s
strategic plans.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has assets and liabilities denominated in
currencies other than its functional currency and that
are subject to fluctuation in foreign exchange amounts
in the different currencies. The Group is exposed to
currency risk arising from various currency exposures
mainly to the extent of its bank balances in US dollar
(“USD”) and Renminbi as set out in note 33(d) to
the financial statements. Management of the Group
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will
hedge significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

During the year 2017, the Group did not engage in
the use of other financial instruments for hedging
purposes, and there were no hedging instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Except for those set out in note 15(c), the Group did
not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31
December 2017.

EHSMEBERAT
ey

EEENWR DN

EXREB

REERRARAESBFBEN P B HRRMEE
29 °

IREER AR
AEEHHRERERITETARERNURYF

NVPEEZFHFTEEHEEZHT AEHPERTA
FEBBEBRR - EREGWBERPIIT - 5—F
H AEEERENESHSREEATHY
ERE HQVEESHRNHERR o WM
33(e) i iE HEEXRBRERHAEAKZEE
REARREMERRT (L - X EIEHIER o

NG L B

AEEEEUHNEEBUINEBTENE
ENEGE USHEERSHNZE - AEFH
HRSESYARELENEERAR T ELMH
REEET(ExT)MARENEITES W
B HRARMESSA IR e AEBEEBEZ
SNEE R B 3 72 T BB P E K INE LR ©

BE-Z—tH5+-A=+t—HLEE £&
BEYEERTAEMIAEFEETAR  R=F
—tF+ A=+t —HTEEFNRFEEHHPT
E o

MEBARARBMELCACEANBREE
BREFIFHN B WMERMEE15(c) 5 AEER

BEZZ—tHF+ A=+t -HLFEILEML
AMBLRRAIRBENR 2ERRBREE -



20

Management Discussion and Analysis
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CHARGES ON ASSETS

At the year ended December 2017, the Group did not
have any charges on assets, other than a security
deposit of HK$30 million (2016: HK$45.6 million)
for banking facilities and a HK$78.1million bank
deposit (2016: Nil) were deposited as collateral for
performance linked note, a financial product, issued
by the Group.

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segments are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017.

STAFFING AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group employed 240
(2016: 229) full time employees, 96 (2016: 82) of
which were located in Hong Kong, 2 (2016: 2) in the
United States and 142 (2016: 145) in the People’s
Republic of China. The remuneration of employees
includes salary and discretionary bonus. The Group
also adopted share option and share award schemes
to provide an incentive to the employees.

The remuneration policy and package, including
the share option and share awards, of the Group’s
employees are maintained at market level and
reviewed annually by the management.

EEERH

R-ZE—+tE+-A=+—0 BHRETHE
HERMZREFLI000BBT(ZE—N:
456088 7T)B TR 7,810 88 TRITERH
ERAREERTEEHNZHIKFRIN
AEEWFEEMEEKWT o

iR
AEFEEN Y RKRMEEST -

7 EIEE

DEME B BEN M B RRMEE 12 -

HAREE

RZZB—tH+ZA=+t—08 A&ELEZ
MEAHRER -

ETREHM

R-ZB—+tF+=ZB=+—0 ' A&EEHEH
240(ZZF— XN :229) B2 HEE EHO6
(ZE—R82)BNUREB 2(ZF—~:
) BNNEBER 142 (ZF — 7 145) B
FEARENE EEFNEEHFSRBBE
A o REBNRMWBRERKMDEBTE > @
EERMIER -

AEBREZHFMEREGEB(BREBRER
Hﬂﬁ:ﬁlﬁb)%&%%ﬁ%7}<$ BB FREERE
EATRE o
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES

The proceeds from subscription shares have been
utilised subsequent to the subscription as set
out under the section “Use of Proceeds” of the
Company’s circular dated 18 August 2015 (the
“Circular”) and subsequent adjustment in use of
proceeds as set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 18 October 2016. The below table
sets out the proposed application of net proceeds
after adjustments and usage up to 31 December 2017:

EEENWR DN

RORBRERERR

REARBDR-_ZS—HEFNA+N\BBRIF
SHREARIZHERBRERARALANBH
A-E-RE+ATNBRAERE [ AEMR
BREAZIER - TREHEEZUT BHLE
WHRRRMERIRFRARERABRRERBER

Actual usage

Unutilised from Unutilised
Use of Proceeds 1 January Proceeds
Proceeds up to 2017 to up to
after 31 December 31 December 31 December
adjustments 2016 2017 2017
BH-Z—t#%
—-A—HE ZEZE-+F
BEZE-RF —E-+t% +ZA=t-H
HEERS t-A=+t—-A +=A=+-8H 1 R A
REAR EERERATE EERAER RE
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEET BEET BEET BEET
Setting up new branches FAF DT REABHE
and IT infrastructure BERER 333.2 312.3 101.6 210.7
Recruitment of professionals BEEEZ A+
(note 1) (Fizt1) 59.9 411 36.3 4.8
Establishment of a private  ~ RUMABEEETLA
wealth management (Hizt2)
platform (note 2) 179.0 174.3 38.0 136.3
Development of a financial ~ £MREELRZZER
services ecosystem (HEt3)
(note 3) 135.0 120.8 12.0 108.8
General capital management BEELEE (ffiF4)
(note 4) 2,970.9 2,868.9 727.4 2,141.5
Total: Fa 3,678.0 3,517.4 915.3 2,602.1

EHeRMEBERAT
T LEER
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM
SUBSCRIPTION SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

1.

mainly utilised on the recruitment and employment
of internet products and technology development
professionals to assist on the expansion of retail brokerage
businesses.

mainly utilised on recruitment and employment
of professionals specialising in asset and wealth
management.

mainly utilised on marketing and setting up of online sales
platform.

mainly utilised on seek capital provided for financial
product launched by the Group, capital to support
securities brokerage and financing business, investment
holding for capital management purpose.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of event after the reporting period are set out
in note 40 to the financial statements.

ROZBRERERRA)

HraE -

1. EEARNERREAEREES  HEHRNOR
AR UEETEELEHERE -

2. FEARNARREARAEERMEEESEXA
BEEATL

3. IEARTHERRALHETARR -

4. EIEARAKERBNEBERMNE  TERS
BENBERY  REZRAEFCEANWEA
s o

BEMEROEMH

BEMENEMHESFBHNMBRERME

40 o
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

CHAIRMAN

Mr. Yu Feng, aged 54, was appointed as the
Chairman and a non-executive Director of the
Company and the chairman of Nomination Committee
of the Company in November 2015. Mr. Yu is the
founder and chairman of Yunfeng Capital, a private
equity firm founded by Mr. Yu together with other
entrepreneurs in 2010. Mr. Yu served as an executive
director of Media Asia Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 08075), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) from June 2011
to September 2015. Mr. Yu served as a non-executive
director of Alibaba Health Information Technology
Limited (stock code: 00241), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange from April 2014 to
September 2015, a director of Huayi Brothers Media
Corporation (stock code: 300027), a company listed
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, from August 2014 to June 2015 and
a director of Shanghai Guangdian Electric Group Co.,
Ltd (stock code: 601616), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, from December 2010 to
April 2014. Mr. Yu served as a co-chairman of Focus
Media Holding Limited from February 2006 to May
2008 and as chairman and chief executive officer of
Target Media Holdings Limited prior to its acquisition
by Focus Media Holding Limited.

Mr. Yu is a director of Yunfeng Financial Holdings
Limited (“YFHL”), Key Imagination Limited (“Key
Imagination”) and Jade Passion Limited (“Jade
Passion), YFHL, Key Imagination and Jade Passion
are substantial shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Yu obtained an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School, the PRC in March 2001
and a master of arts degree in philosophy from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1991.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Li Ting, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company in November 2015. Ms. Li is
currently the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Ms. Li has over 20 years of experience in the financial
industry, including fixed income and derivatives
analytics, risk management, portfolio management,
sales and market developments, and strategic
planning and execution, in the U.S.A., the PRC and
Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li was a
senior managing director and head of Asia ex-Japan
of State Street Global Advisors.

Ms. Li holds a bachelor’s degree in finance from
Nankai University, the PRC, and a master’s degree in
finance from Boston College, the U.S.A..

EHSMEBERAT
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EENSREEAEBRERE

ES)

E#%E 54m WN-ZE—HF+—-—BEZE
FEARNABDEEREHITES  URAQAFIR
PREESTF BEXEBERESAPARE
B ZAEBEESHELEEHEtCERIN =S
—BERY - BEAEN=ZFBE——FE~AEZ
E-RAFENAEFECEEEERARAT(R
fB1R55 - 08075) 2 HITESE » ZRAANE R
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Imagination } Jade Passion 5 QG ZEE
JRER ©
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Huang Xin, aged 42, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Huang is a partner and a member
of the investment committee of Yunfeng Capital. Mr.
Huang served as vice president of Shanghai Kaituo
Capital Limited from 2006 to 2010, where he was in
charge of various investments. Mr. Huang was vice
president of finance at Target Media Holdings Limited
from 2005 to 2006, where Mr. Huang managed its
daily financial operations and led its equity financing
and merger and integration with Focus Media Holding
Limited. Mr. Huang worked at General Electric
Company from 1997 to 2005.

Mr. Huang is a director of Jade Passion, the
substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Huang obtained a master of business
administration degree from China Europe International
Business School, the PRC in October 2011 and
a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Fudan
University, the PRC in July 1997.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, aged 66, joined the
Board in August 2011 as an executive Director and
has been re-designated from an executive Director
to a non-executive Director of the Company in April
2016. He was the Chairman of the Company, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company until
he resigned from these positions in November 2015.

Mr. Ko beneficially holds 100% interest in Gainhigh
Holdings Limited (“Gainhigh”). He is also a director of
Gainhigh and Insula Holdings Limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company. Mr. Ko has been re-
designated from an executive director to a non-
executive director of KuangChi Science Limited (stock
code: 00439) on 16 May 2017. Currently, Mr. Ko is
the deputy chairman and an executive director of
Frontier Services Group Limited (stock code: 00500)
and an independent non-executive director of Meitu,
Inc. (stock code: 01357). Mr. Ko had also been the
chairman and an executive director of BOE Varitronix
Limited (Stock Code: 00710) until April 2016, and the
vice chairman and an executive director of Concord
New Energy Group Limited (Stock Code: 00182) until
June 2015, the shares of which are all listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ko has extensive experience in corporate finance,
corporate restructuring, and mergers and acquisitions,
and also has extensive experience in international
trade, investment, media and technology businesses.

HITES (&)

BEERE 2B RZZE—HE+-BEZ
FAEERQNTHTES  URAATDFHNEES
RE - ELEAETRESEBAREREZE
ERE - ELER-EEREEZE-ZTFIE
FLEMAAREERQAAEEE  aFEZER
EEE EAX4ER-EERFEEZTEREFH
FRREEERERQARDNERES  AFH
BEKEFEEYTEEREREREDY R
FEEZERERATDNHABEES EEAESHE
— ANt EE-EZEREFBEASR AR

HEE A Jade PassionZ2EE » ZATAKR
NAZEERRE -

BERER-Z——FTAEPETHERIH
ERREIMEEELIEMN YR -ANEF
tABEHTEBERBNESHBELEN -

FHTES

ERIELEE 665 R-ZFE——F/NAAMA
EZE BARAPTESR  YR-FT—XF
MR BESTHIAFITES - REEX
DNAER  ARFAREEZESIFERFMES
iﬁié HBEZE-RF+ - ARHMELAEBA
Bk o

& % 4 M Gainhigh Holdings Limited
([Gainhighl) B&= 5B 100% #E & KK 5B
Gainhigh & Insula Holdings Limited Z &% -
ZEQNTAARLTAZEERR - BAER=-E
—tFHEATAAREBBEFRQF (KRG
3 00439 HITEEFEAIEHITES -
SEERAEERBEBERLATRMO R
9% : 00500) 2BIEERHITES  REEBLQ
AR - 01357) 2 BUFHTEE - 5
FENBERRFBEERIBA (RO
00710) ZERHRHATEETEZE T —RFWQ
ARl URHEHEREBERL (R
B 00182) 2RI EERHITEETE_Z
J—Zﬁiﬁﬁ Bl ZEQATZRHDHEIRER AT
|T_| o

BEEREERE  CXEARGFBLIEES
LELR  TRERES - RE - KRR
EXB LI EELELR -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Ms. Hai, Olivia Ou, aged 38, was appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company in November
2015. Ms. Hai is a managing director of Yunfeng
Capital and specialises in investments related to the
financial services industry. Prior to joining Yunfeng
Capital, Ms. Hai was an actuarial partner at Deloitte
China from 2012, and was engaged in the provision
of consulting services to overseas and domestic
insurance companies. Ms. Hai has also worked at
HSBC Insurance (Asia) Limited in Hong Kong from
2010 to 2012 and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in the
United Kingdom from 2002 to 2010.

Ms. Hai is a qualified fellow member of the Institute
and Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom and
is a board representative of both the Life Board and
the Education Board of the Institute and Faculty of
Actuaries in the United Kingdom. She is also a fellow
member of the China Association of Actuaries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Lijun, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company
and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company in November 2015.
Mr. Lin was the founder of China Universal Asset
Management Co., Ltd., an award-winning and
diverse asset management company founded by
Mr. Lin in April 2004 and at which he had served as
chief executive officer until April 2015. Mr. Lin has
extensive experience in investment management as
well as risk management. Mr. Lin is currently founder
and partner of Loyal Valley Capital, a leading PE fund
in China.

Mr. Lin was appointed as a non-executive director
of Wenzhou Kangning Hospital Co., Ltd (Stock code:
02120) on 14 June 2017, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. Lin is an independent
non-executive director of TANSH Global Food Group
Co., Ltd (Stock code: 03666), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree and a master’s
degree in economics from Fudan University, the
PRC, in 1994 and 1997 respectively, and a master
of business administration degree from Harvard
University, the U.S.A. in 20083.
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EENSREEAEBRERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Qi Daging, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company,
and a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company in February 2016. Mr. Qi is currently a
professor of Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He previously served as director and
associate dean of the executive master of business
administration department. Mr. Qi’s research interests
primarily focus on financial accounting, financial
reporting and their impact on corporate business
strategy. Mr. Qi has published many articles in
accounting and finance journals. Mr. Qi worked
at The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the
Feature Syndicate of the Department of Home News
for Overseas, Xinhua News Agency prior to joining
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in 2002.

Mr. Qi was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of RoadShow Holdings Limited
(stock code: 00888) on 21 November 2017, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange. Currently Mr. Qi serves
as independent director of Sohu.com Inc. (NASDAQ:
SOHU), iKang Healthcare Group, Inc. (NASDAQ:
KANG) and Momo Inc. (NASDAQ: MOMO), all of which
are listed on NASDAQ; and independent non-executive
director of SinoMedia Holding Limited (stock code:
00623) and Jutal Offshore Oil Services Limited (stock
code: 03303), all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Qi served as an independent non-
executive director of Honghua Group Limited (stock
code: 00196) from 18 January 2008 to 1 January
2018, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
an independent non-executive director of Dalian
Wanda Commercial Properties Co., Ltd. (stock code:
03699) from 29 January 2016 to 20 September 2016,
a company delisted from the Stock Exchange on 20
September 2016. Mr. Qi had also been an independent
director of Focus Media Holding Limited (NASDAQ:
FMCN) and AutoNavi Holdings Ltd. (NASDAQ: AMAP),
all of which were listed on NASDAQ, an independent
director of Bona Film Group Limited which was listed
on NASDAQ and ceased to be a public company in
April 2016, and an independent director of China
Vanke Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000002; and listed on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02202).

Mr. Qi graduated with a doctoral degree in accounting
from The Eli Broad Graduate School of Management
of Michigan State University in the U.S.A. in 1996. He
also obtained a master’s degree in management from
University of Hawaii in the U.S.A in 1992 and dual
bachelor’s degrees (in biophysics and international
news) from Fudan University in 1985 and 1987
respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard, aged 69, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company in August 2011.

Mr. Chu was the vice president, Asia and chief
representative, China of Teck Resources Limited.
Mr. Chu was responsible for the development of an
Asian strategy for the company, monitoring China’s
economic performance and promoting business
development opportunities in China. Mr. Chu held
various positions including corporate controller for
Teck Resources Limited from 1978 to 2007 and was
the vice president, Asia and chief representative,
China from 2007 to April 2011.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and was a member of
the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Man Ko, aged 43, joined the Group in
November 2015, is the Chief Financial Officer,
Company Secretary and a Senior Managing Director of
the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Chan worked
for China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 00966) for over 11 years and
had served several positions including deputy general
manager of finance department, chief financial officer
and company secretary. Prior to this, he worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for 7 years.

Mr. Chan is an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
associate member and practicing member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. He Shiqiang, aged 48, joined the Group in
September 2015, as Head of I[.T. and Operations.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. He was the head
of operations of Shanghai-based Pacific Asset
Management Co. 2013 to 2015. Before that, Mr. He
worked, from 2009 to 2013, for Shanghai-based BNY
Mellon Western Fund Management Co. as CTO, CRO
and COO and served on the company supervisory
board. Prior to moving to Shanghai, Mr. He worked in
various technology and consulting roles in the U.S.,
including software architect for Maple Securities and
senior consultant in PA Consulting Group. Mr. He
received a B.S. degree from Peking University and
a master degree from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology.
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EENSREEAEBRERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. John Maguire, aged 54, joined the Group
in September 2011. Mr. Maguire is the Head of
Corporate Finance and Senior Managing Director of
the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Maguire
was the managing director and a co-founder of a
boutique corporate finance firm from 2000 to 2011.
Before that, Mr. Maguire was, from 1995 to 2000,
an executive director in the corporate finance arm
of an international broking and corporate finance
group, responsible for the Group’s corporate finance
activities in Hong Kong and South East Asia. From
1991 to 1995, Mr. Maguire worked as a solicitor
in Hong Kong. Prior to relocating to Hong Kong in
1991, Mr. Maguire worked as a solicitor in the City of
London.

Mr. Maguire is a member of the Listing Committee of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Maguire is a deputy chairman
of the Takeovers and Mergers Panel and a member
of the Takeovers Appeal Committee of the Securities
and Futures Commission. Mr. Maguire is the chairman
of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
and a senior fellow of the Institute. Mr. Maguire is a
member of the HKTDC Financial Services Advisory
Committee and is a member of the Asian Financial
Forum Steering Committee.

Mr. Maguire is a solicitor admitted in England and
Wales (non-practicing) and in Hong Kong. Mr. Maguire
is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong’s
Company Law Committee.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Li Yuan, aged 40, joined the Group in April
2016, is the Head of Wealth Management and a
Senior Managing Director of the Group. Ms. Li has
around 15 years’ experience in the asset management
industry. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Li was the
managing director of State Street Global Advisors in
Hong Kong, leading both the sales and client services
team to develop and maintain business relationships
with financial institutions of North Asia. Before that,
Ms. Li served as an executive director of the global
portfolio investment department and the private equity
department at Goldman Sachs (Tokyo) and Goldman
Sachs (Hong Kong). Ms. Li has extensive experience
in business development and excellent sales
capability. Ms. Li has a deep insight in global assets
allocation and multi-asset allocation strategy. Ms. Li
is very skilled in designing and executing customized
investment plans. Ms. Li also has rich experience
in creating investment strategies with quantitative
models. She was also a member of an investment
team with combined assets under management of
approximately US$50 billion.

Ms. Li graduated from Tokyo Institute of Technology,
and obtained a Bachelor degree in Computer Science
and a Master degree in Communication Engineering.

Ms. Qin Li, aged 45, joined the Group in June 2017,
is a Senior Managing Director of the Group. With
nearly two decades of experience working in the
PRC banking industry, Ms. Qin took up employment
with China Investment Bank and China CITIC Bank
respectively and took part in foreign government
loans, custody, retailing, private banking and
bank financial management businesses in their
chronological order, thereby enjoying a wealth
of experience in wealth management and asset
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Qin
was an assistant to the general manager of the
department of financial management business at the
headquarter of China CITIC Bank, tasked with product
development and investment management for the
bank’s financial management business and leading
a team with a portfolio of assets in excess of RMB
600 billion with the scope of investments covering
debentures, stocks, derivatives, and alternative
assets.

Ms. Qin graduated from Nankai University in the PRC
with a bachelor’s degree in finance and received
her master’'s degree in business administration from
the University of Wyoming in the United States of
America.
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EEERBRE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Yunfeng
Financial Group Limited (the “Company”) is
committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. It believes that a high standard of
corporate governance provides a framework and solid
foundation for attracting and retaining high calibre
and talented management, promoting high standards
of accountability and transparency and meeting the
expectations of all the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”).

The principles of corporate governance adopted by
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) stress the importance of a quality board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all the Shareholders.

Throughout year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year”), the Company has complied with the
applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”), as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except
for certain deviations which are summarised below:

(a) Code Provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Company deviates
from this provision because the non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive
Directors do not currently have specific terms of
appointment. However, the articles of association
of the Company states that one-third of the
Directors for the time being or, if the number is
not a multiple of three, then, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Directors
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years at each annual general
meeting, and offer themselves for re-election.
As such, the Board considers that sufficient
measures have been put in place to ensure the
Company’s corporate governance practice in
this aspect provides sufficient protection for
the interests of Shareholders to a standard
commensurate with that of the code.

(b) Code Provision E.1.2

Due to other engagement, Mr. Yu Feng, the
Chairman of the Group, was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on
21 June 2017.
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(c) Code Provision C.2.5

Internal and external audit are regarded as
the third line of defence in the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and
therefore the importance of such is highly
regarded. Currently, the internal audit function
is absent as the Group is still in transitional
period in which internal policies and procedures
are being formulated and established. Internal
reviews are being conducted quite frequently,
details are disclosed in the section headed
“Risk Management and Internal Control” of this
corporate governance report. The Group also
relies on any reports from the external audit to
the management and the Audit Committee in
relation to any detected significant deficiencies in
the Group’s internal control systems.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct
regarding director’s securities transactions with terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards as
stated in the Model Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the
Group’s strategies, policies and business plans,
regulating and reviewing risk management and internal
control systems, formulating the Group’s corporate
governance policy, and supervising the management
of the business operations of the Group to ensure
that its business objectives are met. The Board
also ensures adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of the Board members. The senior
management of the Group is responsible for the day-
to-day operations of the Group and accountable to
the Board.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board has a balance of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Group. As at the date of this report, the Board
comprises the following Directors:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Ms. Li Ting (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Lijun
Mr. Qi Daging
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

The current Directors and their brief biographical
details are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships between Board
members and between the Chairman and the chief
executive officer (the “CEQ”).

The Company has been maintaining the number of
independent non-executive Directors at not less than
one-third of the number of the Board members and
has ensured that at least one of the independent
non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing
Rules. The participation of independent non-executive
Directors in the Board brings independent judgement
to ensure the interests of all Shareholders have been
duly considered.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

For a Director to be considered independent, that
Director should not have any direct or indirect material
interest in the Group. In determining the independence
of Directors, the Board follows the requirement set
out in the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each of the independent non-executive Directors
a confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 and the Company considers that
they are independent.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are
complementary, but importantly they are distinct and
separate with a clear and well established division of
responsibilities.

The Chairman (assumed by Mr. Yu Feng) is
responsible for setting strategic targets, providing
leadership to the Board, monitoring Board
effectiveness and fostering constructive relationship
between Directors.

The CEO (assumed by Ms. Li Ting) is responsible for
managing the business of the Group, attending to the
formulation and implementation of Group’s policies,
and assuming full accountability for the Group’s
operations. Acting as the principal manager of the
Group’s business, the CEO develops a strategic
operating plan that reflects the long-term objectives
and priorities established by the Board, and is
directly responsible for maintaining the operational
performance of the Group. Working with the senior
management and the Board, the CEO ensures that
the funding requirements of the business are met and
closely monitors the operating and financial results
against the plans. The CEO also takes remedial
actions when necessary and advises the Board of any
significant developments and issues of the Group.
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THE BOARD (Continued)

The Board meets regularly and at least 4 times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, senior management of
the Group provides to the Directors the information
on the activities and developments in the businesses
of the Group on a timely basis and, when required,
additional Board meetings are held. In addition,
the Directors have full access to the information of
the Group and to independent professional advice
whenever should they consider necessary. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, a total of 4 Board
meetings and 1 general meeting (“2017 AGM”), were
held and the attendance of each Director is set out
below:

ETETHERER  BFELBETIR RN
EESHNER 2B FEESREEAER
HEOEERUABAAEERBEHNRREZE
B UREFREHRTHEIMNESSSE - It
o EBTRKERLEFTERZEAESEE
HEMKBYINEXZR - REBE_FT—LF
TZAB=1t—-RLFE  ARXFESHETLIR
EE2ERRIABRRAE(=E—LFERR
BERE])  REBZHFEFEREHIMOT :

Number of meetings attended in the year ended
31 December 2017/Number of meeting eligible to attend

BE-ZE—tH&+-A=+—-HHE
EENE AERSNMNEENE

Board NC RC AC 2017 AGM
—E—t&
RBA 130 B [
Exg ZE® ZE®] ZE® BEXRE
Chairman EE
Mr. Yu Feng E#EE 4/4 2/2 - - 0/1
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Li Ting ZEL+ 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. Huang Xin BEELE 4/4 - 11 - 0/1
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, BIRIEXE
Johnson 4/4 - — — 0/1
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou BEzt 4/4 - - - 1/1
Mr. Huang Youlong BEERELLE
(resigned on (RZE-N\F
11 January 2018) —At—H@E) 0/4 - - - 0/1
Independent non- B
executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lin Lijun MAELE 1/4 0/2 0/1 0/2 0/1
Mr. Qi Daqging BRELE 2/4 1/2 11 0/2 0/1
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, KRFEE
Howard 4/4 2/2 11 2/2 0/1
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, EX&Et,
GBS, JP (resigned on GBS, JP (R=E&
3 November 2017) —t5+—-A=H
BHE) 2/3 — — 2/2 1/1
Note: Miat
NC - Nomination Committee NC — IREEEE
RC - Remuneration Committee RC — ¥fze=
AC - Audit Committee AC — ERXZES
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PROFESSIONAL TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, should always know their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the businesses and
activities of the Group. Each newly appointed Director
would receive an induction package covering the
Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, all
Directors have received the following trainings:

CREARE

EEERE

PRES(BEBYFHITES ) BRERS
BRESZHREEY THRARENELRE
B BEHLECESHERI -—EABESR
RMEAEBEBR LT RAEBAREZEE

REEESIE -

REBE-Z—tHF+-A=+t—HLFE 2
BESCEZTIEI :

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and other

Directors relevant topics
FHLXER - EERER

BE= H it E AR E 2 3E 3
Chairman B
Mr. Yu Feng E#rE v
Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Li Ting TRzt v
Mr. Huang Xin BEELE v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson = RE 4 v
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou BRI v
Mr. Huang Youlong EEREAE(RZZ-N\FE

(resigned on 11 January 2018) —B+— A& v
Independent non-executive BYFBTES

Directors
Mr. Lin Lijun MFExRE v
Mr. Qi Daqing ERERE v
Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard KRFRE v
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP &&REE+, GBS, JP (R=Z

(resigned on 3 November 2017) —tF+—-A=HEME) v
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy
in October 2013 which sets out the approach to
achieve and maintain diversity on the Board in order
to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

The Company recognises the benefits of a Board that
possesses an appropriate balance and levels of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
essential to support the execution of its corporate
and business strategies and to enhance the quality
and effectiveness of its performance. Board diversity
will strengthen the Company’s strategic objectives in
driving business results; enhancing good corporate
governance and reputation; and attracting and
retaining talent for the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors,
including professional qualifications and experience,
cultural and educational background, race and
ethnicity, gender, age and length of service. The
Company will also take into consideration factors
based on its own business model and specific
needs from time to time in determining the optimum
composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board composition
under major criteria for diversity was summarised as
follows:

Executive
7 Directors

HITES

66-70

5 Non-executive 51-55
Directors

4 FHITES

2 Independent
Non-executive
Directors

| BuHTES

Designation Gender Age Group
128 gzl Fir

Financial Institution
SRS

Master Degree Finance

B2

Education
Background

EEERESTIHE

DREAR-E-—=F+ARMESTERESZ Tt
K BEPHIDEFREFESERES T
£ RAZESSEFEREMERIZHE -

ARBTH  BEFE2EBRBEKF 2R
BE - KB ERRTEBH  UXBESSY
TEEREBRRBREARLEFEERYEE
HEZ -EFERES TBIBBRAQNRREH
REXE TERINLCEELARBERRE
EEREIRBBAS 2KBKER -

ARBARZEZHEEZ (BREEERRE
B ERBBES - Bk - 45 - FRERRR
BEER)  BEREEENES UL - REEE
FECRERER  ARRTERBEEFTEH
BARTRK2EEZREMEAE -

RBERY  REENSZAAEZESENA
BAEBEENT

Actuarial
BE

Accounting and

SRR

Investment

Bachelor Degree RE
S22y

Other Scholar
Hith B2E

Professional Directorship with
Experience Company
AEE HELR (no. of years)
BR#%FH
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Board considers that the current board
composition is diverse and meets the criteria of the
board diversity policy. Accordingly, no measurable
objectives have been set for implementing the said
policy. The Board will review the policy from time
to time to ensure that the board diversity policy is
complied with.

A copy of the board diversity policy is published on
the Company’s website for public information.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Regarding the corporate governance function, during
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board has
reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board has also reviewed and
ensured compliance of the relevant legal and
regulatory requirements, the code of conducts,
corporate governance policies and practices and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
Besides, the Company has set up three committees
including, the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit committee. Each committee
has its specific terms of reference with reference to
the CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) was chaired by Mr. Lin
Lijun with existing members of Mr. Huang Xin, Mr.
Chu Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Qi Daqging. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management of the
Group. In addition, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet as and when required to consider remuneration
related matters such as making recommendations to
the Board on the Group’s policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors and senior management,
and to assist the Group in the administration of the
fair and transparent procedure for setting policies on
the remuneration of Directors and senior management
of the Group. The written terms of reference are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange, Code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) was adopted by
the Remuneration Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee held
1 meeting. The Remuneration Committee reviewed
the remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management of the Group.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the
Year are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.
The remuneration of the senior management during
the Year falls within the following bands:

yMEES(#)
REER  FMESSETIRERE  FMHE

Fr - ERESNHFHRESNGS BBHRR
MEs  SREZEBNFHMNFTHEHE :

Number of Individual

BE AR
Nil to HK$5,000,000 5,000,000 & T AT 3
HK$5,000,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,000,001 /& 7T £ 6,000,000 % T 1
HK$16,000,001 to HK$17,000,000 16,000,001 &L E 17,000,000 /& 7T 1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) was chaired by Mr. Yu
Feng with existing members of Mr. Lin Lijun, Mr. Chu
Chung Yue, Howard and Mr. Qi Daging. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
determined with reference to the CG Code and posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board at least once every year, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Group’s corporate strategy,
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and selecting individuals
nominated for directorship (if necessary), assessing
the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of directors
and succession planning for directors, in particular
the Chairman and the chief executive officers. In
considering the nomination of new directors, the
Board will take into account the qualification, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for
the review of the board’s diversity policy, considering
factors including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service of Board members, and review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for
implementing the board diversity policy (if any), and
monitor the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives (if any).
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held
2 meetings. The committee considered the re-
election of the retiring Directors and assessed the
independence of each independent non-executive
Director. The committee also considered the
nomination of appointment of non-executive Directors
after completion of the very substantial acquisition
in relation to acquisition of 60% of the issued
share capital of MassMutual Asia Limited (definition
and detailed information referred to circular of the
Company dated 21 December 2017). In considering
the nomination of appointment of directors, the
Nomination Committee assessed the relevant
candidates on criteria such as integrity, experience,
skill, professional qualifications and ability to commit
time etc, and made recommendation to the Board for
approval.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung Yue,
Howard, with existing and former members of Mr. Lin
Lijun, Mr. Qi Daqging, and Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David,
GBS, JP. Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP resigned
as a member of the Audit Committee on 3 November
2017.

Mr. Chu holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from
University of British Columbia and is a member of the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr.
Chu has appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in
line with the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under its
amended terms of reference, dated 21 December
2015, the Audit Committee is required, amongst other
things, to oversee the relationship with the external
auditors, to review the Group’s preliminary results,
interim results and annual financial statements and to
monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the
Group, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness
of the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems, internal audit and to
review the Group’s financial and accounting policies.

EHSMEBERAT
ey

A s
EREBRSE

REZES(#H)

KEER RELZESRT2AEE -ZEE
CEEERRIEERTEBIEHNITEEN
B - RBZESNZE TRERBERUE
ZEEBEERREONERATEHITRAG60%
CHEEBANMPBEEE(EEZRFMAERRAX
rERA-ZE—+tHE+ A=+ —H2ZE
BR)BIRBEEFHUTES - ZERBETE
B REEESCHHEBIIRRAETIIME
LUEE -« K5 - AL BEXERKATREH
WERESIEAEE  YHESSIRHES

BEREEE

ARABR2EREEE([EREEE NHAR
FREERMEERE  BERERIKEBEMNF
ERE BRAEXEREREZEL - GBS
JPe BEREEL GBS JPR-Z—+tHF
t—-A=BEREERZEERE -

AEERERBIRETIAB I HEE L&
L WANERBTEESHMALAEEE - Xk
A BB LETRAEII0R)REI2NERE
CHEEBEER -

REESCHESENFSLEETA - AHR
RARBEZFrA - RIEEAR=-F—HF
“ACtT-HzZREIRESE  ERES
SAHPEE) EEHENELEM2BEER &
BIAREE 2P EE - PHRARFENBER
xR BEASEMBHRRZTEML  REEAD
AR BREE  ABEERBARRA
METEHE BERAY - UAREHAEEH
2B REFBK -



40

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during the Year.
There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, inter alia, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed internal controls, financial
reporting and risk management matters of the Group.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed, and had
discussions with external auditors, on the interim and
annual consolidated financial statements of the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

A summary of fees for audit and non-audit services is
as follows:

BEREES(A)

REER  BREESET2RER - EES
HEEZZESHRKE - 27 - BHRIBRI
BRYMTEDE  -FZXEZESCHEHR (A
BE)ASERMN2ETRANER LS
WAEEZAREE BBRBREREAREES
H - BRZEETCEH L EINEZ AT
FEBCHFHRFEFSMBEHRE -

BB =
FTEFFETRB2ERABRIIWT -

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R-ZE—+tHF R-E—RF

Nature of services R M E +=ZA=+—-H8 +=ZHB=+-—H

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Audit services ErT IR 2,220 1,850

Other services H fth fR 7% 6,340 910

Total st 8,560 2,760
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING THE A EHRERPES

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
for preparing financial statements which give a true
and fair view.

The statement of the auditor of the Company on their
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

While Yunfeng Financial Group pursues growth
in business, it also recognises the importance of
effectively managing various risks associated with
its operations. The Group aims to achieve a good
balance between risks and growth by implementing
appropriate risk management and internal control.
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ORGANISATION

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic
objectives, and maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems
(including reviewing their effectiveness) to safeguard
Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets. To
this end, management continues to allocate resources
for a risk management and internal control systems to
provide reasonable, though not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Corporate governance committee of the Group
(the “Corporate Governance Committee”) is made
up of the Chief Executive Officer and members
who represent each of the key departments or
business units, including finance, technology, risk
management, operations, legal, compliance and
project management with the responsibility to oversee
the Group’s overall risk management and internal
control systems and has the ultimate responsibility
for the establishment and implementation of
risk governance framework, appetite/tolerances,
strategies, policies and procedures. The compliance
manual sets out the guidelines on reporting and
disseminating inside information, and the Corporate
Governance Committee is delegated with the
continuing responsibility to monitor adherence and
compliance with all significant legal and regulatory
requirements. The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC)
is a sub-committee under the Corporate Governance
Committee, responsible for the risk management and
internal control.

The ROC comprises business heads, general counsel,
head of compliance and head of risk management and
is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer. Authority is
delegated from the Corporate Governance Committee
and the function of the committee is risk governance
for the Group.

The Chief Risk Officer (the “CRQO”) is responsible for
maintaining the effectiveness of the risk management
framework and for supervision of daily operation of
the risk management department.

EHSMEBERAT
ey

A s
EREBRSE

ESS2HEENEREERERNFSEER
BERFEAERROEEREE  URER
RENRAXNEREERABEZERE(BRE
BMEEBERA)  UMRERRRERAEHE
E-eRl BEEEEEIRERTRAREER
NBERRSR  RTSAEEANAERMLRIE
KAEHEIE(MIFBE)WRE » WEE(MIHF
HER) RBEEZIXE B RN AR -

rEBTGEELRZES((XEREZER))
HITRARR ST RHPINEBEV(BEY
BT ERERE &8 RE - GRNRE
BER)2REAN  AEEELFASENER
REREERANERERS  UEEREKREER
VRBREBERESR - REEZED - B
B BERRERF ERFREAIBERE R
fAAEBEEMNES  MEXERZESERE
SEREEEERNTRETRAEEER
EERE AREBEZES(AREBZES
SNARBLXELRZEEN NMEESE &
BERREEN AL

EMESEZESHERTE  LEBER 4
HEENERREETEAR HITHEAREE
IF REHGEEARZEERE  ZZEE
NEBESTEAEERMRE AR

ERERE (ERARE ) aEEsARER
ERMANY  BEEEERBEEHFAN A
BEE -



42

Corporate Governance Report
EEERBRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

Based on industry practice, the Group adopts the
industry standard “Three Lines of Defense” for the
management of risks, comprising the following
elements:

(1) 1st Line of Defence: The business which owns
and manages its risks;

(2) 2nd Line of Defence: The risk management
and operation function, which defines and co-
ordinates the operational risk strategy and
framework; and

(38) 3rd Line of Defence: Internal and external audit,
who provide independent assurance.

Each of the Group’s departments conducts risk
management and internal control that responds to the
risk profile and size of each business in accordance
with basic policies. Risk management department,
together with other concerned management functions,
monitor and communicate the risk exposures and
issues to the management. Critical issues will be
escalated to different committees according to pre-set
rules, discussions will be held and resolutions will be
found by responsible committees. The process used
to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks is
set out in the Report of the Directors on pages 47 to
51 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW

Risk management department, led by the Chief
Risk Officer, working under the guidance of risk
management policies, has developed various
procedures to manage, monitor and report identified
risk factors that the Group’s might encounter on a
daily basis. Apart from periodic risk reports that are
sent out to major management members and stake-
holders, communications are also conducted through
regular Corporate Governance Committee meetings.
Ad hoc risk reports would also be produced, whenever
there are risk issues that need to be addressed
immediately.

2017 has been a successful year in terms of risk
management under the current control framework
built in the past year, focusing on identifying potential
risks, risk reporting as well as improving and fixing
procedures. As of the time when the annual review is
composed, there are no any risk incidents that have
caused significant financial losses to the Group due
to control failures.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL REVIEW (Continued)

The review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems has been
conducted annually by the Board. During the Year,
the Board and the Audit Committee, through the
Corporate Governance Committee, has reviewed
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and
considered that the risk management and internal
control systems are effective and adequate. The
Group’s Risk Management and Internal Control Report
for 2017 was compiled to cover (i) the key risks of
the Group; (ii) developments in business and extent
of the risks in 2017, and responses to changes in its
business and the external environment; (iii) associated
action plans and controls designated to mitigate
the key risks, where applicable, at appropriate
level; (iv) the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience, training programs and budget of
accounting, and financial reporting functions; and (v)
the compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. The Risk Management and
Internal Control Report was presented to the Audit
Committee and the Board for review in March 2018.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company is committed to a consistent practice
of timely, accurate and sufficiently details disclosure
of material information about the Group. With the
guidelines of the Company regarding the disclosure
of inside information, the Group has management
controls in place to ensure that potential inside
information can be promptly identified, assessed and
escalated for the attention of the Board to decide
about the need for disclosure.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Company:

— is well aware of its obligations under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, the Listing
Rules and the overriding principle that
information which is considered as inside
information should be announced promptly when
it is the subject of a decision
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DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION
(Continued)

— conducts its affairs with close regard to the
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission

— informs all Directors, senior management
and related staff of the latest regulations and
requirements according to the letters issued or
announcements published by the Securities and
Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange

— has developed procedures and mechanisms for
the disclosure of inside information

— has included in its Compliance Manual a
strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of
confidential, sensitive or inside information, and
has communicated this to all staff

— has established and implemented procedures
for responding to external enquiries about the
Company’s affairs. Only directors and delegated
management of the Company can act as the
Company’s spokespersons and respond to
enquiries on designated areas

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
reports to the Board, and is responsible for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and for facilitating
information flows and communications among
Directors as well as with Shareholders and the
management.

Mr. Chan Man Ko, the company secretary of the
Company, has complied with the training requirement
of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

How Shareholders Can Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

An EGM may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders or by such Shareholder(s) who made
the requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to
section 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies
Ordinance”) and the articles of association of the
Company. The objects of the meeting must be
stated in the requisition which must be signed by
the requisitionist(s) and deposited at the registered
office of the Company. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in the
Companies Ordinance for convening an EGM.

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at a
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, Shareholders
representing not less than one-fortieth (2.5%) of the
total voting rights of all Shareholders; or not less
than 50 Shareholders on which there has been paid
up an average sum, per Shareholder, of not less
than HK$2,000, may make requisition in writing for
proposing resolution or business to be dealt with at
the next general meeting. Shareholders should follow
the requirements and procedures as set out in section
615 of the Companies Ordinance for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the company
secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Suites 3201-3204, One Exchange Square,
8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2845 9036/(852) 3102 9022
Email: ir@yff.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board is committed to providing clear and
full performance information of the Group to the
Shareholders through the publication of interim and
annual reports. In addition to the circulars, notices
and financial reports sent to the Shareholders,
additional information of the Group is also available to
the Shareholders on the Group’s website.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting for which at least 20 clear business
days’ notice is given. The Chairman and Directors
(including chairman/members of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee) as well as the representative of external
auditor, should attend and answer questions on the
Group’s business at the meeting. All resolutions at
the general meeting are decided by a poll which is
conducted by the Group’s share registrar.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on
its effort to promote transparency and foster investor
relationships. Comments and suggestions are always
welcomed.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There are no changes in the constitutional documents
of the Company during the Year. The latest version
of the articles of association of the Company is
posted on the website of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The directors of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the
“Director”) submit herewith their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Yunfeng Financial Group
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 15 to the financial statements. An analysis of
the revenue and the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) by business
segments during the Year are set out in note 12 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review is set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) section in this
annual report from pages 8 to 17. Future development
of the Company’s business is set out in the “CEQO’s
Statement” section and MD&A in this annual report
from pages 4 to 7 and pages 17 to 18 respectively.
An analysis of the Group’s performance during the
Year using financial key performance indictors is
provided in MD&A in this annual report from pages
8 to 20. Discussions on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group and key relationships with employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders are set
out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of this annual report.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring
that the risk management practices of the Group
are sufficient to mitigate the risks present in our
businesses and operations as efficiently and
effectively as possible. The Board delegates some of
this responsibility to various operational departments.

The Group’s financial position, operations, business
and prospects may be affected by the following
identified risks and uncertainties. The Group adopts
risk management policies, measures and monitoring
systems to pre-empt and contain exposures
associated with the identified risks.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Regulatory risk

Our businesses operate in highly-regulated markets
and our success and operations can be impacted
by changes to the regulatory environment and the
structure of these markets. The Group pays close
attention to financial regulatory and legislative
developments of the markets it operates and actively
monitors and consults with regulators of the markets
on changes which could impact our business. Many
of our key businesses are also subject to direct
regulatory oversight and we are required to maintain
the appropriate regulatory approvals and licenses
to operate, and in some cases adhere to certain
stringent financial and capital covenants.

Operational risk

This is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people or system issues
and from unforeseen external events. Operational risk
usually includes the risks resulted from human error
in internal operation, imperfection of internal process,
information system fault or imperfection, trading
failure and other reasons.

Our business and operations are at risk of disruption
from technologies and processes. Information
technology and systems is critical to the Group’s
operation and business development of securities
trading, settlement and service, etc. The unreliability
of system, imperfection of network technology and
data error will inflict damage and economic losses to
the Company.

The Group is responsible for managing client data and
undertakes volumes of transactional processes via
information technology and systems. There is a risk
that failure to process these transactions correctly
could result in loss and liabilities being incurred
to third parties, and result in breach of certain
regulations of the Securities & Futures Commission
(“SFC”), namely, the SFC (Client Money) Rules under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, which stipulates
that clients’ money held-in-trust by the Group’s
relevant operating subsidiaries must be reconciled,
restored daily and segregated from those of the
Group.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Operational risk (Continued)

In order to manage these risks, the Group invests
significantly in technology, human resources and
automated processes, business continuity plans to
cope with events of operation and system failures
and disaster recovery, and has also established, a
dedicated I.T. team which is responsible for handling
and responding rapidly to emergencies in a systematic
manner to eliminate disruptions and disasters, and
to ensure business continuity. The I.T. team also
plays an important role in assessing the technological
requirements and their viability of new business ideas
and initiatives of the Group.

The Group remains proactive in its monitoring and
improving the internal control mechanisms, limits
on authority and reporting of operational processes,
strengthening the inspection and audit, intensifying
the compliance and accountability system, to reduce
the possibility of operational risks and actively
and properly dealing with the adverse effects. The
responsibility for managing operational risks rests
with each and every employee, functions, divisions
and departments of the Group. The responsibility is
continuous and we adapt our response accordingly to
the changing operating environment.

The Group recognises that operational risks cannot
be eliminated completely, but will strive to persist
in its strengthening and implementation of robust
compliance and risk management measures, improve
business processes, strengthen the professional
integrity and ethics of staff through education and
training to avoid, detect and identify risks, prevent
money-laundering, insider dealing, conflict of interest
and other possible violations, to pre-empt, manage
and reduce these operational risks exposure.

Credit Risk

Credit risks will arise when a client/counter-
party fails to perform its financial and contractual
obligations. To minimise and control this risk, the
Group has established and enforced stringent due
diligence assessment and credit control procedures
to evaluate the creditworthiness of its clients and
counterparties. Preventatively and clearly defined
risk control measures have been deployed to screen,
evaluate potential clients and determine and assess
the relevant creditworthiness and credit ratings which
are used to determine appropriate trading and credit
limits for all clients/counterparties, including existing
clients/counterparties.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

The safeguard and risk control measures include
performing pre-screening and assess the client’s
credit rating by reputable credit rating agencies;
identify and review client’s investment objectives,
investment history, trading frequency and risk
appetite; examine and review client’s/counterparty’s
past payment records and history of defaults; identify
and review the client’s capital base and the existence
and amount of guarantees and by whom such
guarantees are given, if any; identify and review any
known events which may have an adverse impact on
the client’s/counterparty’s financial status, potential
for default or accuracy of information stored regarding
the client/counterparty. Trading and credit limits,
subject to the enforced and pre-determined maximum,
are set specifically for each client in accordance with
our assessments and their respective credit rating
and trading needs. The Group’s exposure to the
client’s and counterparties’ credit risks is continually
monitored.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Group will be
unable to meet its obligations when they fall due
because of an ability to obtain adequate funding or
liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, the Group
continually monitors cash flows and maintains an
adequate level of cash and credit facilities to ensure
the ability to finance the Group’s operations and
reduce the effects of cash flow fluctuations.

Certain principal operating subsidiaries of the Group
are regulated by the SFC, the financial market
regulators and are subject to various liquidity and
capital requirements as prescribed by the rules of
the SFC. The Group has established procedures and
monitoring systems, monitoring on a daily basis, to
ensure that it maintains adequate and necessary liquid
capital to facilitate its operating capability, to fund its
business commitments as well as to comply with the
relevant rules including the Financial Resources Rules.

The Group has maintained banking facilities
and financing arrangement to meet cash flow
contingencies in its operations. The Company will
also consider the need to raise capital funding in
order to meet the Group’s expansion and growth in
its business operations. The management believes
that the Group’s current level of working capital
is adequate to meet its operational and financial
obligations.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
Market Risk

The operating performance of the Group highly relates
to the changes in the economy, sentiments of the
investors and securities market and has risks, volatility
and uncertainties.

Market risk is the risk that the Group’s earnings and
capital or its ability to meet its business objectives
will be adversely affected by movement in foreign
exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices.

Price risks of the Group include equity price risk,
interest rate and exchange rate and fluctuation risks
involved in the brokerage business, financial advisory
and underwriting business and other business.

The Group currently has minimal exposure to
foreign currency risk, but continues to monitor the
relative foreign exchange positions of the mix of its
assets and liabilities. When appropriate, hedging
instruments including forward contracts, swaps and
currency loans would be used to manage the foreign
exchange exposure. The foreign currency risk is
managed and monitored on an on-going basis by
senior management and relevant operation staff of the
Group.

Equity price risk arises from fluctuation in market
prices of the Group’s investment in financial assets.
Senior management regularly reviews and monitors
the mix of securities in its investment portfolio based
on its fair value to ensure the loss arising from the
changes in the market values of the investment
portfolios is minimised and contained within an
acceptable range.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year, and the
statement of financial position of the Group as of 31
December 2017 are set out in the financial statements
on pages 86 to 89.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the Year (2016: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the Year are set out in note 29 (e) to
the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the distributable reserves of the Company
as at 31 December 2017 are set out in note 29 (c) to
the financial statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 208.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Year, other than acting as an agent for
clients of the Group and purchase of a total of
48,000 shares of the Company (“Shares”) on-market
by trustee under the share award scheme of the
Company adopted by the Board on 12 December
2016, neither the Company or any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year
are set out below:

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on
21 July 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to the participants (being any
employee (whether full-time or part-time), Directors or
consultants of each member of the Group, provided
that the board of Directors may have absolute
discretion to determine whether or not one falls within
the above category) and for such other purposes as
the Board may approve from time to time.

Pursuant to this 10-year term Share Option Scheme,
the Company can grant options to participants for a
consideration of HK$1.00 for each grant payable by
the participant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option, if the
total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all the options granted and to be
granted to such participant under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of such further grant would
exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless such further
grant has been approved by the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”) in general meeting with the
participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

Where the Board proposes to grant any option to a
participant who is a substantial Shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or any of their
respective associates, which would result in the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to him in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant:

(i) representing in aggregate more than 0.1% of the
total number of Shares in issue; and

(i) bhaving an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5,000,000,

such proposed grant of options must be approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting. In such a case,
the Company shall send a circular to its Shareholders
containing all those terms as required under the
Listing Rules. The participant concerned and all
connected persons of the Company must abstain
from voting in favour of the resolution at such general
meeting. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve
the grant of such options must be taken on a poll.

Subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of options granted hereunder
shall be a price solely determined by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date on which the option is offered to a participant,
which must be a trading day; (b) a price being the
average of the closing prices of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (c) the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

According to the Share Option Scheme, unless
otherwise determined by the Board, there shall be
no minimum holding period for the exercise of the
options but the options are exercisable within the
option period as determined by the Board and in any
event such period shall not be longer than 10 years
from the date upon which any particular option is
granted.

The total number of share option that could be
granted was 38,449,452, representing approximately
10% of the total issued shares of the Company on
the date of passing the resolution to refresh the Share
Option Scheme limit at the annual general meeting on
26 March 2012.

As at the date of this report, the total number of
share option that can be granted was 27,954,040,
representing approximately 1.15% of the total issued
shares of the Company.

During the year, no share options had been granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed or were outstanding.

SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Board had approved the adoption of two share
award schemes respectively on 30 October 2014 (the
“2014 Share Award Scheme”) and on 12 December
2016 (the “2016 Share Award Scheme”).

The purposes of the above share award schemes are
to (i) encourage or facilitate the holding of Shares
by the selected participants; (ii) encourage and
retain such individual to work with the Group; and
(iii) provide additional incentive for them to achieve
performance goals.

The maximum number of shares can be issued or
purchased under the 2016 Share Award Scheme and
the 2014 Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares
in issue from time to time (i.e. 242,332,639 Shares,
representing 10% of total issued Shares as at the
date of this report).
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SHARE AWARD SCHEMES (Continued)
2014 Share Award Scheme

Since the date of adoption of 2014 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 30 October 2014) (the “2014 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, a total of
9,330,239 Shares have been awarded under the 2014
Share Award Scheme, representing about 2.09% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the 2014
Adoption Date and about 0.39% of the total issued
Shares as at the date of this report.

During the Year, no Shares had been awarded under
the 2014 Share Award Scheme and as at 31 December
2017, 26,667 Shares were held by the trustee under the
2014 Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme are set
out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details and other principal terms of the 2014 Share
Award Scheme are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 October 2014.

2016 Share Award Scheme

Since the date of adoption of 2016 Share Award
Scheme (i.e. 12 December 2016) (the “2016 Adoption
Date”) and up to the date of this report, 23,990,000
Shares have been awarded pursuant to the 2016
Share Award Scheme together with 9,330,239 Shares
awarded under the 2014 Share Award Scheme,
representing in aggregate about 1.39% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the 2016 Adoption
Date and about 1.37% of the total issued shares as at
the date of this report.

TMF Trust (HK) Limited (“TMF Trustee”) and Bank
of Communications Trustee Limited (“BoCom
Trustee”) have been appointed as the trustees for the
administration of the 2016 Share Award Scheme. TMF
Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of the
selected participants who are not connected persons
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company.
BoCom Trustee shall hold the Shares for the benefit of
the selected participants who are connected persons
of the Company. BoCom Trustee and/or TMF Trustee
shall not be entitled to exercise any voting rights in
respect of any Shares held under the trust.

During the Year, 20,190,000 Shares had been
awarded under the 2016 Share Award Scheme and as
at 31 December 2017, 19,480,000 and 48,000 Shares
had been held by TMF Trustee and BoCom Trustee
respectively under the 2016 Share Award Scheme.

Further details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme
are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements. Details and other principal terms of
the 2016 Share Award Scheme are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 12 December
2016, 11 January 2017 and 24 January 2017.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the Year and up
to the date of this report are:

Chairman
Mr. Yu Feng (Non-executive Director)
Executive Directors

Ms. Li Ting (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Huang Xin

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson
Ms. Hai Olivia Ou
Mr. Huang Youlong

(resigned on 11 January 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Lin Lijun

Mr. Qi Daging

Mr. Chu Chung Yue, Howard

Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP
(resigned on 3 November 2017)

In accordance with article 103(A) of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson,
Ms. Li Ting and Mr. Qi Daqging shall retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors a confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the Year and the Company
considers that they are independent.

CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The Change of directors’ information as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules is set out below:

Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson was re-designated from
an executive director to a non-executive director of
KuangChi Science Limited (stock code: 00439) on 16
May 2017, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
(Continued)

Mr. Lin Lijun resigned as an independent director of
Shanghai Chengtou Holding Co. Ltd (Stock code:
600649) on 27 March 2017, a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange; and was appointed as a
non-executive director of Wenzhou Kangning Hospital
Co., Ltd (Stock code: 02120) on 14 June 2017, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Qi Daging was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of RoadShow Holdings Limited
(stock code: 00888) on 21 November 2017, and
resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Honghua Group Limited (stock code: 00196) on 1
January 2018, both companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of directors who have served on the
boards of the subsidiaries of the Company (the
“subsidiaries”) during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report included:
Mr. Yu Feng, Mr. Huang Xin, Ms. Li Ting, Mr. John
Maguire, Mr. Szeto Winston', Ms. Liao Yee Ching, Mr.
He Shigiang’, Mr. Chan Man Ko, Mr. Lo Ming Kit',
Mr. Wang Yanzheng', Mr. Cai Junyi?, Ms. Chow Ming
Chee Ada, Ms. Qin Li?2, Ms. Wen Jie?, Mr. Leung Pui
Hong, Ms. Lai Angela Waiyin2, Mr. Brian Eden?, Mr.
Neil Gray?, Mr. Thomas Parsons JR? and Mr. Leon
Rhule?.

Notes:

1. No longer directors of the subsidiaries as at the date of
this report

2. Companies in which they serve as directors are

incorporated in places other than Hong Kong
DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which requires the Company to give
a period of notice of more than one year, or to pay
compensation or make other payments equivalent to
more than one year’s emolument.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short
positions of each director of the Company and
chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, or known to the
Company, were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of the
Company and the underlying Shares:

Name of Director

ESKSR 510 HEEME

Capacity/Nature of interests

EERFTETHRAERA QT HEMTE
BrEzKRG  HEAROREZTER
ZEHER KR

N-E—+tE+-A=+—H XATRES
FEETHAERAQATFE M EZE
(EEREHRBEKRATERRIPEESE D
EXVE) 2R HEBROEESFTHEED
RERADNREREEH NS G655 352 1§
BEZETMA  SCRBEZSZRBEKRGE
XVERSH X iEE EmBAT EHRREANDT
EHARBESETESRZNELESR([EE

FRINHMERATRREBHERZAERAT
(TR IRDTCHNBZEERAAN
T

REQXRDEBRREARO ZHFR :

Number of Shares held
RGO EE
Percentage
Long of
position shareholding

wR FRESL

Mr. Yu Feng (note 1)
B (B 1)
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (note 2)

SiRIBEE (HEF2)
Notes:

(1)  Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and non-executive
Director, was interested in 1,342,976,000 Shares through
Jade Passion Limited (“Jade Passion”), a company which
is owned as to 73.21% of its issued share capital by Key
Imagination Limited (“Key Imagination”). 91% of the issued
share capital of Key Imagination is owned by Yunfeng
Financial Holdings Limited (“YFHL”), the issued share
capital of which in turn, is owned as to 70.15% by Mr. Yu
Feng.

(2)  Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, a non-executive Director,
was interested in 229,180,726 Shares through Gainhigh
Holdings Limited (“Gainhigh”). 100% of the issued share
capital of Gainhigh was held by Insula Holdings Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson.

Held by controlled corporation/
Corporate interest

mEREEESE LEER

Held by controlled corporation/
Corporate interest

mEEEEESE EEERS

1,342,976,000 55.42%

229,180,726 9.46%

Mt

(1) FTEBEXERAQAAIPTEZTELRLEEE
# Jade Passion Limited ([Jade Passion])
71,342,976,0008% I 10 1 # B & 7= Key
Imagination Limited ([Key Imagination]) #
B Jade PassionB BTRAN273.21% @ E#
TRERERATN(EZHESHMER | EEKey
Imagination B2 {TIRAZ291% » MEH L EHE
BERSRIIERBBITRAZ70.15%

(2 AATFFHITESESIRIEL L E B Gainhigh
Holdings Limited ([ Gainhigh |) 4 229,180,726
IR B3 R B #E % > T Insula Holdings Limited
(BB E4E2EHE ) E GainhighZ2100% 2
BEITRRAR o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EERFTEITBRAERE QT HEMAE
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN BorEzRG HERORESTHES
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND ZEER BB (F)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)
Long positions in the shares and the underlying REBELZEROREERAZHFR
shares of associated corporations:
Number of Shares held in
Associated Corporation
REBEEAFERGO#E
Percentage
Name of Associated Capacity/ of
Corporation Name of Director Nature of Interests Long position shareholding
MR L B £ B EEnR B EEME Ha BFRES
Yunfeng Financial Mr. Yu Feng Beneficial owner/ 94 70.15%
Holdings Limited Benef|C|aI interest
ERSRIZRERAA EEEE BREBABEmEs
Key Imagination Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 9,100 91%
corporation/Corporate
interest
REEEE (M) HmEZEGEERFE
EE RS
Mr. Huang Xin (Note 2) Held by controlled 900 9%
corporation/Corporate
interest
BEERE(MF2) M EFEERFE
EE RS
Jade Passion Limited Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled 7,321 73.21%
corporation/Corporate
interest
L (M) HEZEHEEEE
EEERE
Mr. Huang Youlong Held by controlled 2,679 26.79%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(1)  Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and non-executive
Director was interested in 9,100 shares, representing 91%
of equity interest in Key Imagination through YFHL, the
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. Yu Feng was
also interested in 7,321 shares, representing 73.21% of
equity interest in Jade Passion through Key Imagination.
Both Key Imagination and Jade Passion are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

(2)  Mr. Huang Xin, an executive Director, is the sole
shareholder of Perfect Merit Limited which owns 900
shares, representing 9% of the equity interest in Key
Imagination.

(3) Mr. Huang Youlong, a non-executive Director, is the sole
shareholder of Gold Ocean Investments Group Inc. which
owns 2,679 shares, representing 26.79% equity interest
in Jade Passion. Mr. Huang Youlong resigned as a non-
executive Director on 11 January 2018.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017,
none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company and/or any of their respective associates
had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company
and/ or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code adopted by the
Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above and in this report, at no
time during the Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries or associated corporations, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors (including their
respective spouses and children under the age of 18)
to acquire benefits by the means of the acquisition of
the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporations.

EERFETHRAERADQIHIEME
BEBoRHM >  HERORESFHHES
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company was notified
of the following substantial Shareholders’ and
other persons’ interests, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued shares and recorded in the register
kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Report of the Directors
EEEmE

FERRREMALRRG 2ER

RZBE—+tF+ZA=1+—H ' XATEHE
THEERRREMAL#E @ IRBESR
HERAIZE 336 IFRFE2ELMARRITE
TRB 5% R - 2% o

Number of Shares held
FERHE R

Long Percentage of

Name of Substantial Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests position  shareholding
TERRHS B/ RRE #R BFRESL
Mr. Yu Feng (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,342,976,000 55.42%
Corporate interest
EEEE (1) MEEHEERE EEER
Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited Held by controlled corporation/ 1,342,976,000 55.42%
(Note 1) Corporate interest
ERSRERBRAR(F1) MZEHEERE EEER
Key Imagination Limited (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation/ 1,342,976,000 55.42%
Corporate interest
Key Imagination Limited (/2% 1) HEESZEEEE LEEE
Jade Passion Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 1,342,976,000 55.42%
Jade Passion Limited (475 1) ERBEAN BRER
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance Held by controlled corporation/ 800,000,000 33.01%
Company (Note 2) Corporate interest
Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance MEESZEEEE LEEE
Company (#fit2)
MassMutual International LLC (Note 2) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 800,000,000 33.01%
MassMutual International LLC (#/:12) BnEB A/ EFED
Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation/ 229,180,726 9.46%
Corporate interest
SRS (HEE3) MZEHEERE EEES
Insula Holdings Limited (Note 3) Held by controlled corporation/ 229,180,726 9.46%
Corporate interest
Insula Holdings Limited (4:#3) MEEFZEEE LEEE
Gainhigh Holdings Limited (Note 3) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 229,180,726 9.46%
Gainhigh Holdings Limited (45 3) ERBEEA BRikER
Ms. Lian Yi (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation/ 167,872,000 6.93%
Corporate interest
B+ (fit4) MZEHEERE EEES
Clear Expert Limited (Note 4) Held by controlled corporation/ 167,872,000 6.93%
Corporate interest
Clear Expert Limited (4752 4) M E4EERE, EEER
Violet Passion Holdings Limited (Note 4) Beneficial owner/Beneficial interest 167,872,000 6.93%

Violet Passion Holdings Limited (/##:#4)
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EEEWmE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
(Continued)

Notes:

1. Mr. Yu Feng, Chairman of the Group and a non-executive
Director was interested in 1,342,976,000 shares through
Jade Passion, a company which is owned as to 73.21%
of its issued share capital by Key Imagination. 91% of the
issued share capital of Key Imagination is owned by YFHL,
the issued share capital of which in turn, is owned as to
70.15% by Mr. Yu Feng.

2. MassMutual International LLC was interested in
800,000,000 shares, being the consideration shares to be
allotted and issued to MassMutual International LLC upon
completion of the Acquisition (definition refers to circular
of the Company dated 21 December 2017). Massachusetts
Mutual Life Insurance Company is the sole member of
MassMutual International LLC.

3. Mr. Ko Chun Shun, Johnson, a non-executive Director,
was interested in 229,180,726 shares through Gainhigh.
100% of the issued share capital of Gainhigh was held by
Insula Holdings Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson.

4. Ms. Lian Yi was interested in 167,872,000 shares
through Violet Passion Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Clear Expert Limited, which in turn is a
company wholly-owned by Ms. Lian Yi.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017,
there were no other persons who had an interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under divisions 2 and 3 of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance (i) to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director or his connected entities was
materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the Year or at the end of
the Year, nor (ii) between the Company, or one of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries.

FTERRERHEMATARG 2B (&)

BEE -

1. FAEFBXERAQAFBTESERLEEBR
Jade Passion{ & 1,342,976,000 8% & 13 =2
1 # - Key Imagination# A Jade Passion
BIIRANZ73.21%  E# S TR EEKey
Imagination B #TRAZ91% » ME#ELERE
BEXSHIERTBITRAZ270.15% °

2. MassMutual International LLC #E% 800,000,000
% A& 12 (B A% 54 Uk B8 == 18 5% AL & @ MassMutual
International LLCELZE R BI{THEERSG T
BAAGAHEBHA-Z—tF+=_A=+—8HK
B K ) o Massachusetts Mutual Life Insurance
Company A& MassMutual International LLC #JHE
— BT e

3. ZADAFHITEESIRIELEEBGainhigh
229,180,726 8% % 10 * # & # & ° Insula
Holdings Limited (&£ 2 ERE 207 EF
A Gainhigh 2 100% B2 TR A -

4. & B Z L & i Violet Passion Holdings
Limited (Clear Expert Limitedz & & i B
A E)R167,872,000 RR B PEEER M
Clear Expert Limited BIlREHZ+ 2 & HH -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS/RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the Year, which may also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
disclosed in Note 35 to the financial statements.

During the Year, the Group did not have any
connected transactions that were subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the Year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND MAJOR
CUSTOMERS

During the Year, revenue derived from the Group’s
5 largest customers accounted for approximately
40% of the total revenue for the Year, with the single
largest customer contributing approximately 13.5%.

The Group is a provider of financial services. In the
opinion of the Board, it is therefore of no value to
disclose details of the Group’s suppliers.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, none
of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares,
had an interest in the major customers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable donations is made by
the Group (2016: nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high
standard of corporate governance practices.
Information on the corporate governance practice of
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision as set out in the
articles of association of the Company that provides
for indemnity against liability incurred by directors and
executive officers of the Group is currently in force
and was in force throughout the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this report, there was
sufficient public float of the Company’s securities as
required under the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been
audited by KPMG who will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution
for reappointment of KPMG will be proposed for
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors.
The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Chu Chung
Yue, Howard with Mr. Lin Lijun and Mr. Qi Daqing
being the other members. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are in line with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. The Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the Year have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

By order of the Board

Li Ting
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 29 March 2018
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining a high
standard of corporate social governance to establish
and implement a framework for constantly improving
our effort in improving environmental and social
surroundings of the Group and creating a sustainable
return to our shareholders with deliberate decision
making process. This environmental, social and
governance report has been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Stock Exchange Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide. The report
covers all business sectors within the Group operated
in Hong Kong and other jurisdictions for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

In daily operation, we have regular engagement
with our identified stakeholder groups. Through our
interaction with different stakeholder groups, we have
summarised below topics of discussion presented in
table below which covering all material environmental,
social and governance issues identified in terms of
their impact on business growth, profitability, capital
efficiency and risk related to Group’s business
operation and validated by management.

Communication
and feedback

RE - HEREREE

REEBBNEFESKFZ2EELEER  UE
ARER—ATEHEARMPELXESSAEERR
FHEREFAZEN UBEBRIEREZ
REBEARRAENISERRZIELRE - ]IR
B -HEREAREIREEBHIMERE
HERERAREESIGE - ARERETEHZ
017 FEAKEEETAERECALZEEERA
KENP B EEIFAMNGEE o

REEEESD  BMERMAEHEEEEE
EMEE BRRRMNNEZHEEEE 2R
B RPEATREBETWER  HPEE
FRECRATHEEERIEHANEE XKL
R BANED BAYR2HEREREEL
Rl cERRE  HEREGHE -

Stakeholder Groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
FEEREER BERRERE RS BEESE
— Employees — Meeting — Annually — Talent attraction,
— Performance review — Monthly development and
— Internal email — Event driven basis retention
correspondences
- 8T - 83 - 85 — AFWE| - BRRERE
- KR - 85
— AMEBER - BHEBEE

— Shareholders — Annual general meeting
(“AGM”), extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)

— Announcements, annual

report, interim report,

— Annually for AGM
— The other channels are on — Financial performance
event driven basis

— Business development

— Corporate governance
— Major corporate actions
and transactions

circular
- RR - RRBFRS([RRBFK - BEBRRRBEAS - ¥BER
gl) REREIAE(RERE — ZSHEPEECHMRE — WBRR
AIRE ) - bXER
- DEFH PHEERER - IERATBRRS
— Regulators — Correspondence mail/email  — Event driven basis — Compliance with
— Phone call regulations
— Site visit — Business development
— EEMH — B#/EBEIX - BHRHEE - BFER
- B - XBERE
- BUHRE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERERES

Communication
and feedback

Stakeholder Groups channels Frequency Topics of discussion
FEHEEER BERRERE RE BEES:]
— Clients — Know your client onboarding — Meeting/phone call, emails — Product and trading system

process
— Face to face meeting our

on event driven basis quality and development
— Electronic trading platform — Fair and transparent

business representative
— Phone call and email with our
client service representatives
- &P - TRMEFS|ERRE
- BEBRREHESE

on event driven basis

dealing practice
— Enterprise branding

- REMRHEECEE /B - EnRRIAREEREE
W ER — RYERZRZEH

- BEPREARCEANREDE — RBMEHEELETRS — X

Y

— Business partners — On site visit
— Meetings
— Conference call

— Event driven basis — Business development

— Fair business practice and
market reputation

— Sounded financial strength
and management

- BEBH - BEE - BHEREE - XBRE
- 8% - AYBXEHRTSEE
- BREE - R2zMBERE

— Media — Press released — Event driven basis — Business development and
— Marketing campaign strategies
— Exhibitions — Product and service

promotion

- K — HER - EHRPEE - EBBRERER
— EHEE - EmMBRBERE
- RE

— Communities — On site visit — Event driven basis — Policy and commitment to
— Meetings communities

- #HE —%ﬁﬁ@ - BHRPEE — HHE 2 BRRAH
- =2

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT, FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

In relation to the business development and financial
performance discussion, please refer to CEQO’s
Statement and Business Review under Management
Discussion and Analysis section of the annual report.
In relation to the corporate governance discussion,
please refer to Corporate Governance Report section
of the annual report.

ERRE UBEEREXER

BAREBBRRVBRENR  FORISHF
B THAHREREEBTRREITHD 2
EBLORE - REXERTW  F2HFHR2

EEERBERD °
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

The current businesses of the Group focused on
financial technologies development, financial advisory
services and securities broking with low impact on
carbon emission and no hazardous waste produced.
No data regarding air emissions, greenhouse gas
emissions, hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste
is available as they are not material to our business
nature. Although the Group advocate the principle
of environmental protection, we have not prepared
any specific policy related to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land and
generating of hazardous and non-hazardous waste
in view of the Group’s current operation model. We
shall continue monitoring our operation and assess if
relevant policy needed to be implemented.

Use of Resources

The Group commits to the principle and practice of
recycling and reducing consumption of resources. To
help conserve the environment, we implement green
office practices such as encourage use of recycled
paper for printing and copying, double-sided printing
and copying, setting up recycling bins, reduce
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings,
air conditioning and electrical appliances. It includes
the policy of switching off all lights after working/non
office hours, during weekends and public holidays,
maintaining recycle bins in office areas and encourage
our own employees and business partners to opt
for electronic media and billing. Whenever we note
there is any malfunction and leakage with the water
supply system within the office building, we notify the
office property management company to fix problem
promptly. Management also put up signs in office to
remind staff to save water use and avoid blockage of
sewage system to avoid wastage of water. Our water
usage is supplied by the municipals and we do not
anticipate any potential risk in sourcing for water.

During the year, the Group consumed 389 (kWh in
‘000s) of electricity and 517,500 sheets of blank paper
in A4 and A3 sizes. For water usage measurement,
some of the data is not made available as it is
either included in the office building management
fee charge or electricity bill charge leased by the
Group. The only available data for water usage is 931
tons consumed by our Shenzhen office. There is no
packaging material used in relation to our Group’s
financial service operation. Despite the increase of
level of activities and business scope of the Group,
management is committed to maintaining minimum
wastage approach with on-going monitoring and
exploring ways to further reduce the consumption of
resources wherever possible.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RE - HERERES

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
The environmental and natural resources

The Group considers protection of our environment
being imperative for the well-being of society and
also our next generation. The Group strives to
raise the awareness of minimizing consumption of
natural resources and adopts the environmental best
practices across the Group’s businesses. The Group
regularly reviews its environmental practices including
sending reminder to employee using double sided
printing and reducing the use of colour print, from
time to time and considers implementing further eco-
friendly measures, sustainability targets and practices
in the operation of the Group’s businesses to
reinforce the principles of reduce, recycle and reuse,
and further minimise our already low impact on the
natural environment.

SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practice

To enable us to deliver value to our shareholders and
serve our clients, we endeavor attracting and retaining
best talents, which reflects in our recruitment and
ongoing staff development effort.

The Group considered itself to be an equal
opportunity employer and encourages diversity
regardless of age, gender, marital status and race.
A well-established board diversity policy, as further
discussed under the Corporate Governance Report,
with the aim of enhancing the quality of the Board’s
performance by promoting diversity in the composition
of board members based on their experiences and
background considered relevant to the Group’s
operation and strategies, is adopted. During the
year, the nomination committee of the Company has
followed the policy when considers appointing new
director to the Board.

To recruit and retain premier talents, we provided
competitive remuneration package to attract and
motivate our employees. We offered competitive
remuneration, share option and share award schemes,
retirement and medical benefits, insurance coverage
and leave entitlement commensurate to market
standards. The remuneration package of employees
is reviewed regularly based on individual performance
and market conditions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SOCIAL (Continued)
Employment and Labour Practice (Continued)

As part of the effort to retain talent, we offer the
internal mobility opportunities, which is able to drive
the overall efficiency of operation through better
matching of required skills with talents. During the
year, some of our employees have taken advantage of
internal mobility opportunities.

During the year, the Group is fully committed to
complying with the Employment Ordinance and other
relevant regulations without identifying any non-
compliance incidence in 2017.

Key statistics
The Group has 240 (2016: 229) employees.

Female represents 27% (2016: 23%) as senior
management and 41% (2016: 39%) of total workforce.
Geographically, around 40% (2016: 35%) of our
employees resides in Hong Kong and the remaining
resides in PRC and USA.

Demographic information of different employees
age group within the Group

RE - HEREREE

BEREIERE)

ERBREAT Tz —82 » RMNRERIDR
e TEBEFMTEMEIRERA
7T REBREEENER -RAFE  Rf—L&
ETEFARABREBHS -

RAFE  AREZEARESEREG IR
HtBRERA  MR=B -t FRBEREME
BREH -

IEanﬂ%?

REBEAE 240 (2016 : 229)KET -
ZMETHSHREEE227% (2016 : 23%)
RABELE N 241% (2016 :39%) c HH B /5

> 40% (2016 : 35%)ETEXRNE S - 88
TEIERERTEKER -

FEEATRE T FRAF ZAOZTEH

2017 2016
Age Group —E—+tF —E-RE
Fiesa B % %
e 16-24 5 16
e 25-44 86 74
e 45-64 9 10

Turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

Turnover rate of male employee is 18% (2016: 21%)
and female employee is 13% (2016: 20%).

Turnover rate of employee resides in Hong Kong is
11% (2016: 19%) with 21% (2016: 22%) for employee
resides in PRC.

Demographic turnover rate information of different
employees age group within the Group

MR - FRANRMBEIHRED 2 REE o

BEMHETZRHEE18% (2016 : 21%) » &
METZREEE13% (2016 : 20%) °

BEERBEABZETIREBEA511% (2016 :
19%) MBEARPBEZEIRBEXRE21%
(2016 : 22%) °

EEFATEE L FRALZAOR REBFE

2017 2016
Age Group —E—tF —E-RE
FHR 4 R % %
. 16-24 2 6
o 25-44 26 31
o 45-64 4
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RE - HERERRS

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Management emphasize the importance of the
health of employee and convey the message to all
department heads at meetings to exuberate the
awareness of occupational health and safety issues to
all staff within the Group. Policies related to upgrades
and maintenance of office and I.T. equipment, regular
office hygiene keepings are implemented regularly
to cope with the needs of employees. To provide a
hygienic and healthy working environment to all staff
cleaning of carpets are carried out at regular intervals.
When there is a fire drill initiated by the office building
management, we encourage our staff to participate in
such fire drill.

Employees are also expected to take all practical
measures to ensure a safe and healthy working
environment, in keeping with their defined
responsibilities and applicable laws.

To improve the well-being of its employees, the
Group provides sufficient health coverage. Staff is
entitled to medical insurance benefits as well as other
health awareness programs. As part of the monitoring
process and policy, our human resources department
has observed if the existing health coverage can cover
the average employee’s claim per year and also seek
for employee’s feedback in the process to further
enhance the existing health program to make it more
staff benefit oriented.

During the year, there is not any work-related fatality.
We have followed the implemented relevant polices
without identifying any non-compliance incidence in
2017.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

Regarding to staff development and training,
we provide on-the-job training and development
opportunities to enhance our employees’ career
progression implemented by different department
heads. We encourage staff participation of external
seminars, lectures and industrial events to keep up
with abreast of changes in areas of legal, compliance
and market industry practices. Through relevant,
systematic and organised training platform, our
goal is to align staff knowledge and skills sets with
our Group’s business objectives and operations
requirement, which all are conducive to promote
efficiency and productivity. With staffs equipped with
better skill set, we believe it can reduce the overall
operation risk of the Group in the long run.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING (Continued)

On the other hand, the Group emphasise the
importance of continuous professional development
training for the directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills on regulatory requirements and
development and corporate governance practices.

To promote and cultivate the ongoing professional
development of all employees, the Group offers
seminar including various team building training,
FATCA and CRS updates, SFC seminars with
regulation updates, financial reporting updates which
staff could join on voluntarily basis. The Group has
also financed and reimbursed the external training
courses attended by our staff, which is relevant in
their career development and enhancement of their
job performance approved by business head and
senior management.

LABOUR STANDARDS

Our Group strictly adheres to Employment of
Children Regulations and other regulations made
under the Employment Ordinance or other relevant
laws in other jurisdiction, which prohibits any illegal
employment of children, forced or compulsory labor.
The Group has implemented comprehensive human
resources policy through our human resources
department to verify candidates’ relevant information
filled in their respective job application including
personal identification, curriculum checking and
other documents checking considered necessary.
On the other hand, the Group has distributed
employee handbooks outlining terms and conditions
of employment, expectations for employees’ conduct
and behavior, employees’ rights and benefits. We
establish and implement policies that promote a
harmonious and productive workplace. We have
followed the implemented human resources polices
without identifying any non-compliance incidence in
2017.
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OPERATING PRACTICE
Supply Chain and Counterparties Management

The Group recognize one of the crucial elements of
operation risk management being counterparties and
transaction due diligence. The overall governance
effort is led by Corporate Governance Committee
for the establishment and implementation of the
operational risk governance framework, strategies,
policies and procedure and the implementation
is coordinated through Risk Oversight Committee
(“ROC”). The ROC is a sub-committee under the
Corporate Governance Committee, it is chaired by
chief executive officer comprising our business heads,
legal counsel, head of compliance and head of risk
management.

Effective counterparties and transaction due diligence
processes are the foundation of our approach to
form long-term partnerships with our valued business
partners, by working together to manage risks in
our business activities. To implement the policy, we
promote an ownership system within our Group, which
counterparties to be selected and transaction to be
entered being the responsibilities of service/business
user within the Group. The user is responsible for
gathering sufficient information and use appropriate
mechanism to address different business, financial
and legal and compliance related concerns raised
by relevant internal functions. Upon all concerns
are being addressed and cleared by all relevant
internal functions governed by internal new business
approval process, the proposed transactions are then
recommended to senior management for final approval
and execution. When significant concerns and issues
are identified, the proposed transactions together with
department heads’ recommendation will be escalated
to Group’s senior management and Risk Oversight
Committee for thorough review and discussion to
determine next course of actions to be taken.

As part of the implementation of counterparties
management policy, our risk management, finance
and legal and compliance team review transaction
terms and related documents and determine the
need for, and depth of, additional due diligence
of counterparties including counterparties risk and
corresponding the extent of onboarding procedures
required. We have outlined activities and type of
counterparties that our Group does not associate
with, such as those where there is evidence of
forced or child labor, illegal logging and certain
transactions involving market misconduct, mis-selling
or those with negative publicity. For service quality
maintenance purpose, we continue monitoring the
market reputation and business practice of all existing
counterparties.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)

Supply Chain and Counterparties Management
(Continued)

In relation to the sourcing of professional service and
financial data providers, the Group has established
proper tendering and quotation procedures to
engage the most suitable service providers with
criteria tailored for covering areas such as products/
services quality together with internal control and
risk management requirements to manage various
operational risk including credit, reputational and
concentration risks. Consequently, the selection of
counterparties/service providers will factor in all
relevant factors in addition to pricing evaluation.

For internal developed service provision process with
the aim to maximize automation and segregation
of duties to reduce human error, our Group has set
up project management and quality control team to
liaise among different areas of operation including
the development of different products initiatives,
financial infrastructure and applications by developing
procedural manual and regular progress meetings.
The teams ensure the quality services and product
delivered at the standard set by senior management
on a timely manner.

Lastly, business continuity plan (“BCP”) are also
established and tested in preparation for major
financial events or operational disruption occur with
our counterparties in the supply chain to ensure the
going concern of our Group business and serve our
customers.

During the year 2017, the Group has engaged more
than 60 (2016: 60) counterparties, professional service
providers and financial data suppliers mainly from
Hong Kong and China. We have not identified any
non-compliance incidence against our counterparties
management and professional sourcing policy in 2017.
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RE - HERERES

OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)
Product Responsibility

Business integrity and treating customers fairly are
the Group’s core values. The investment committee,
chaired by chief executive officer of the Group with
committee members, oversees all the investment
decision and financial products/services launching
process. To mitigate risks in the new products,
the Group governs the process of introducing new
products with an internal approval process, which
requires approvals from all relevant middle and back
office functions to ensure that our products can meet
high standards based on market practices and related
regulation requirement. All employees are required to
maintain a high level of business ethics and adhere
to all relevant regulations and best practice in the
industry. Throughout different operational regions,
the Group strives to comply with local laws and
regulations imposed by different regulators in the
areas including sales practice, know-your-client
check, credit control, compliance, risk disclosure,
information protection and data security as well as
trademarks and intellectual property. For instance,
we have laid out policies and procedures required
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance and other
relevant regulations, which reviewed by our legal and
compliance department and approved by Corporate
Governance Committee to enable us to live up to the
expectation from our valued customer and community.
During the year, we have successfully launched
the mobile phone application, with three new fund
investment product opened for subscription, a co-
issued note with bank loans as the underlying assets
and launch a wealth management financial product
trading platform.

For our commitment to deliver quality products and
services to our valued customers, we have taken
steps to receive customers’ direct feedbacks through
our website, customer service hotline or via a range of
other channels. In addition, we have put mechanisms
including regular meetings in place to seek inputs
from our front-line business units with first hand
daily interactions with our customers to look for
area of improvement required. During the year, we
have promptly handled all inquire from our clients
mainly handled by our customer service team with
satisfactory result.
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OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)
Product Responsibility (Continued)

Throughout our promotion campaign and press
release, we value the importance of making clear,
concise and transparent information disclosures. It
serves as the key of developing our financial products
and services, which empowers our customers to make
informed choices with their personal wealth and future
growth opportunities.

To serve all of our valued customers, we are
committed to develop innovative solution and user-
friendly technology to offer all clients with high-
quality, affordable products and services tailored
for their needs on a consistent basis. We have not
identified any non-compliance incidence against the
relevant laws and regulations relating to our products
and services in 2017.

Anti-corruption, compliance with law and
regulation

Our Group mainly operates in financial service sector
in Hong Kong and we need to be in full compliance
with all related law and regulation including the
Securities and Futures Ordinances. The overall
governance effort is led by Corporate Governance
Committee and implemented primarily through our
legal, compliance and risk management team. During
the year, we have invested our compliance team
and encourage our employee in relevant business
functions to attend different regulatory training
courses for our employees attaining the up-to-date
knowledge with the new regulations and market
practices. We keep ourselves informed of the law and
regulations applicable to our business as well as their
changes, and also take consideration of the principals
set forth in the applicable laws and regulations when
conducting our business. Where necessary, we further
implement internal policies to strengthen the internal
controls and compliance regime of the Group e.g.
in areas of data privacy, anti-bribery, anti-money
laundering.

At the corporate level, we adhere to the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) requirement. There is reported non-compliance
incidence related to corruption in 2017.
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RE - HERERES

OPERATING PRACTICE (Continued)
Community Investment

The Group is committed to participating in community
events. When we are approached by the charitable
organisation, we would perform due diligence
covering their background, mission and plan. If they
are matched with the vision of the Group for those
in need for help, we will provide financial and other
assistance to maximum practicable extent for us on a
case by case basis.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries ( “the Group”) set out on pages
86 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2017, the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and
of the its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments
Refer to notes 18, 19 and 26 to the consolidated

financial statements and the accounting policies on
pages 107 to 112.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2017, Our audit procedures to assess the
the fair value of the Group’s fair value of financial instruments
financial assets totalled HK$898 included the following:

million of which HK$330 million,

HK$80 million and HK$488 ¢ assessing the design,

million were classified under
the fair value hierarchy as level
1, 2 and 3 financial instruments
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017,
the fair value of the Group’s
financial liabilities totalled
HK$442 million of which HK$78
million and HK$364 million
were classified under the fair
value hierarchy as level 2
and 3 financial instruments
respectively.

The valuation of the Group’s
financial instruments is based
on a combination of market
data and valuation models
which often require judgement.

Some of the inputs used in the
valuation models are obtained
from readily available data for
liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily
available, as in the case of
level 3 financial instruments,
estimates need to be developed
which can involve significant
management judgement.

implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal
controls over the valuation and
valuation model approval for
financial instruments;

assessing the fair values of all
level 1 financial instruments by
comparing the fair values applied
by the Group with publicly
available market data;

reading investment agreements
entered into during the current
year, for level 2 and level 3
financial instruments to understand
the relevant investment terms
and identify any conditions that
were relevant to the valuation of
financial instruments;

engaging our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in
evaluating the valuation models
used by the Group to value certain
level 2 financial instruments and
to perform independent valuations
of level 2 financial instruments and
compare these valuation with the
Group’s valuations. This included
comparing the Group’s valuation
models with our knowledge of
current market practice, testing
inputs to the fair value calculations
and establishing our own valuation
models to perform revaluations.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Assessing the fair value of financial instruments
(Continued)

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

The Key Audit Matter

We identified assessing the fair ¢ assessing the appropriateness
value of financial instruments of the use of the net asset value
as a key audit matter because reports provided by external fund
of the degree of complexity administrators or the quoted price
involved in valuing certain provided by external calculation
financial instruments and agent as the fair value of the level
because of the significant 3 financial instrument at reporting
degree of judgement exercised date. This included comparing
by management in determining the fair value movements against
the inputs used in the valuation available market information. For
models. the valuation of fund interests we
obtained and agreed the latest
reported net asset values from the
fund managers. Our procedures
also included obtaining audited
financial statements of the funds
where applicable and checking the
historical accuracy of the net asset
values;

e assessing whether the disclosures
in the consolidated financial
statements reflected the Group’s
exposure to financial instrument
valuation risk with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP

LIMITED (Continued)

Consolidation of structured entities

Refer to note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages 96

to 98.

The Key Audit Matter

Structured entities are generally
created to achieve a narrow
and well defined objective
with restrictions around their
ongoing activities. The Group
may acquire or retain an
ownership interest in, or act as
a sponsor of, a structured entity
through issuing or acquiring a
wealth management product,
an investment fund, an asset
management scheme, a trust
scheme or an asset-backed
security.

In determining whether a
structured entity is required
to be consolidated by the
Group, management consider
the power the Group is able
to exercise over the activities
of the entity and its exposure
to and ability to influence
its own returns from the
entity. The factors which
management needs to consider
when determining whether a
structured entity should be
consolidated or not are not
purely quantitative and need to
be considered collectively.

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

Our audit procedures to assess the
consolidation of structured entities
included the following:

e making enquiries of management
and inspecting relevant documents
used by management relating
to the judgement process over
whether a structured entity is
consolidated or not to assess
whether the Group has a robust
process in this regard;

e performing the following
procedures for each significant
structured entity set up during the
year, to evaluate management’s
judgement over whether the
structured entity should be
consolidated or not:

— inspecting the related contracts
and internal documents to
understand the purpose of the
establishment of the structured
entity and the involvement of
the Group in order to assess
management’s judgement over
whether the Group has the
ability to exercise power over
the structured entity;
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Consolidation of structured entities (Continued)

How the matter was addressed in
our audit

The Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2017, the — inspecting the risk and reward
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net assets of consolidated fund
entities amounted to HK$574
million with net carrying interest
held by the Group being
HK$417 million. Third parties’
interests in the consolidated
structured entities amounting
to HK$157 million is presented
as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of
financial position.

We identified the consolidation
of structured entities as a key
audit matter because it involves
significant management
judgement in determining
whether a structured entity is
required to be consolidated
by the Group and because
the impact of consolidating
a structured entity on the
consolidated statement of

structure of the structured
entity including any capital or
return guarantee, commission
paid and distribution of
the returns to assess
management’s judgement as to
the Group’s exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the
Group’s involvement in such an
entity;

evaluating management’s
analysis of the structured
entity including qualitative
analysis and calculations of
the magnitude and variability
associated with its economic
interests in the structured
entity to assess management’s
judgement over the Group’s
ability to influence its own
returns from the structured
entity;
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financial position could be e assessing the disclosures in the

significant. consolidated financial statements
in relation to structured entities
with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting
standards.

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
director’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP
LIMITED (Continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and, where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Liu Yun Bonn.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

o Sz
meEWER
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=F=+—HILFE
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RE
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bzt FET FET
Revenue W= 3 21,064 46,120
Other operating income and gains  HA&& W A KUk 4 91,152 34,981
Disposal gains of available-for-sale HE&R#HESREE WS
financial assets 14,961 —
Net loss on financial assets and BRAFEFTABRZESRME
financial liabilities at fair value EREmBEZEETHE
through profit or loss 5 (89,168) (75,688)
Staff costs STHA 6(a) (247,134) (200,094)
Depreciation and amortisation FEMEE (18,531) (7,992)
Other operating expenses Hih K& 6(b) (138,907) (113,888)
Loss from operations REER (366,563) (316,561)
Finance costs ELE=§2 %N 6(c) (9,473) 97)
Net provision for impairment loss  EE{ERE 2 B & 6(d) (2,132) (8,211)
Loss before taxation FRBi AT B 6 (378,168) (324,869)
Income tax R 7(a) (1,138) 8,327
Loss for the year REEEHE (379,306) (316,542)
Loss attributable to equity RABERFE AELER
shareholders of the Company (379,054) (316,688)
(Loss)/profit attributable to non- RS (BR), R
controlling interests F (252) 146
Loss per share attributable to RATEEFEAELMER
equity shareholders of the |
Company
Basic (HK$) BEAKR(GET) 11(a) (0.16) (0.13)
Diluted (HK$) 5% (8 T) 11(b) (0.16) (0.13)

The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends declared

for the year are set out in note 29(d) to the financial

statements.

£ 93F 207 H 2 M 5F 48 B 2N Bf 75 3R 3k — 2B
% - FREEIRZREFFBHAM T 29(d)

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
MEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #BZ =—F—+F+=-F=+—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FET
Loss for the year AEEEE (379,306) (316,542)
Other comprehensive income for the AFEEHM2EKE
year (after tax and reclassification (HREMEHDERAE)
adjustments)
Item that may be reclassified HENEHs EEBE2EE:
subsequently to profit or loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets: AMEEEMEE -
— net movement in fair value reserve — A ERENFEEH 30,260 (2,141)
— deferred taxation — ELEFRBH (820) -
— reclassification adjustments for — B0 ERARHEBNE
amounts transferred to profit or EABENESE
loss on gains on disposal (14,961) -
— reclassification adjustments for — EFoBERAEYRERKX
amounts transferred to profit or EABRZNEE
loss on impairment 1,980 —
Foreign operations INEIZET -
— Exchange differences arising on — BMEEBEBEECER
translation of results =5 2,321 (621)
Total comprehensive income for the AEE2HERGEHAE
year (360,526) (319,304)
Total comprehensive income for the [EEAFERXEKFLALE
year attributable to:
— equity shareholders of the — RARERFEA
Company (360,331) (319,375)
— non-controlling interests — FEERER (195) 71
(360,526) (319,304)
The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these 5593 E 207 H 2 E A A B3Rk —&F 10 -
financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e RN R
At 31 December 2017 R=F—+tF+=F=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment YENRE 13 17,035 21,418
Goodwill and other intangible BEREEEE
assets 14 36,110 21,512
Available-for-sale financial assets At ELREE 18 565,507 99,853
Deferred tax assets BEBIEREE 28(b) — 508
Other non-current assets HiERBEE 17 9,160 10,176
Total non-current assets _ : FROAERE 627,812 153,467
Current assets REEE
Available-for-sale financial assets At HELREE 18 326,691 =
Financial assets at fair value BAVEGABRZERME
through profit or loss = 19 5,936 210,270
Accounts receivable and accrued  FEWBRF R FEHIRA
income 20 74,238 23,611
Other receivables, deposits and HbEWFIE » RERFES
prepayments I 21 65,652 15,024
Bank balance - trust and IRITHET — BERBIER
segregated accounts = 22(b) 340,029 358,544
Fixed bank deposits with original ZIBREARR Z R =18 B KSR1T
maturity over 3 months EHFER 22(e) 1,580,313 524,187
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBRELEEEE 22(a) 2,182,374 3,640,494
Total currentassets ~~ "EBHEE®E 4,575,233 | 4,772,130
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value BEAFEABEZE/ME
through profit or loss & 26 78,063 -
Accounts payable FE{FERFX 23 452,575 370,677
Accrued expenses and other BstERRHMENTRIE
payables 24 101,890 55,483
Obligation under finance lease RIEHEEMIE 27 7,694 842
Current taxation = HEABIR 28(a) 44,259 53,087
Total current liabilities REBEEHESE 684,481 480,089
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,890,752 4,292,041

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR R &

At 31 December 2017 R=F—+tF+=F=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FET FET
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Financial liabilities at fair value BAFEFTABEZ 2SR
through profit or loss =L 26 363,677 =
Obligation under finance lease R E S I 27 15,378 1,385
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEE B 28(b) 177 —
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEETE 379,232 1,385
NET ASSETS EERE 4,139,332 4,444,123
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 29(e) 4,629,094 4,499,548
Reserves ] (489,762) (56,532)
4,139,332 4,443,016
Non-controlling interests R ER - 1,107
TOTAL EQUITY SR 4,139,332 4,444,123

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board on 29
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Ting
zE

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

BITEERITHAH

The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these

financial statements.

TS HEEERAT
eyt

REE-—N\F=A-t+hBESS=SHERE

ETIHLHTIIRERESE
Huang Xin
BE

Executive Director

BITESE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BZ —F—+t#+ A =+—HIEFFEZ

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Biat FET FET
Operating activities KeEES
Cash generated from operations KEFEEEE 22(c) 82,202 132,169
Interest received 2R E 3,758 27
Interest paid FAFE (426) -
Tax paid: [REDE g
— Hong Kong profit tax paid — EREBANEH (9,130) (18,255)
— Overseas tax paid — BB (1,615) (429)
Net cash generated from RETHEE RS FE
operating activities 74,789 113,512
Investing activities REEH
Payment for acquisition of THBEMBAREEE
subsidiaries, net of cash - (1,165)
Proceeds from disposal of HEFATABRE
subsidiaries 15(c) 4,596 —
Payment for purchased of property XfHEBMERHZE
and equipment (4,985) (13,149)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed EEYERREMENRE
asset 24 =
Payment for purchase of intangible X{TEFEE
asset (1,995) (8,911)
Deposit made to other non-current X{HHEMIERHEERS
asset - (12,154)
Proceeds from dividend and 1 HEERMEENRER
distribution income from D ECFTSRIE
available-for-sale financial assets 14,348 -
Proceeds from disposal of )EE—H HHESREERS
available-for-sale financial assets I8 708,841 —
Payment for acquisition of and EH—H HESMEE
contribution made to available-
for-sale financial assets (1,468,617) (101,994)
Increase in fixed bank deposits REHAREE 38 A WEER
placed with original maturity over  {TfE & Hn
3 months (1,056,126) (524,187)
Interest received B UWFE 70,730 26,293
Net cash used in investing RETEFEAZE ST
activities (1,733,184) (635,267)

EHSMABERAR
—T—LEER
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B2 —F—+F+=F=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—REF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
Bt FET FET
Financing activities mEES
Payment made for finance lease XM EHRERIEA
obligation (1,075) —
Net proceeds from issuance of MEBFARIBITELERZHR
preference shares by a subsidiary 57 HE%E 206,194 -
Share repurchase under share RIER M EBGEIEE 2R
award scheme il (260) —
Interest paid 2NFE (5,303) —
Net cash generated from MEETHTEEZR SR
_financing activites 199,556 .
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBREEEBREZAD
equivalents R (1,458,839) (521,755)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 R—B—BzBEE2REEE
January (ERERE! 3,640,494 4,162,922
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXSp o8
changes 719 (673)
Cash and cash equivalentsat31 R+ -A=+—HZzHER
December HEEEER 22(a) 2,182,374 3,640,494
The notes on pages 93 to 207 form part of these £ 93 F 207 B 2 MizF A K ANBF #E R ‘T — BB ©

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yunfeng Financial Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in
Hong Kong, the shares of which are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
registered office of the Company is Suites 3201-
3204, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place,
Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are securities
brokerage, consultancy and advisory services
and investment research together with new
principal activities including wealth management,
employee stock ownership plan administration
and principal investment. The principal activities
and other particulars of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which
is the functional currency of the Company, and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R AR B R

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and
revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 2(c) provides information
on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries including the
consolidated structured entities (collectively
the “Group”) and the Group’s interests in
associates.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is
the historical cost basis except that the
following assets are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set
out below:

— Financial assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (see note
2(j) and 2(q))

— Derivative financial instruments (see
note 2(k))

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see
note 2(m))
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEBE#E)
(Continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) MBHRZEREE(E

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments to HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period
of the Group. None of these developments
have had a material effect on how the
Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. However, additional disclosure
has been included in note 22 (c) to satisfy
the new disclosure requirements introduced
by the amendments to HKAS 7, Statement
of cash flows: Disclosure initiative, which
require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current account period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the
equity in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed
any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at their
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEHBXR#E)
(Continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d) MEBARRFIZRER (&
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation
of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from
holders of non-controlling interests and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate
or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see note 2(i)(i)), unless the investment is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

The Group served as the manager of funds.
The funds invest mainly in equities, debt
securities and monetary market instruments.
The Group’s percentage ownership in these
structured entities can fluctuate from day to
day according to the Group’s and third-party
participation in them. Where the Group is
deemed to control such funds, with control
determined based on an analysis of the
guidance in HKRS 10 “Consolidated financial
statements”, they are consolidated, with the
interests of parties other than the Group
being classified as liabilities because there
is a contractual obligation for the relevant
group entity as an issuer to repurchase or
redeem units or return of capital in such
funds for cash. These are presented as
“Third-party interests in consolidated funds”
within financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or
joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEBE#E)
(Continued)
(e) Associates (Continued) (e) HEAT (&

An investment in an associate is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s
share of the acquisition-date fair values
of the investee’s identifiable net assets
over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment
(see note 2(i)(i)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds
its interest in the associate, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity
method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

()

Associates (Continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes
an investment in a joint venture, retained
interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method.

When the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at
the date when significant influence is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and
is tested annually for impairment (see note

2(i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see note 2(i)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the
cost of items of property and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Shorter of the
unexpired term of
lease and 5 years

— Leasehold
improvements

— Office equipment 5 years
and furniture

— Computers 3— 5 years
equipment

Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually
by the Group.

Leased assets

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

Leased assets (Continued)

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets
are recognised as property and equipment
and the corresponding liabilities, net of
finance charges, are recorded as obligations
under finance leases and impairment losses
(see note 2(i)(ii)). Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation
of the assets over the term of the relevant
lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset. Finance charges implicit in the
lease payments are charged to profit or
loss over the period of the leases so as to
produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of
the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, available
for sale financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables

Investments in subsidiaries, associates,
accounts receivable and other
receivables that are carried at cost
or amortised cost are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists,
any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries
and associates, the impairment
loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount in the
investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note
2(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note

2(i)(ii).

— For accounts receivable and
other receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar
risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, available
for sale financial assets, accounts
receivable and other receivables
(Continueqd)

If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.

For an available-for-sale financial
assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that
investment below its cost is
considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. When
an available-for-sale financial
asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.
Losses previously recognised in
profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any
increase in fair value subsequent
to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve. In
respect of available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed through
profit or loss if an increase in the
fair value of the investment can
be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at each
reporting date to identify indications
that the following assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property and equipment;

intangible assets; and
— goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there
is any indication of impairment.

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised
in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.
A reversal of impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in
the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

2

TESTEER#E)

(i)

EERMEGE)
(i) REEZmE

B Bl E 1R

HWEEXEMBREE
EBENZREEBHE
AW E SR BB EE
BREZAER - BB
EELEENVBRINEE
BREELTRI WD EE
BeEXBNM(HEMN
M)NEMEE ZRE
B RERL PR DZ
BU(REMAINEE
REE HEEREE
TEREENEER D
FENBREERAR (T
STE)SEAEEZKF
(A EEE) °

72 [0 6t (B 5 12

AREEUIINEE
fisd P EE E A e B £ &R
METHEERNES
HMEBEISED &
BRESBETEERED
B E B IR BT 2 % 58 B
fisd 38 1 & = I R E 5
BEMREEE 2EER
HERR - MERSIER
Bl 7 53 = 7 3z F E Rt

Az o

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESIHBE#AE)
(Continued)
(i) Financial assets at fair value through (i) BRAFEABZZEREE

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured initially at fair
value, which normally will be equal to the
transaction price. Transaction costs are
expensed immediately.

The Group recognises financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss on the
date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument, using trade
date accounting.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss comprise financial assets held for
trading and those designated as at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition, but exclude those investments
in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are carried at fair value. Changes
in the fair value are included in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.
Upon disposal or repurchase, the difference
between the net sale proceeds or the net
payment and the carrying value is included
in the income statement.

The fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is based on their
quoted market prices at the end of reporting
period without any deduction for estimated
future selling costs. Financial assets are
priced at current bid prices, while financial
liabilities are priced at current asking prices.

If there is no publicly available latest traded
price nor a quoted market price on a
recognised stock exchange or a price from
a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it
is not active, the fair value of the instrument
is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices
which could be obtained in actual market
transactions. The inputs of the valuation
techniques are based on market data.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

U]

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

A financial asset is derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or where the
financial asset together with substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, have
been transferred.

The Group uses the weighted average
method to determine realised gains and
losses to be recognised in the income
statement on derecognition.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are
recognised initially at fair value. At the
end of each reporting period, the fair
value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Accounts receivable and other receivables

Accounts receivable and other receivables
are initially recognised at fair value and
thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(i)(i)), except where the receivables are
interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEBE#E)
(Continued)

(m) IHHESHMEE

(m) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets as at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income
calculated using the effective interest
method and dividends on available-for-
sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve, until the financial
asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group’s right to receive the
dividends is established.

Intangible assets

The intangible assets that are acquired
by the Group are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation (where the
estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see note 2(i)(ii)). Amortisation begins
when the asset is available for use, i.e. when
it is in the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Computers software 3 — 5 years
Intangible assets are not amortised while
their useful lives are assessed to be
indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether
events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment
for that asset. If they do not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for prospectively from the
date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets
with finite lives as set out above.

Accounts payable and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables
are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

2

TESTHREE)
(n) BEEEE)

(o)

(p)

ERERUERAFHzETLEEZ
BEDREEMGAEAFHANL
HHEERSEPHMERNOT ¢

I

<

i)

-EAEs 3 —5%F
AMERERERAEHFH ZER
EETEHE TARELAERE
RACAFH 2B EESTER
AN UEEEHAREARGHEE
XEHEREEIDAERERYEAF
Ho W MBERAIEAFH - A&
EZERFERTEEHERERA
PR - 30 B 2 E) A LR IE £ AT
ERFHAERzETLEE#EIR
RAREARR °

FE £ B B L At FE A4 =R IH

A BRI HA A FRIRA H R A
FE®RR  HRAZRBHEKART
BR - RRIFREIRESBEN - BIEZE
MTERAFIIR

FFEEE

AERENSEAFENBREMLR
5 RATER - RS HRABE » 578
BEDRBHEBASIR - ML H#
wEEEEDEE 2 EMEE E
BEMEMFNERER  HRAE
BMAEEEREPERBEREANE

.
. ©

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHBEME)
(Continued)
() Financial liabilities at fair value through () BRAFESABENEKERS

profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liability is (i) contingent
consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination
to which HKFRS 3 applies, (ii) held for
trading or (iii) those designated as at FVTPL.
A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of
a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated
and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading or contingent
consideration may be paid by an acquirer
as part of a business combination may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a
group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the
Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

(r)

it forms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives, and
HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 33.

Employee benefits

(i)

(iii)

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
employees.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident
Funds as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

The fair value of share awards and
share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in share-
based payment capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Black-Scholes
model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the share
awards and options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEBE#E)
(Continued)
(q) Financial liabilities at fair value through (r EEEFNGE)

profit or loss (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share awards and share options that
are expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-
based payment reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of share awards and
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the share-based
payment reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for
the shares issued) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profit).

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised,
are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition
of deferred tax assets and liabilities are
those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets
and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each reporting date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.
Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised
when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEBE#E)
(Continued)

() BERIREEE)

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received or receivable.
Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Brokerage commission income

Brokerage commission income is
recognised on a trade date basis when
the relevant transactions are executed.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Handling and settlement fee income,
subscription, management and rebate
fee income and consultancy and
advisory fee income

Handling and settlement fee income,
subscription, management and rebate
fee income and consultancy and
advisory fee income are recognised
when the related services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R AR B R

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Consultancy and advisory fee settled
with non-cash consideration

Consultancy and advisory fee
settled with non-cash transaction is
recognised at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable,
which represents at the transaction
price of such consideration as initially
determined. When the outcome of the
transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably,
revenue associated with the transaction
shall be recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction
at the end of the reporting period.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

Exchange differences relating to investments
at fair value through profit or loss and
derivative financial instruments are included
in gains less losses from trading securities
or financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss.

Exchange differences relating to available
for sales debt instruments are included in
income statement.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 IFEEBE#E)
(Continued)
(v) Translation of foreign currencies (v) HEgE(E)
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Items of statement of financial
position, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired
on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve. Goodwill
arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate
that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to the income
statement when the profit or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Fiduciary activities

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course
of the regulated business activities. The
Group has classified the “bank balances -
trust and segregated accounts” within the
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to
respective clients and other institutions on
the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies.

The Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.
The cash held on behalf of customers is
restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over
the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(3 is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third party.

(5) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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2 SIGNIFICAN
(Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

T ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(x) Related parties (Continued)

(iiy (Continued)

(8)

Clos

The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
the Group’s parent.

e members of the family of a

person are those family members who

may
influ
deali

(y) Segment
Operatin

of each
consolid

be expected to influence, or be
enced by, that person in their
ngs with the entity.

reporting
g segments, and the amounts

segment item reported in the
ated financial statements, are

identified from the financial information

provided
senior e
purposes
assessing

regularly to the Group’s most
xecutive management for the
of allocating resources to, and
the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting

purpose

s unless the segments have

similar economic characteristics and are

similar in

respect of the nature of products

and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating

segments

which are not individually material

may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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B B R AR B R

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(2)

(aa)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other short-term highly liquid
investment that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in
value, having been within three month of
maturity at acquisition.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Fair value of derivative and financial
instruments

The Group selects appropriate valuation
techniques for financial instruments which
are classified as level 2 and 3 investments
in accordance with the Group’s significant
accounting policies. Note 33 provides
detailed information about the key
assumptions used in the determination
of the fair value of material financial
instruments.

2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(aa) Critical Accounting Judgements and

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Determination of consolidation scope

All facts and circumstances must be taken
into consideration in the assessment of
whether the Group, as an investor, controls
the investee. The principle of control sets
out the following three elements of control:
(a) power over the investee; (b) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from involvement
with the investee; and (c) the ability to use
power over the investee to affect the amount
of the investor’s returns.

An investor’s initial assessment of control
or its status as a principal or an agent
would not change simply because of a
change in market conditions (e.g. a change
in the investee’s returns driven by market
conditions), unless the change in market
conditions changes one or more of the three
elements of control listed above or changes
the overall relationship between a principal
and an agent.

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group assesses the variable returns arising
from other equities and uses plenty of
judgments, in combination with historical
exposure to variable returns, to determine
the consolidation scope.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

3 REVENUE 3

The principal activities of the Group are wealth
management, securities broking, employee stock
ownership plan administration, corporate finance
advisory and investment research and principal
investment.

Revenue represents the gross amount recognised
during the year. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows:

Wy

FEBZIEXBRAVEERE  BHE
L-BIFRFIBEE  CXREZH
EREMANEERE -

WHEFANEHEI ZBE - AEERA
FEZWHEBINOT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
Brokerage commission RELEMAE 2,019 3,819
Subscription, management and RiE - EEBREHNKA
rebate fees income 3,791 —
Consultancy and advisory fees BRI REAE 11,110 42,274
Interest income from loan receivables RHBEEF ZFEUWA 3,719 =
Interest income from clients and other REEWERZFEWM AR
service income H i fR 75 U A 425 27
21,064 46,120
4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME AND 4 HKEWARREFRZ
GAINS
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Handling and settlement fees FEEBENEEEA 2,281 458
Bank and other interest income SRITREMFIE U A 72,476 32,926
Dividend and distribution income from TAI{EHESHMEENRER
available-for-sale financial assets 2 U A 14,348 —
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A AR W& 756 -
Other income FEIE A 1,291 1,597
91,152 34,981

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BRI
5 NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 5 BRAVEFABRGZZERMEERS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE REEZEREE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS
2017 2016
—EB—+tHF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Net unrealised gain/(loss) on financial RAFEFABRZEHEE
assets at fair value through profit or FRZIRULZE ~(EiE)FEE
loss
— Over the counter derivative — BARZE/MITE
contracts/options IH BB (1,327) (20,124)
— Equity investment listed outside — BEBBHNLLTRERE
Hong Kong (15,492) (29,143)
— Equity investment listed in Hong — BERLTRERE
Kong - 17,211
(16,819) (32,056)
Net realised loss on financial RATEFABRZERMERE
assets at fair value through B2 EIEFEE
profit or loss
— Unlisted option issued by a — BELMATEITH
Hong Kong listed company I Em R RE (5,470) —
— Equity investment listed in — BBLTRERE
Hong Kong (59,253) (43,632)
(64,723) (43,632)
Fair value change of financial liabilities 1RQFET AEZRE 2
at fair value through profit or loss TRBEZ AT ERZE (7,626) —
(89,168) (75,688)

B eMEEERAT .
ST LEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R AR B R

6

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging:

6

BRELATE 1B
BRBLRI IR C HIBR T 515 ¢

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FBT
(a) Staff costs (a) EIRA
Commission paid [EEREEA 1,009 84
Equity-settled share-based REGEURODAERZ
payment expenses (note 30) B (H12£ 30) 56,712 2,084
Salaries, allowances and e RUREVMER
benefits in kind 177,114 166,789
Resignation and termination BEBAIBHEE R
benefit 971 23,900
Social welfare HEEF 11,328 7,237
247,134 200,094

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for all qualified employees in Hong
Kong. The Group contributes certain percentage
of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, and the
contribution is matched by employees but subject
to a maximum amount for each employee. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees.

The domestic employees of the Group in the
PRC participate in state-managed social welfare
plans, including social pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, health care insurance,
housing funds and other social welfare plan
operated by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments. According to the relevant
regulations, the premiums and welfare benefit
contributions borne by the Group are calculated
and paid to the relevant labour and social welfare
authorities on a regular basis. The social pension
insurance and unemployment insurance are
defined contribution plans. The contributions to
the defined contribution plans are expensed as
incurred.

During the year, wealth management products
and securities brokerage transaction fees
approximately amounted to HK$1,500,000 were
waived as part of staff benefit scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B R R R M EE
6 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BRBIAIEIEE)
2017 2016
—E—tEF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(b) Other operating expenses (b) HMZEEX
Auditors’ remuneration Z e & 2,220 1,850
Legal and professional costs EERBXEEM ()
(Note) 66,241 20,553
Operating lease ReRE
payments — property rentals MIE — YFEEE 24,689 19,854
Information, data and Bl BERBAMX
communication expenses 33,139 30,467
Net exchange (gain) loss BN (W) BEFEE (16,276) 3,609
Entertainment and travelling FE B K2 2= Fik 7,220 5,457
Note: it includes HK$47.3 million legal and professional fee i HPEFE473EEBTREBXEEER
related to the acquisition of 60% of the issued share FREE N ERR AT 2 TR 60% RABE
capital of MassMutual Asia Limited. EEREXER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(c) Finance costs (c) BERX
Finance lease obligation RIEHERE 823 -
Preference share liability BEREE 8,230 =
Other Interest expense HAth &b & B A 420 97
9,473 97
2017 2016
—E—tEF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
(d) Net provision for impairment (d) BFREBEZRE
loss
(Reversal)/provision for Goodwill (B8, BEEE - 1,165
Other receivables H{th FE I BRFX - 6,953
Account receivables FE W BR X (463) 93
Fixed asset BEEE 615 -
Available for sales investment THHESHEE 1,980 =
2,132 8,211

TS HEEERAT
eyt
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B SRR M &

7

INCOME TAX

(a)

7

Taxation in the consolidated income

statement represents:

B
REWBRZBWEENEK

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current tax S IE
Provision for the year - AEERE-FB
Hong Kong - 11,254
Provision for the year — Overseas ZRFE#EE-FEBEIN 1,270 1,298
Over-provision in respect of BEFERBED
prior years (16) (2,176)
Total current tax charge for AEEFEZ LB
the year 1,254 10,376
Deferred tax IR FE R 18
Reversal of temporary differences (O = B i =& (116) (18,703)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the REELRRSHIE
year B/ (¥MmE) 1,138 (8,327)

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax for
2017 is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profits for the
year. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is
charged at the appropriate current rates of
taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

RoZ— L EEBREH 2 BE L
A 2 3t B3R BRI B 16.5%
(=% — < :16.5%) 5 & o 4}
HEAR > HES U ABERS B
FTREEE o
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7 INCOME TAX (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and

Notes to the Financial Statements
g S EL R

7 FiS®i(#E)

(b) BEMXHERBEABRIEZES

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: Al 2 #ER
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Loss before taxation BB AIE B (378,168) (324,869)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, IR HEBR 2B R:TE 2
calculated at the rate applicable BREAIEBE 2 BEERMIE
to profit in the country concerned (63,290) (55,567)
Tax effect of non-deductible NGRS ¥ 5
expenses 30,959 47,056
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue B AT A 2B 52 & (15,446) (15,052)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax SC A R TERE B AR I8
losses previously not recognised  EiE 2RSS & (2,781) (633)
Tax effect of tax losses not AERBRIEEE 2B E
recognised 46,841 35,529
Over-provision in prior years BEFERE (EO)R 2 (16) (2,176)
Taxable temporary difference HE s HREER
reversal - (18,171)
Others Hith 4,871 687
Actual tax expense/(credit) BEFHIERS (EO) 1,138 (8,327)

EHeMEBERAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B i SRR M &

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and part 2 of the Company (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulations are as follows:

8 EEME

RIS B B D TR 51 5 383(1) 1& 61 & A
AREEEANEZER)RAF2HKE
ZEEMENT ¢

2017
“E-tF
Salaries, Contributions
allowances Discretionary to Mandatory Share-based
Directors’ and benefits bonus  Provident payments  Resignation
fees in kind (note i) Fund  Sub-total (note ii) payment Total

URHA
FooBER  BBHRL Bl BB 2f%

g ENFlR (1) DESER Nt (fit2) ERAR ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEn FEr Fén FEn FEr FEr FEr FEr
Chairman if
Yu Feng Rt - - - - - - - -
Executive directors UrEs
Huang Xin B - - - - - - - -
Li Ting (note v) 3B(Hits) - 7,644 9,360 18 17,022 - - 17,022
Non-executive directors ~ F#{TEZ
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson 5B 300 15 - - 315 - - 315
Hai Olivia Ou ety - - - - - - - -
Huang Youlong (note i)~ E&E(M3) - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BuZTEE
directors
Chu Chung Yue, Howard ~ XFF 360 18 - - 378 - - 378
Lin Lijun HAE 240 12 - - 252 - - 252
Qi Daging EAR 240 12 - - 252 - - 252
Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David ~ EREBL(fi4)
(note 23 18 - - %5 - - %6
Totel 198 1M 90 8 18485 - - 18485
Notes: et
i The discretionary bonus amount represents bonus 1 HERASBERENR=-Z—tFERFR
accrued and approved for the year 2017. ZEZBETEAL ©

ii All directors are not entitled to share awards or 2 P8 =5 SR R A B 5 2(r) (i) B S B AR 12
share options as set out in note 2(r)(iii). BB AR o

iii Resigned as non-executive director on 11 January 3 REZ2E-—NF-—A+—HBREFHTES
2018 A5 o

iv  Resigned as independent non-executive director on 4 R-ZZE—tE+ - A=HFEBILEFIT
3 November 2017 EHER -

v Amount of approximately HK$699,000 transaction 5 “E—tFEHN699,000ETHRERE

and management fee was waived or rebated for the
year 2017.

HEEREEHRR -
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BRI
8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EEM=#)
2016
“E-nE
Salaries, Contributions
allowances to Mandatory
Directors' ~ and benefits  Discretionary ~ Provident Share-based  Resignation
fees in kind bonus Fund  Sub-fotal  payments payment Total
N it B
EShe  EBUAE  MEBERL  DEREE Nt BBzfiR BRAR fay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr Fér Fén Fér Fér F&n FEr Fér
Chairman IE
Yu Feng Eit - - - - - - - -
Executive directors HiES
Huang Xin B - - - - - - - -
Li Ting 3 - 7,644 9,360 18 17,022 - - 17,02
Brett McGonegal Brett McGonegal 494 - - 8 497 - 16,279 16,776
Non-executive directors  FiH{TE%
Ko Chun Shun, Johnson ~~~ BiFIE 300 11 - 4 315 - - 315
Hai Olivia Ou 58 - - - - - - - -
Huang Youlong EHRE - - - - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUEH{TES
directors
ChuChung Yue, Howard %% 360 18 - - 378 = = 378
Lin Lijun HHE 240 12 - - 252 - - 252
Qi Daging EXE 209 10 - - 219 - - 219
Liu Zhengui A& 75 4 - - 79 - - 79
Dr.Wong YauKar, David ~ ERERL 300 15 - - 315 = = 315
Total & 1,978 7,714 9,360 25 19,077 - 16,279 35,356

The executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of

the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors

of the Company.

EHeMEBERAT
—E—tEEH

LA TEESHEFEZRAHEARRTR

FEESHEETENRE

LHRFHRITESRBIYUFHNTESHE

FERPTRANESRS °
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B SRR M &

9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, one (2016: two) is a director whose
emoluments is disclosed in note 8. The aggregate

it

=
BX

AL

EEEEHFALTESL —B(ZF— R
FZR)ABEEREMESCHBENRMEE
8o BB NMENBZ(ZE—FRE: =ZF)A

of the emoluments in respect of the other four TS ARBENT -
(2016: three) individuals are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #% - 2R EYR 16,338 20,823
Discretionary bonus EYBIEAL 400 3,609
Equity-settled share-based payment BEEEURDABER 2
expenses (note 1) NREX(HE 1) 17,218 —
Contributions to Mandatory Provident @&t A TEE1
Fund 72 50
34,028 24,482

Note 1: These represent the estimated value of share
award granted to the individuals under the
company’s share award scheme. The value of
these share awards are measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(r)(iii)
and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in
previous years where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

a1 :

BLERRERARERBTETRTE
ARBERBHOMGHER - ZFRDER
Z BB T AR 15 B 5 2(r) (iii) PR 8k 2 A &=
BUROBER 2NHRRS 2S5 HE
&8 EhEaEERBAT R E g%
TRETIAEMOBEFFREE LR
o
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B 7% R 3= B =
9 INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 9 RBeEHFALTHE)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The emoluments of the five (2016: five) FEBREHEALT(ZTE—RE  E8)2

individuals with the highest emoluments are e RER LT EE :
within the following bands:

Number of individuals

EEAE
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RE
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 & 7T £ 4,000,000 38 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 T Z 5,500,000 58 7 1 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T Z 6,000,000 8 7T 1 -
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 T2 7,000,000 8 7T 1 -
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 &t £ 7,500,000 7 1T - 1
HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000 13,000,001 7t £ 13,500,000 /& T - 1
HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 16,000,001 &7t £ 16,500,000 /& T 1 -
HK$16,500,001 to HK$17,000,000 16,500,001 7t £ 17,000,000 /& T - 1
HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 17,000,001 &t £ 17,500,000 & 7T 1 1
10 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 ARREREEAELESE
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity ARAREBEREARGGEEEEES
shareholders of the Company includes an 15423,943,000 B T (= —<F : FHiE
approximate loss of HK$423,943,000 (2016: a 207,430,00038 7T ) » BRAA TR
loss of HK$207,430,000) which has been dealt RABRE -
with in the financial statements of the Company.
11 LOSS PER SHARE 11 BREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREFRERE
The calculation of basic loss per share BEREAREBEDNIRBZE-_Z—tF
is based on the loss attributable to TZA=t+—-HALEFEZARARE
equity shareholders of the Company @mH A A8 379,054,000 &
for the year ended 31 December 2017 T(Z=Z—7"F ! 518316,688,000
of HK$379,054,000 (2016: a loss of BLT)IRBE-Z-—tH+=A
HK$316,688,000), and the weighted average Et+t—HLEFERESEHTRMEZM
number of shares in issue during the year FE 7 19 #2,402,313,939 R (= &
ended 31 December 2017 of 2,402,313,939 —RF 12,399,336,394 %) 5T E o
(2016: 2,399,336,394).
EsmEEERAR 133
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11 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

11 SREBE)

(a) Basic loss per share (Continued) (a) ERELREEE
Weighted average number of ordinary EARZINEFIG9E
shares
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—B—HE#T2ZBER 2,399,336,394 2,399,336,394

Effect of issue of shares under share
award scheme

Effect of repurchase of shares under
share award shares

RIERERBTEBTRE 2

g 2,977,835 =
RiERERBTEEERT 2

7 (290) =

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares at 31 December

RtZA=t—-RE#TRHZ

TnREF 8 2,402,313,939  2,399,336,394

(b) Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share
is based on the loss attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2017
of HK$379,054,000 (2016: a loss of
HK$316,688,000), and the weighted average
number of shares during the year ended
31 December 2017 of 2,402,313,939 (2016:
2,399,336,394).

(b)

BREEER

ERBEEENREBE-ZS—tF
+ZA=+—BLEFEZAQATE
w=iFHE A4 E538 379,054,000 78
TT(ZZ—7"F : E5# 316,688,000
BLXT)RBE=-Z—tH&E+=H
=t+—BLEFEREZTRME2M
FE 7 15 212,402,313,939 R (= =
— N 1 2,399,336,394 iR )T E o

Weighted average number of ordinary BBERZINEFGE (#E)
shares (diluted)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RE
Weighted average number of ordinary A+=ZBA=+—HBEEBRZ
shares at 31 December I 2,402,313,939  2,399,336,394

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (diluted) at 31 December

RT+ZBA=+—BHERTRHZ

MEFHH(HE) 2,402,313,939 2,399,336,394

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The operating segments have been determined
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors of the Company that are used for
performance assessment and to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other operating segments.
During the interim period ended 30 June 2017,
management decided to streamline the operation
flow and regrouped the securities placing and
underwriting segment and combined the related
relevant functions with securities brokerage
and consultancy and advisory services. With
the continuous growth of wealth management
division, management considered it to be a
separate operating segment. To monitor and
measure the return of capital more effectively,
management further decide to review the
performance of wealth management division and
the return of Group’s capital including the capital
invested in the products and funds managed
by the wealth management segment separately
going forward.

Comparative figures in prior year have been
restated to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

The Group currently has four operating segments:

(i) Securities brokerage — engages in securities
brokerage and provision of custodian and
other services;

(i) Wealth management — provision of fund
and asset management services as well
as financing and investing solution for
corporate client and

B 35 SRR MY RE

2 EHRE

REDBIORBEARXAHNTESHEH
I PR T fh R IR % AF H SRR TE 2 3
EMEE -  AEBZEEEBHREH
ERMERFREMEZE R R R E 5 E
THERER AEESEEIRRE
—EARBEEBEN  BRZEGRR
PR AN 2 BB K A 1S 2 [ 3R S8 AL Al 45
EDWAE - REZE2017F6A30H L
THIHE  EEEREMLLEERE
ERSEERSFREMABEEBL NI - X
AR AR SRR HHEH
RBHEES  BEVESEEHPINGE
R EEESHEAR/BLEEEM -
RTERVRHEENGEELRDRK - B
BEEREE-DDRIFEMEEERM
MEBENEEEN(BERENUEER
HEENERNESNER)NERK -

EFENEBRBBECEHNI2E - UFEE
FHREZZHARX ©

AEERENELEEDE
() RWHELEL — NEIFLELER
MR HEERBME MR

(i) MEEE — RUESNEEERE
B URBEEEFHEREM
REBRIRE R

B MEBERA o~
T LEFEHR
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12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(iii) Consultancy and advisory services —
engage in provision of corporate advisory,
placing and underwriting advisory services
to corporate clients.

(iv) Principal investment — utilize capital 1) to
provide funding on developing financial
products and the funds managed by wealth
management team 2) to improve returns
on the Group’s capital and cash flow
management based on treasury management
model that may involve (but shall not be
limited to) holding fixed income instruments,
high grade equity instruments and other
financial investments.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those followed by the
Group in the last annual financial statements.

Segment revenue represents the revenue
generated by each operating segment from
external customers. Inter-segment revenue
represents inter-segment services which
were transacted with reference to the normal
commercial price made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

Segment results represent specific operating
performance of the reported segments by
allocating all specific and related operating and
finance costs, excluding other corporate, general
administrative, and financial expenses, taxation
and non-operating costs. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision maker, at
the relevant times, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

12

DB E ()

(i) EREARZHAERE — ALEEFR
HAEER > BREFNRERE -

(iv) TBRE — ERESEEEN
EARIR(ERRMBFEEEE
EWATEH SRABIRETANHE
thERMRERSEEELRANETR
BEEEMNER -

AHED B2 ETBRERKEER G
FEMBHRRMRBEERR -

THRAESELEIMENNETFEE
ZWA e 2EERAESREZERME
BE=FFHZ -—REXERMETR
5 27 GhE RS -

DTMEEREERDBEBIEAAERE
REAEERFYBERAN(REBEEML
A —RITHEPBAX - HERFE
ERA)FEZRBELERR  WIRA
BSEERTEIELERREFEERD
BERRRAEAEGEEE -
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g S EL R

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 D EBIRE ()

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DB ARESE

2017
“E-tF
Consultancy
Securities Wealth and advisory Principal
brokerage Management services  Investment Total
BERAH
FEEL HEER fR#% IERE @t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T FEn FEn FEn o

Revenue from external parties ~ REMBA L2z 2,019 3,791 11,110 - 16,920
Interest from client and interest REZFZFER
from loan receivable EER A EWKBA 39 3,719 - - 3,758
Inter-segment revenue AEBEUA - 2,439 15,968 - 18,407
Reportable segment revenue THRE WA 2,058 9,949 27,078 - 39,085
Net loss on financial assets BAVE ARG
at fair value through profit SREERSRMEEL
or loss BETE - (1,327) - (87,841) (89,168)
Allocated bank and other interest 2 2ERTR
income Eﬂﬁ%ﬂ A 551 1,072 - 54,506 56,129
Allocated other operating income B2 EEAELRA K
and gains H&Zm 2,459 187 - 46,131 48,777
Allocated operating costs EAEEE KA (27,295) (71,527 (24,633) (6,204) (129,659)
Allocated finance cost B ERERA (442) (782) - (8,230) (9,454)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A4k 2 38 (&) /A8 (22,669) (62,428) 2,445 (1,638) (84,290)
Elimination of inter-segment REL B (ER) /AR
(loss)/profit F3f | (12,868)
Reportable segment loss R E 9# SALZ
derived from group’s THRESBER
external customers (97,158)
Unallocated revenue and other ~ RENBA L 2R PEEA
operating income and gains REWAR
from external parties 1,593
Depreciation and amortisation ~ TEF 8 (18,531)
Unallocated finance costs RABRERR (19)
Unallocated legal and ROBEEREXER
professional expenses (52,348)
Taxation B (1,138)
Other central administrative Hih R THEERAR
and unallocated operating ROBEERA ML)
costs (Note) (211,705)
Loss for the year FEEEE (379,306)
Note: The other central administrative and K B RTHREER RS EALZE
unallocated operating cost includes RATZEETHEEERARES
administrative expenses, research and BEMABENERA - A B KK
development costs, staff costs and data and REEFNBEEREMOEEER -

technology related expenses related to the
Group’s financial technology activities.

B eMEEERAT -
ST LEEH
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B SRR M &

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@) Segment revenue and results (Continued)

(b)

12 78]
(a) ZERBARREGE

2016 (restated)
ZE-RE(EM)
Consultancy
Securities Wealth and advisory Principal
brokerage Management services  Investment Total
FEEE]
BELL BEEE FRH TZRE b
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FEx FEx TEr TEn
Revenue from external parties ~ REMPA L2z 3,819 = 42274 = 46,093
Interest from client REEFZFIBHA 27 - - - 27
Reportable segment revenue EREDHRA 3,846 = 42,274 = 46,120
Net loss on financial assets at ~ RAFEHAER2ERE
fair value through profitor loss  ERERAEERFH - - - (75,688) (75,688)
Allocated bank and other interest 22 E#R1TR H 518
income 9N - - - 32,926 32,926
Allocated other operating income B2 EEA1ZZ R A
and gains 2,056 = = = 2,056
Allocated operating costs EABREERA (29,689) (18,967) (25,515) (9,356) (83,527)
Reportable segment (loss)/profit  AI#RE2H(EE),/ FE (23,787 (18,967) 16,759 (52,118) (78,113)
Elimination of inter-segment TREN I (ER) FIBHH
(loss)/profit —
Reportable segment loss REMIALZ
derived from group’s IREI BER
external customer (78,113)
Written back for impairment loss  E At FEREETRERE 2
of other receivables FEE 1,257
Provision for impairment loss of HERELE2HE
goodwil (1,165)
Depreciation and amortisation &M ## (7,992)
Finance costs MERAK (97)
Unallocated legal and ROBEEREXER
professional expenses (19,172)
Taxation #iE 8,327
Other central administrative and  EfFRTHEBRAR K
unallocated operating costs PEEERAK (219,587)
Loss for the year rEEFR (316,542)

Segment assets and liabilities

As the assets and liabilities are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the
Company as a whole, the measure of total
assets and liabilities by operating segment
is therefore not presented.

(b) PHMEERAE

HRAEESTESEHEREN
EEREE ARYB2IERKE
DHE PR EEREEHEER

pi=3
=

o
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B 7% R 3k B =

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 oHHRE (&)
(c) Geographical segment information (c) HESBER
The Group’s customers, operation and AEEZEF EBRITHEEE
administration are mainly located in Hong EURER MEENESBE MW
Kong and research and development on B IRAIRR I AHE o

financial technologies divisions are located
in the People’s Republic of China.

(d) Information about major customers (d) BREFEREFZER

Revenue from major

customers
REXFEEFZWA
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
Operating Segment HK$°000 HK$’000
&I FET FET
Customer A Wealth management & F A BEEE 2,824 —
Consultancy and
Customer B advisory service ZEFB EEE] 2,100 =
The transactions with customer did not BREEFETZRSZLAEEEZE
account for more than 10% of the total —E-RE+TZA=tT—HLEFE
revenue of the Group for the period ended ZHEWREFE10% U £ o
31 December 2016.
ERCREEBRAT 139
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13 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 13 MERRKE

140

Office
Leasehold equipment Computers Motor
improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total
HENELE BLARERER ERRE BE L H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET FEx FiE7 FiEx THEx
Cost AR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F—H 7,067 5,410 8,697 726 21,900
Additions "E 4,796 1,330 8,745 - 14,871
Exchange alignment MERRTEERNT (193) (67) (95) - (355)
At 31 December 2016 RZIE-RE
e ToAST-R O men SUERE Ut - 20,4167
At 1 January 2017 RZE—t5-HA-H 11,670 6,673 17,347 726 36,416
Additions nE 3,686 1,501 1,333 - 6,520
Disposal RE - - (114) - (114
Disposal of a subsidiary LERBAR (308) (10) (29) = (341)
Exchange alignment MEBENEERNTE 418 146 169 - 733
At 31 December 2017 R-B-—t&
e ToAET-R 15486 8310 LT % 8214
Accumulated depreciation  EifTERFE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A—H 1,533 2,974 3,423 40 7,970
Charge for the year REEXH 2,706 1,001 3,147 242 7,096
Exchange alignment MERRTEERNTE (34) (1) (29) - (68)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-RE
+ZA=1-H 4,205 3,964 6,547 282 14,998
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t%-5-H 4,205 3,964 6,547 282 14,998
Charge for the year AEESH 4,328 1,358 4,765 242 10,693
Impairment for the year REEHE 108 320 187 - 615
Disposal EE - - (23) - (23)
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAR (308) 9) (22) - (339)
Exchange alignment MERRTEERNTE 126 29 80 — 235
At 31 December 2017 RZE—LF
t=B=+-H 8,459 5,662 11,534 524 26,179
Net carrying amount RERE
At 31 December 2017 R-B-—t&
+=A=t-H 7,007 2,648 7,178 202 17,035
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
+ZA=1+-H 7,465 2,709 10,800 444 21,418

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017
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B 765 3 7% B =
14 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE 14 BERHMWELEE
ASSETS
(a) Goodwill (a) &
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Cost FX A
At 1 January W—A—H 4,649 3,484
Additions nNE - 1,165
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,649 4,649
Accumulated impairment loss ZFtREEE
At 1 January n—A—H (4,649) (3,484)
Charge for the year AEEE - (1,165)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,649 (4,649)
Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December R+=—BR=+—H - -
The impairment loss recognised in 2016 R2016F AWM ER K H
related to the Group’s acquisition of a REB YW E MWK B 2 8 Youyu
subsidiary, Youyu Capital Markets (N2Z) Capital Markets (NZ) Limited &
Limited. The recoverable amount of the BBeMBAGNAWKESZELLEF
subsidiary was based on its value in use, AEESER  BBAIBEESEEFEH
determined by discounting the future cash EENARBERERE  BHE
flows to be generated from the continuing RE ZERELAKRBEERER
use. Management considered that it was THEEN - At RESEHEE
uncertain for the entity to generate future EEaRETRE £ % I A2016
cashflows. Therefore, the carrying amount F E {F R B & 81,165,000 8
was determined to be higher than its o RBEEEREZEIRERE -
recoverable amount and an impairment loss
of HK$ 1,165,000 was made during 2016.
The impairment loss was fully allocated to
goodwill during the year 2016.
EReREEERAR 141
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14 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

14 BERHGEFLEE @)

(b) Other intangible assets (b) HMtEFEE
Trading Club Computer
Rights Membership software Total
XA BEEE ElEG @ct
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET
At cost BEA
At 1 January 2016 RER=ZZE-~F-A-H 6,550 - - 6,550
Additions (Note) NE (Frit) - 2,930 18,945 21,875
Exchange alignment MERRITEZENTE - = (21) (21)
At 31 December 2016 and ~ RRZ=ZF—~F
1 January 2017 +ZA=t-HK
“E—+tH5-A-H 6,550 2,930 18,924 28,404
Additions (Note) FE (M) - - 22,389 22,389
Exchange alignment MERRNEEENTE - - 34 34
At 31 December 2017 RIE—t&
F=H=1=H 6,550 2,930 41,347 50,827
Accumulated amortisation R EHRAE
and impairment
At and 1 January 2016 RIE-RFE-A—H 6,000 - - 6,000
Charge for the year REEXH - - 896 896
Exchange alignment MERRFEERENTE - = (4) 4)
At 31 December 2016 and ~ RR=Z—-AE
1 January 2017 +ZA=t-8K
—E-tF-A—H 6,000 - 892 6,892
Charge for the year REEXH - - 7,815 7,815
Exchange alignment MERRTEZERENTE - - 10 10
At 31 December 2017 RIE—t&
+=A=+-H 6,000 - 8,717 14,7117
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—FR
+=B=1+—-H 550 2,930 32,630 36,110
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RER
+=A=+-R 550 2,930 18,032 21,512

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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14 GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE
ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Other intangible assets (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
three (2016: three) trading rights in The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and one (2016: one)
trading right in the Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited (the “Futures Exchange”),
of which two trading rights in the Stock
Exchange and one trading right in the
Futures Exchange were fully amortised as
at 31 December 2010. The Group has one
(2016: one) club membership with indefinite
useful life similar to the trading rights.

Note: During the year, the addition of computer
software amounted approximately to
HK$22,389,000 (2016: HK$18,945,000) includes
an amount of HK$20,394,000 purchased
through finance lease arrangement (note 22(c)).

15 Interests in subsidiaries

(a) Details of the subsidiaries principally

B 35 SRR MY RE

14 BEREGELEE @)

(b) EftbBEEEE

BE-Z—tHE+=-A=+—8"
AEEFEIEBEI 2R E(=
Z-XRE 3EA)RIEHIMA2R
SR(ZE—XRF:11@) » HhB
XM 2ERZERIAZAE
RERE=-E-—ZFEF+=-A=1+—
Hez# AEEFE —EE%Y
HEEER(ZE—XRFE:1#)
HERHRER ZEREL -

Bt F R BEKEHFIBME H
22,389,000 7% T (2016 : 18,945,000
7 ot ) 8 gt - H A 4 %820,394,000
BrERRMEREZHEBERE
22(c)) °

15 RBEAT 2R
(a) FERELXEEXREREEZHE

affected the results and assets of the AEFHE
Group
Proportion of ownership interest
BRERELA
Particular of issued/
Place of registered and Group’s
incorporation  fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business  capital (note) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
BRf/ERE ALEz  BALT AR

ARER AMRLEE  MRRAAE) ERER BE  DERE IEXR

Yunfeng Asset Management Hong Kong 3,910,000 shares 100% - 100% Provision of assets management
Limited (formerly known as services
Cannon Investment Advisors
(HK) Limited)

EREEEEARAR (IR &k 3,910,000 R4 RUBEERRY
Gannon Investment Advisors
(HK) Limited)

Yunfeng Securities Limited Hong Kong 113,000,000 shares 100% - 100% Securities broking

ERESERAT B 113,000,000 B 504

Youyu Finance Limited (formerly  Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% — Money lending
known as REORIENT Finance
Limited)

BASRBRAA(IRRR Bk 1RES £
SHERAR)

Yunfeng Financial Markets Limited Hong Kong 125,000,000 100% 100% — Securities broking, securities placing
(formerly known as REORIENT shares and underwriting, and provision
Financial Markets Limited) of consultancy and advisory

services

ERSATSERLA (A B 125,000,000 R4 AL BERERAEN

EREADEERAR)

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER

KRR REARE
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15 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

144

15 KB AR 2 (@)

Details of the subsidiaries principally (a) FEHEAXEBMEBREEZHE
affected the results and assets of the NRIFHEE)

Group (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRLA
Particular of issued/
Place of registered and Group’s
incorporation fully paid-up effective  Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of company and business  capital (note) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
BRT/ERR A5Ez  AARAT i) |

N8R Afmues  ARRAZ) ERER KE  DERE IEXR

Youyu Global Limited (formerly ~ Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% — Provision of administrative services
known as REORIENT Global
Limited)

BARRARAE (IRIRR Bk 1RE&f RALTHRH
RRARAR)

Youyu Holdings Limited (formerly ~ Hong Kong 1 share 100% 100% — Investment holding
known as REORIENT Holdings
Limited)

REERARAR (IRER gk 1R&f REER
BRERAA)

Youyu Share Award Scheme Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100% 100% - Administering and holding the
Nominee Limited (formerly Company's shares for the Share
known as REORIENT Share Award Scheme
Award Scheme Nominee
Limited)

FRRORBIAREARRAR A 1,000 R& A EBRARGRD: ARG
(SRR RETAREAR
RA")

REORIENT Financial Markets USA 550,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Securities broking
(USA) LLC US$1 each

£H 550,000 REREE 1 % REEL
il U}
Reorient Strategic Limited British Virgin -~ 1 share of US$1 each 100% = 100% Investment holding
Islands
XBRZHE  1REREEIZTZRE RELER

Youyu Capital Management (BVI)  British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited (formerly known as Islands
REORIENT Asset Management
Limited)

iBRZEE  1REREEIZTZRE RELZR

Yunfeng Financial Services (HK)  British Virgin 1 share of US$1 each 100% 100% - Investment holding
Company Limited (formerly Islands
known as Wise Point Holdings
Limited)

ABRZEE  1REREEIZTZRE RELER

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

15 KB AR 2 (@)

(a) FEREFSEXEREEZHE
NEIRFIE(E)

15 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)
(@) Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the
Group (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERRLA
Particular of issued/
Place of registered and Group’s
incorporation  fully paid-up effective Heldbythe  Held by a
Name of company and business  capital (note) interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
BRf/2RR A5Ez  AARAT AR

N8R Afmues  ARRAZ) BRER KE  DERE IEXR

Beijing Yunfeng Universal PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Provision of intemet and multimedia
Investment Consultancy RMB70,000,000 systems and application
Limited (formerly known as Paid-up capital development, marketing and
Beijing REORIENT Universal RMBA41,986,648 promoting products and public
Investment Consultancy relations services
Limited)

IRERRRRELHERAT  HE ARH70,000,000 RUBRANSEEZANERER
(IR RRRRE AN AfER RE eRfkEERALL
ERAF) ARH 41,986,648 BERE

B4Ex

Shenzhen Youyu Smart PRC Registered capital 100% - 100% Technological development

Technologies Limited RMB100,000,000 of computer software and
Paid-up capital hardware, technical consulting,
RMB8,010,000 technology services, database
and computer network services

MIERERREERAE hEl AR 100,000,000 YRERARREM 2B Rl

AfExR A RS HEERER
AE#8,010,000 PR
g4Ex
Majik Asset Management Caymans Island 1 share of = 100% Fund management
(Cayman) Limited US1 each
REHS 1 REREE1 X7 SR
PAL Y
Majik Cayman GP 1 Limited Gaymans Island 1 share of US1 each — 100% Fund management
RERE 1 REREE X5 ESER
2Bt
Majik Cayman GP 2 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US1 each - 100% Fund management
FEHE 1 REREE1 %7 HeER
2Bt
Majik Cayman GP 3 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US1 each - 100% Fund management
HEHE 1 REREE1 2R HEER
P2 )
Majik Cayman SPV 1 Limited Caymans Island 1 share of US1 each = 100%  Investment holdings
REHE 1 RERER1£R REZR
2B

B eMEEERAT
ST LEEH
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R AR B R

15

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(a)

Details of the subsidiaries principally
affected the results and assets of the
Group (Continued)

Particular of issued/
registered and

fully paid-up

capital (note)
BRT/ERR
BRRA (W)

Place of
incorporation
and business

Rl A

Name of company

RR#R

15 KB AR 2 (@)

(a) FEREFSEXEREEZHE
NEIRFIE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERELA
Group’s
effective Heldbythe  Held by a
interest ~ Company  subsidiary Principal activities
A5Ez  ARLE i) |
ERER BE  LAKE TEER

Majik Cayman SPV 3 Limited Caymans Island  Authorised capital
US$50,000 divided
into 2,500,000
preferred shares
and 2,500,000
ordinary shares.
Each share is
at US0.01 par

value each. 6,900

ordinary shares and

265,000 preferred
shares issued
FEBR50,000£T
£#52,500,0008%
TR702,500,000 %
k- SREENA
USO.01EfE - 2%
76,900 REBRA
265,000 RE £ R

HEHE

Note: The class of shares held is ordinary shares
unless otherwise stated.

- 100% Investment holdings
ordinary
share

100% REER
SER

B BREBHAN - RGO ZEHR
HER o

Proportion of ownership interest

BERERLA
Place of Group’s
incorporation  Particular of effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of fund and business  commitment (note) interest Company  subsidiary activities
r&E2 HNEAR
NRER EMHIBE  ERRE) ERER BALNARA BE IEER
Majik Access USD Fund 1 L.P. Caymans Island ~ US114.2 million 65.7% - 65.7% Investment
HEHS
Majik Access USD Fund 2 L.P. Caymans Island  US26.4 million 75.8% = 75.8% Investment
HEHS
Majik Access USD Fund 3 L.P. Caymans Island ~ US29.4 million 82.5% - 82.5% Investment

HEHE

Note:the balance represents capital commitment
being made by limited partners to the
partnership.

BE : RERAREREBADEBESE
Y E AR EGE ©

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



15 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(b) Information about material non-controlling (b)

interest

The following table lists out the information
relating to Beijing Chengtong Reorient
Investment Consultancy Limited, the only
subsidiary of the Group which has material
non-controlling interest (NCI). The company
was disposed during the year as stated in
15(c) together with Wisdom Star Investments
Limited. The summarised financial
information presented below represents
the amounts before any inter-company

B 35 SRR MY RE

15 KB AR 2 (@)

FEREXRFERERZ Z2EHR

TREINHEFLEHERRRE
BEEERAT(E——RAEEE
BEERFERESZ2HBLAT)Z
Bl o MEMEEISC) - & A
ARAEERESERERFR AT
—BWHE TX 25 28K ER
B B A B R £ 58 -

elimination.
2017 2016
—2-tF ZE-5F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
NCI percentage FERERB DL - 49%
Current assets REEE - 2,330
Non-current assets FRBEE - 2
Current liabilities nBEE - (39)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE - —
Net assets EEFE - 2,293
Carrying amount of NCI FERER ZREE - 1,106
Revenue g - -
(Loss)/profit for the year REERF,(BE) (514) 299
Total comprehensive income ZEKEHETE (431) 144

DEEFERER

(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI ZimA (EE) (252) 146
Dividend paid to NCI I THERERZBE - —
Cash flows from operating activities REEEEE RS (1,572) 166
Cash flows from investing activities REREZEZBEE - 7
Cash flows from financing activities HRE@MEZE BT — —

EHSMABERAR
—T—LEER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B AR5 ¥R AR Y A

15

Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(c)

Disposal of subsidiaries

(i)

(iii)

On date of completion 2 June
2017, the Group disposed 100%
shareholding of a subsidiary, Profit
Trigger Limited which holds certain
trademarks and web-domain for the
Group, to a company which our non-
executive director, Mr. Ko Chun Shun,
Johnson (“Mr. Ko”) is the owner for
a consideration of HK$800,000. On
disposal date, the subsidiary had no
asset nor liabilities and the Group
recorded gain on disposal HK$800,000.
From 1 January 2017 to date of
disposal, the subsidiary remained
dormant and did not contribute any
profit or loss to the Group.

On 24 February 2017, the Group
has conditionally agreed to dispose
Reorient Financial Markets (USA),
LLC and Reorient USA, LLC (the “US
Companies”) to a third party. The
transaction was terminated by the
Group in November 2017.

On 13 July 2017, the Company has
agreed to dispose 100% shareholding
in Wisdom Star Investments Limited
and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”) to a company wholly-owned
by Mr. Ko, Insula Holding Limited, for a
consideration of approximately HK$4.6
million. On the date of disposal, the
consolidated net asset of Disposal
Group net of non-controlling interest
is approximately HK$1.0 million. On
date of completion 11 August 2017,
the Group adjusted for the contingent
consideration arising from the potential
refund of approximately HK$3.4
million to Mr. Ko’s wholly-owned
company as per terms disclosed in
the announcement and did not record
any disposal gain. The following table
summarises the asset and liabilities
disposed and consideration received
for the Disposal Group.

15 KB AR 2 (@)
HERBEATF

(c)

(i)

(ifi)

RZE—tFESBZHEK
H: ZREEUSOE B THRE
BAEENFHTESSIRIE
SE((aEDFRERSLDQ T
HEXAEBWEARRERR
AREHI100% B #E - AIEER
AEAAREEFEELFHEN
i o NHEBH  ZHBL
AEEESERF  AEEE
BRAEBSEEBT - BE=Z
—tE—H—HBEHER ' &
M A TR AR ILREE - RY
AEEE R ER S EE -
Youyu (NZ) B W BE =z A #E%
BEEEMBZEFMBA o

R=Z2—tF=ZA=+HlA
R E BB 4R = L Reorient
Financial Markets (USA),
LLC # Reorient USA, LLC
TXBEAREAE=ZAHEE
BAR - ARER=-Z—tF
+—R#&IERS -

HBOMBAHPE-ZT-LtFLA
T=ZANQAEHRRE - A0Q8
EEERNZEREERLT
1000 REBRETFSEEEE
BENERAERXA - REDH
B4608ET - NHEH B
EREARLAREKE LA
((HEEE ) 2FeEEFE
MRFZERER LN 1008
BT RZE-—tFENA+—
AERE  AEBRASHE
MR EHEASTEZER
BENRRIREIMOBBITET
FERERAE  UEITHEHE
W e TREMHEREHE
MEEMBEURKENK

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



15 Interests in subsidiaries (Continued)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

15 KB AR 2 (@)
(c) HEMBITE

(iii)y (Continued) (i) (%)
HK$°000
FHET
Consideration: NS
At disposal date EEEA
Total consideration — cash BRE: — B 4,554
Less: provision of potential refund & - TR A RERIIR X (3,451)
1,103
Assets and liabilities disposed WEBENEENAE
Property and equipment MERZE 2
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEER 758
Other receivables, net of provisions, HEWTIE (FNKREE)
deposits and prepayments RERFEMNRIE 1,162
Accrued expenses and other BstERRHMENTRIE
payables (58)
Net assets EEFE 1,864
Less: non-controlling interest Bl SEERAER (912)
Net assets attributable to the Group SEBRAEEMNFEE 952
Gain on disposal HE & 151
Less: Reclassification of exchange & - JNEIXMBEBEESE 2B X EZHEH
reserve of foreign operation DR (195)
Loss on disposal HEBX (44)
Consideration BRE 4,554
Less: cash and cash equivalent B HEEBZRERBEEEIER
of the subsidiaries disposal (758)
Net consideration received Wz B R E 3,796

(iv)

HK$4,596,000.

TS HEEERAT
eyt

During the year, the total consideration
received for disposal of Profit Trigger
and Disposal Group amounted to

RER HEAEEARAQF
RHESBREHNABKLES
4,596,000 /& JT °

(iv)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B BRI =
16 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 16 REE QT ZER
2017 2016
—B—tE —B-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Share of net assets BEEEFE 714 714
Goodwill R — —
714 714
Less: provision for impairment loss of  Jj&f - MR E & N B E S REE
interest in an associate Bk (714) (714)
The recoverable amount of the investment in ReQil, LLCREMWAKWE E2REH
ReOil, LLC was estimated based on its value in FHEBEEGEY  BAAERESTEH
use, determined by discounting the future cash ReOil, LLCREELEMNARRESRENR
flows to be generated from the continuing use BE ZRENEHSHEBRERSRHE
of the investment in ReOQil, LLC. The carrying Ak E e RE - BRE{EEKX714,000%
amount of the investment was determined to JT °©
be higher than its recoverable amount and an
impairment loss of HK$714,000 was recognised.
17 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17 HibkRBEE
2017 2016
e T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Statutory deposits with exchanges and FHRAX S iR &&=z %
clearing house ERE 978 934
Rental deposits Heke 8,038 7,984
Other deposit for acquisition of Hitt AN EREYEEE
leasehold improvement and MeEEzke
equipment 144 1,258
Other receivables H fib fE W18 8,210 8,210
Less: provision for impairment of other i - EfbEWFIEREEE
receivable 2 s (8,210) (8,210)
9,160 10,176

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



17 OTHER

Notes to the Financial Statements

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 17

(Continued)

Impairment of non-current other receivables

Other receivable is fully impaired as the

recovera
uncertain
managem

bility of the balance is considered
after credit assessment performed by
ent. The full provision of impairment

for the other receivable is recognised in the
consolidated income statement for 2016.

BA RS AR MR

HMFERDEE @)

Hit IR R AR 2R E

AAEEEEBETERFMLER  HtE
WHRHTEHRERASE I EEN - &
b R 2 BT IR E %M - 5T A 2016
BOFFIER ©

The movement of the allowance for doubtful FAZRBRBESBOT
debts during the year is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January H—A—8 8,210 -
Provision for impairment loss ERABESEZEE
recognised - 8,210
Amount written off 2 MEE TR IE - —
At 31 December BR+t=—A=+—8H 8,210 8,210
18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18 AIHHEESWMEE
ASSETS
2017 2016
—B-tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Available-for-sales financial assets AHEESRERE
Current unlisted and measured at fair  REF EHEAFETA
value
— Investment funds (note 1) — REES(MHE 1) 326,691 =
Non-current unlisted and measured at kR B A M EEEREE
fair value UAFEEBETEN
— Investment funds (note 2) — BREES (HHE2) 295,797 24,430
— Credit link obligation note — EABERRE 192,721 =
— Perpetual capital — KBEEAR 76,989 75,423
565,507 99,853

Note 1: The purchase cost of each individual KiaE1 - BEAREESRENBERARER
investment fund investment is less than 24128 TT °
HK$240 million.

Note 2:  Amount of approximately HK$296 million of Kizto : 296,000,000/ 8 TR EE AKX
investment funds are held through fund vehicle EEEENMEGHNESES -
being managed and consolidated by the Group.

EsmEEERAR

eyt
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 18 AIHEESRMEE (&)

19

ASSETS (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s available-for-sale
financial assets are determined in the manner
described in note 33(f). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, non-current available-

for-sale financial assets are not expected to be
realised within one year from the end of the year.

AEFTHEESHEEN O FEER
MEE33(N AT A AEE - RABRES
wR ERDUHHESHMEERTB
FREE-FRNEFTELR -

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19 BEATVEFABRZERMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2017 2016
—E—£F CB-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FBT
Financial assets at fair value BRFEGABZE
through profit or loss ZEFMEE
Investment designated at fair value #5E# A FHEFAEZE
through profit or loss ZRE
— Equity investment listed in Hong — REBLTZRERE
Kong - 186,100
— Equity investment listed outside — FEBLMZRERE
Hong Kong 3,209 18,700
Held for trading FEEE
— Over-the-counter derivatives - BIRZEMITETR
contract 2,727 —
— Unlisted options issued by a Hong — & EmATEITH
Kong listed company EEmEERE - 5,470
5,936 210,270

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

fees of approximately HK$1,455,000 (2016:

HK$Nil) for on-going advisory projects which

have not been billed.

The fair value of accounts
approximates its carrying amount.

(a) Ageing analysis of accounts receivable

receivable

(a)

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable
net of allowance for doubtful debts as of the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

FE W BR R

N
ﬁéﬁ),ﬁﬁﬁ’* PATANT

R 2 ARl 0 AT

iR 2 FE W BR &

B 7% ¥R R MY =
20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND 20 PBEWERFR EFTWA
ACCRUED INCOME
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accounts receivable arising from BHRLEE 2 BRI
securities brokerage:
— Cash clients — BEERF 61,609 12,668
— Margin clients — REEEF 26,120 26,122
— Clearing house, brokers, fund — BEF - REREBSE
managers and dealers 10,632 9,796
98,361 48,586
Accounts receivable arising from EEFEJ&”’X“@HE%E’EEZFE\H&
consultancy and advisory services BRX 1,720 1,926
Other service fees receivables Eﬁﬂﬂlﬁ%%ﬁﬁ 2 FEWBR X 560 —
100,641 50,512
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREME (26,403) (26,901)
74,238 23,611
The balances of accounts receivable from =] ;gg@&gaﬁqgﬁggmﬁﬁqyﬁg R4t B4
consultancy and advisory services with accrued Wi EEARFTEWITERZRANEBEE WES

EH%1,455,00078 7T (2016 FF : #&) o

YRSz DN FEEEREEMES °

X (40 Bk R AR

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET

Current e O 72,688 | 22,043
Less than 1 month past due BHOLR1EAR 767 863
1 to 3 months past due BH1Z3EA 262 95
More than 3 months past due BHEI3ME AL 521 610
Amounts past due BHARIE 1,550 1,568
74,238 23,611

TS HEEERAT
eyt
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B B R AR B R

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis of accounts receivable
(Continued)

The Group has procedures and policies
to assess the client’s credit quality and
defines credit limits for each client. All client
acceptance and credit limit are approved
by designated approvers according to the
client’s credit worthiness.

Accounts receivable which are past due
but not impaired

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable
balance are debtors with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$1,550,000 (2016:
HK$1,568,000) which are past due at
the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not made provision for
impairment loss.

As of 31 December 2016, HK$154,000 from
cash clients which are past due but not
impaired represented client trades which
are unsettled beyond the settlement date.
No impairment loss was provided for these
balances as either the Group held securities
collateral for those balances with fair values
in excess of the past due amounts or the
balances have been settled subsequently.
Collaterals held against such accounts
receivable are publicly traded securities.
No such balance exists as of 31 December
2017.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients
of HK$1,550,000 (2016: HK$1,414,000)
which are past due but not impaired
represent accounts receivable arising from
provision of corporate finance, consultancy
and advisory services which have not yet
been settled and aged by their invoice
date. No impairment loss was provided for
these balances as these clients are trade
counterparties with sound credit rating and/
or reputation.

20

FE W R R B FERT WA ()

(a)

(b)

FE WS BRK 2 Bl ik 0 AT (A8

AEBRARFRBERFEEES
FrEEEZ URERETFZE
ERE - TEEMEF2EERE
ERBAAKEERBRAKBEES
F2fa Rz -

€ 18 8 1B AR ORi (B 2 FE W AR =X

AEBZERWRAEFEERTA
E51,550,000 8 T (=2 —~F :
1,568,0005870) 2 EWER R » 25
FRIERBEHAREAE  BAEH
I AR R E R IR R o

REZB-AF+ZA=+—H R
BREFFZEABERBERK
AR7X 154,000 8 T2 Bl RE&E H
BRMARBEZEFEFERERNR - ARA
SERZEEFHEEQATESRNE
HREEFERRAEHKERD
B MU ERZEEFELRE
BEBE RZAERUERRETSR
ZEFRBLETEERES - R=-F
—tF+ZRA=+—-H  REEK
HYEREE o

REALXREFEFZCBHBRBERE
Y Bk 51,550,000 T (= & — <
fF 11,414,0008 ) iERRH B ER
& EREBARBEE ZEBWER
Mo HRBZERHEANARBER
EEH - HRZEERFREETR
RISBERF2XGHF » R
BRZEEFFEHRESRREE -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

20 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND 20 BUWSRRKRERA (&)
ACCRUED INCOME (Continued)
(c) Impairment of accounts receivable (c) EWIRRZEE
The Group has a policy for allowance AEERBERREREZBE

for doubtful debts which is based on the
evaluation of collectability, ageing analysis
of accounts and management’s judgement
including the creditworthiness, collaterals

BRABK A WE L - BRIEZ
RBRIONEEERHEREFZE
B B A UK RE 8 2 I

and the past collection history of each

client.
The movement of the allowance for doubtful FRZRERBEZSHOT :
debts during the year is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAET FET
At 1 January R—HB—H 26,901 28,669
Provision for impairment loss ERARESE2BE
recognised 18 94
Amount recovered during the year & RE = 7 E (513) -
Amount written off 2 s R IE (3) (1,862)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 26,403 26,901

Included in the allowance for doubtful
debts were individually impaired accounts
receivable which have financial difficulties
in making payments. Among the allowance
for doubtful debts, approximately
HK$26,120,000 (2016: HK$26,122,000)
relates to individually impaired margin
clients accounts receivable, HK$285,000
(2016: HK$267,000) relates to individually
impaired accounts receivable arising from
the business of dealing in securities and
nil (2016: HK$512,000) relates to impaired
accounts receivable from corporate clients.

The Group ceased providing margin
financing service since 2004 and the balance
represented the past due amounts due from
margin clients brought forward from 2004.

Balance with related parties

At 31 December 2017, account receivable
of HK$60,000 (2016: HK$519,000) are
receivable from a company where Mr. Ko is
a substantial shareholder.

RIREBEBEEEEE XTI 2 @
BERERERIR - RRIREE
o 426,120,000 T (==& — 7~
£ 1 26,122,0007% 7T ) B2 1@ Bl &
BEeEWRZESEFERAEH
285,000/ (= & — X &F:
267,00078 7T ) B {E B 2 RIE 2% FH
EEERELECRERWRRAEHE M
BRE(ZZ—/xF 512,000 7T)
HEgRECEKREEXEFERE
Eg o

AEEH -_ZZTNFEELRAR
HRETMERY  MAEBSKRBEEA =
ZENFREEZRURBEEF
ZBHATRIE ©

ERRARE A 2 K BR

R=-Z2—+tF+-A=+—-H ' E
¥ — 2 8 2 ;X IE 60,000 % T (=
Z—RF 519,000 ) (EXE
RZPBRZEERR) °

TS HEEERAT -
eyt



Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

21 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 21 HMEWFRIE - RERBASTRE

PREPAYMENTS

2017 2016

—ZB—+tF —E-REF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Rental and other deposits HERLNAEERE 251 665

Prepayments BNRERAEMES 6,683 6,845

FE s ) 2 K% A FE U SR IR
Other receivables, net of provisions (HBREE) 58,718 7,514
65,652 15,024

As of 31 December 2016, the other receivables
amounted to HK$8,585,000 were individually
fully impaired which have financial difficulties in
making payments. During the year, the related
impaired other receivable is fully written off in
relation to the Disposal Group transaction as
disclosed in note 15(c).

The fair values of other receivables, deposits
and prepayments approximate their carrying
amounts. The above balances are expected to be
recovered within one year.

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22
FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

BE-_Z—X"E+=-A=+—H Hftt
FE U FX 18 B FE #2 %8 A 8,585,000 78 T (Y
18 B FE B BK R 8 £ 5% 2 S FROIE T 2 E R
B - tNFizE15(c) » BEREC REH M EL
RECHHEEER S BEME -

HtEWRIE B RBAETRE2LQF
ERAEKRAEMRS - HERERER
—FRKmE -

BehASEZEEERIHAHRS
R={EANERTEHRFX

(a) RERREEEEBEBEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF -

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FiET

Deposits with bank RITFER 30,000 45,600
Fixed bank deposits with original ZIEHAR DR =E A 1

maturity less than 3 months IRITEHER 1,739,627 3,526,079

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHERS 412,747 68,815

2,182,374 3,640,494

As at 31 December 2017, deposits with bank
amounted to HK$30 million (2016: HK$45.6
million) were deposits secured for banking
facilities. None of these banking facilities are
utilized.

156

R=F—tH&+=-HA=+—H0 &
AMR1T7 5K 2 £%8 30,000,000 7T
(== —75% : 45,600,000 7T)E
BRERRTESMECER -5
LRITEXHERIBHAMA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS (Continued)

(b) Bank balances — trust and segregated
account

The Group maintains segregated accounts
with authorised institutions to hold clients’
monies arising from its normal course of
business of the regulated activities. The
Group has classified the “bank balances
— trust and segregated accounts” under
current assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position and recognised
the corresponding account payables to
respective clients and other institutions on
the grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients’ monies. The
Group is not allowed to use the clients’
monies to settle its own obligations.
The cash held on behalf of customers is
restricted and governed by the Securities
and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. As at 31
December 2017, client money maintained
in segregated accounts amounted to
HK$340,029,000 (2016: HK$358,544,000).

EHSMABERAR
—T—LEER

B 35 SRR MY RE

22 RERBREZERERIBHRS
R=MBANRTEHRFR )

(b) RITHETF — EERBIRKRF

AEBRRAAUKER LB LIRS
UEEHEIESHRETHEKBRE
FEAEZEFRE - AEECDH"
RITEEF—EERBIRF |28
AREWBRRARZABEEE
T WREMEFRE 2B
XA EMAEEMBERBEZENS
FTEBEFREMBEEZRR - K
EEFSHFEAEZFREEEELRS
B REFEFEZHEZBESR
HEKRHI TR SRBE(EFX
BH)RARFIRRE - R=F—+
F+-A=+—H GFENRBIER
F 2 & F 718 %A 340,029,000 & 7T
(=ZZ—JR%F : 358,544,000787T) ©
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 22 BERBFELEEEERFHHRS

158

FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL R=1E B KR 1T EH 17 K ()
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS (Continued)
(c) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (c) BRBAFBEEKSEXELRERAZES
cash used in operating activities: ZEER -
2017 2016
—g_tE —BxE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FHET FET
Loss before taxation R A& E (378,168) (324,869)
Adjustments for: K% .
Net loss on financial assets and R AFEFFABHEZ
financial liabilities at fair value TREEREME
through profit and loss B2EETE 89,168 75,688
Net realised gain on HEHLESHE
available-for-sales EFRE
financial assets _ (14,961) -
Dividend and distribution AHEHESREEN
income from available-for- RER D BEUWA
sale financial assets _ (14,348) -
Impairment loss of AHHESREEZ
available-for-sales HEEE
financial assets 1,980 —
Net gain on disposal of HERE N Tz W
subsidiaries (756) —
Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation 18,508 7,992
Loss on disposal of HEVMERREZ
property and equipment BB ‘ 67 =
Impairment loss of property ¥ K %16 2R E
and equipment BB 615 —
Finance costs Bl & B AN 9,473 97
Interest income R 2 WA (72,476) (82,357)
Provision for impairment EMEREREZEBE
loss of goodwill 14(a) — 1,165
(Reversal)/provision for FEU RN 2 (E158)
impairment loss of b Eﬁ
accounts receivable (463) 93
Provision for impairment Hitt WS IBRE
loss of other receivable 824 1% - 8,210
Equity-settled share-based DR s E
payment expenses DURHZI2Ex 56,713 2,084
(304,648) (261,897)
Changes in working capital: &E&E$#5 :
Increase in other non- Hib IR B E E=E M
current assets (107) (1,683)
Change in financial asset and ~ H&ZAFEFA
financial liabilities at fair BRsemEE
value through profit or loss 218 349,986 368,362
(Increase)/decrease in FEWBRFR (#5h0),~
accounts receivable D (50,164) 28,850
(Increase)/decrease in other ~ HMEUFIE » #2&
receivables, deposits and KT FRIE (3G h0)
prepayments SRD (52,867) 8,082
Decrease/(increase) in bank  $R1TH&F — 55T
balances - trust and MENLRERD,
segregated accounts (#80) 18,515 (189,008)
Increase in accounts payable  FE{SBRERIZ AN 81,898 172,838
Increase in accrued expenses  JExTE A Kk H At ESS
and other payables FIBEM 39,589 6,774
Decrease in amounts due to  EESZHIER D
directors - (149)
Net cash generated from REXBEL
operating activities ZIREFEEE 82,202 132,169

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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22 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
FIXED BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS (Continued)

23

(d)

(e)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activity:

BA RS AR MR

22 RERBREZERERIBHRS
R=MBANRTEHRFR )

(d) HBMETBELENAGEZHE:

Preference Finance
shares lease Total
BEER mERE et
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHETT
At 1 January 2017 R=-Z2—+tF
—H—H — 2,227 2,227
Change from financing RIEEBMMEL
cash flow: ZHRER
Proceeds from issue of B ARRITEL
preference share by a R PSR FER
subsidiary 206,194 — 206,194
Payment made to finance X{f@EHRERE
lease obligation — (1,075) (1,075)
Total change in financing REESHEER
cash flows 2 206,194 (1,075) 205,119
New finance lease FRERE — 20,807 20,807
Finance charge on finance B&EHERE KA
lease obligation - 823 823
Fair value change ATEFTEE 877 — 877
Exchange alignment INERRITEEZREN
2 = 290 290
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—+tF
+=ZBA=+—H 207,071 23,072 230,143

Fixed bank deposits with original maturity
over 3 months

As at 31 December 2017, fixed bank
deposits with original maturity more than 3
months amounted to HK$78.1 million (2016:
Nil) were deposited as collateral for fund-
linked note, a financial product issued by
the Group, as disclosed in note 26.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

(e) fEEﬂﬁHFE%F@E1H HRITEHF

A

RZE—t&+=HA=+—H &
HHRZ A= B WERITEREFER
78,100,000 8 T (= ZF — /" F : )
EEMF26 I BENESHNE
B(REEETHWERER) 2K H

on °

23 EMNERX

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-N
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Accounts payable FE 1S BR X

— Cash clients - RERF 400,247 360,474

— Clearing house, fund managers, — RERFBHE
brokers and dealers 52,328 10,203
452,575 370,677

EHeMEBERAT
—E—tEEH
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23 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE (Continued)

Included in accounts payable are amounts
payable to clients and other institutions in
respect of the trust and segregated bank
balances received and held for clients and other
institutions in the course of conducting regulated
activities, which amount to HK$391,043,000
(2016: HK$358,469,000).

All of the accounts payable are aged and due
within one month or on demand.

(a) Balance with related parties

(i) At 31 December 2017, accounts
payable of approximately HK$230,000
(2016: HK$230,000) are payable to
Mr. Ko and HK$1,746,000 (2016:
HK$524,000) are accounts payable to
the related companies where Mr. Ko are
substantial shareholder and director.

(i) At 31 December 2017, accounts
payable of approximately
HK$18,667,000 (2016: nil) are payable
to certain key management personnel
of the Company on normal terms of
brokerage and wealth management
business of the Group.

24 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER

23 EfNERMRE)

BARREERRNETIRETDBERE
PAFFREMEBURKER 2ET
RBYRTEEMENEFREMEE
ZFRIE 391,043,000 B T (=T —RF :
358,469,000/&7T) °

FrERMERRZERR DR — A REH
HIRBREE -

(a) EREEEETS AVASER

(i

BE-_Z—tHF+=-A=1+—
H: B8 %42 RE
230,000 T(Z & — < F :
230,000 T) R EN S EE
B N B) 2 FXIE 1,746,000 78
(=T — X F 524,000
T (BAREBZELNAZEE
BRRRESE) o

BE-E—tHE+=-HA=1+—
H ZA&E8—RELERE
MEXN—MERENLE T
AATTEEEAEZFRE
18,667,000/ (= & — 7~
o)

24 BBERRHEMEMNIER

PAYABLES
2017 2016
—F-tF ZE2-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Accrued staff costs FEETE TR A 33,245 41,777
Other payables and accruals HittENFIERETER 68,645 13,706
101,890 55,483

All accrued expenses and other payables are
expected to be settled within one year or will be
settled in the Group’s normal operating cycle.

FrERTERARAMEMRBERASER
—FRFE AERAEEAZEELEE
BHAREE -

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7 3R 7= Bt =
25 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS — 25 EERNKERN — ERMHERMKET
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT £l
PLAN
The Group operates a Mandatory Provident AEEREBRFEAESHERL A
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the EEEERHRIIEEEEAZER ZA
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes AEEHEEMNRARGTEREBE2EERM
Ordinance for employees employed under the BEEABEEE((RESSFE -
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment BREESTEARBUSEAEEZCER
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined MFEKREHE - RIBERESSE EE
contribution retirement plan administered by REEERBEREEEBASSY Y
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, REELHMER BREBEARLRA
the employer and its employees are each 30,000 Bt (ZE—~EBREBEAR
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% £ R %30,000% 7T) o 5t &4t KAV GG 55
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a B
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000
(2016: HK$30,000). Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.
26 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE 26 BEAVEFAEGZZEMERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
At 31 At 31
December December
2017 2016
i »n
—E—tF —E-REF
+=A +=A
=t—H =t—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Designated at fair value through EERAFETFARR
profit or loss Z8fE
Current E
Fund-linked note (note 1) RIEBWERE (ML 1) 78,063 =
Non — current IR E
Preference share liability (note 2) BEBRAGEHFZ2) 207,071 =
Third-party interests in consolidated ~ HAAGHEHENESH
funds (note 3) E=RER(KFE3) 156,606 -
363,677 -
EsmEEERAR 161
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B B R AR B R

26 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Note:

M

The amount represents a financial product secured
by bank deposit with principal amount of US$10
million issued by the Group and the return of the
product is linked to an underlying unlisted mutual
fund. As the fund-linked note is due for settlement
within a year from 31 December 2017, it is classified
as current liability.

The amount represents US$26.5 million proceed
obtained from the issue of 265,000 preferred
shares at US$100 per share by a subsidiary of the
Group with the proceed being used to fulfil capital
contribution to a consolidated fund managed by the
Group. The total number of preferred shares that can
be issued under agreement is 500,000 shares for a
total proceed of US$50,000,000. The subsidiary is
obliged to redeem all issued preferred shares after
5 years starting from the initial issuance date of the
preferred shares. At liquidation, after all creditors’
claim is satisfied, the asset of the subsidiary should
be first distributed to preference shareholders by
redeeming all issued preferred shares together
with any unpaid preferred share dividends. As the
preferred shares are due for settlement after more
than a year from 31 December 2017, it is classified
as a non-current liability.

The third party interests in consolidated fund
consist of third-party unit holders’ interest in the
consolidated fund which is reflected as a liability
as the fund is to be dissolved and return all capital
to investor after 7 years starting from initial closing
date. As the end of term of the consolidated fund
is more than a year from 31 December 2017, it is
considered as a non-current liability.

26

BAFEFABZZEREAE#E)

ZeBEARAEEBITAEE1,0008X
THRTERERNESRER  MERN
E3REE—EARREFE LT HRE S -
HRESHNEEER =-Z2—+t&+=A
=t+t-HR—FRNAPLEE  AE2ES
AREBEE -

ZEBEAAREEHWB AT AFTRI100%E
TT K9 B % 2% 17 265,000 R B LR - E S
2650 BEXE T HARKBRERAEBMMNAHE
Lo BEBBUAUBRTHNELREHE
500,0000% © # %8 A5,0008 3= 7t ° B
AABEERENREITAHERBNSFEE
EOfECRTELR - EEER » &M
BLAANWEELEEBEMEBEEANERE
% EBEAIELAELERKERR BEZED
CERTELIRIURBERSTHNELR
BE - HREERE-Z—tE+=A
=t HRBB—F&3P HEHEREE
BERBEE -

BHEESTNE =S REBEE=FEN
BFEANCEHESTHER  RRAES
HWBANEE  LRBHBZEPRERD
MBI BB 7TFREMBEERRERER
EE -BREHESHRBE-Z—tF
T-A=t—HEBB—F AULWESR
FRBEE -
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BRI
27 OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE 27 RMEHEAE
At 31 December 2017, the Group had obligations NR-ZZE—+tE+-A=+—H ~&EH
under finance leases repayable as follows: REEREEENT :
2017 2016
ZE-tfF ZE-RE
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payment payment payment payment

RENRE REAE RENRE RERE
BEMR SRS BENK ARAR

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FE7 FiEn FET FiEr
Within one year —EBR 7,694 7,789 842 977
After one but within 2 years —EZBRER 4,438 4,528 907 977
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBRBRER 10,940 11,951 478 489
23,072 24,268 2,227 2,443
Less: finance cost o HERA (1,196) (216)
Present value lease obligation REHEEE 23,072 2,297
28 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 28 REKEARRTRPZAEH
FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the statement of (a) HMERRERAZEHHIEE :
financial position represents:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits AEEBBANEHEE
Tax for the year 44,259 53,087
ERCREEBRAT
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B B R AR B R

28

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b)

recognised:

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

28 RUBMRRKRF ZFREHR &)

(b)

EEREEERBBZER

REFEREGRS B BT RER ZIE

The components of deferred tax liabilities/
(assets) recognised in the consolidated

ERBEEE(BE)BOREBW

statement of financial position and the I
movements during the year are as follows:
Net
unrealised
gain on Net
financial unrealised
assets at gain on
fairvalue  Decelerated available
Accelerated through tax on for sales
tax profit expense financial
depreciation ~ Tax losses or loss incurred  instruments Total
BROYE
iTABRZ SR AiLE
A BECKER TREERER
HERE hEER )¢ AEER WEEE Az
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FEr FEr A FAT FAr
Deferred tax liabilities/ ~ AT REE4ZEE
(assets) arising from: ~ BEEE/(BE):
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-R 1,357 (14,506) 31,320 - - 18,171
Exchange alignment MEBRTEERNYE - - - 24 - 2
(Credited)/charged to profit (3t A) /4B E&
or loss (60) 13,209 (31,320) (532) - (18,709)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-5E
tZB=1-H 1,297 (1,297) - (508) - (508)
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t&-A-H 1,297 (1,297) - (508) (508)
Exchange alignment ﬁWﬁﬁﬂ? CEZE - = = (18) - (18)
(Credited)/charged to profit  (3fA) /$1E#EH
or loss (470) (173) - 526 - (117)
Charged to other NaftRals
comprehensive income - - - - 820 820
At 31 December 2017 R-B-t%
+ZA=t-H 827 (1,470) - - 820 177
At 31 December 2017, no deferred tax asset R-=E—+t&E+=—_H=+—8 -
has been recognised in respect of the tax R i IE /&5 38 848,000,000 &
losses of HK$848 million (2016: HK$627 (=& — X £ 627,000,000
million) to the extent that it is not probable TR IRELEHRBEE - EEJ?’\*EE%

that future taxable profit against which
the losses can be utilised will be available
subject to the approval of respective tax
authorities in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
The tax losses amounting to HK$835 million
(2016: HK$598 million) do not expire under
current tax legislation.

BMEREREEREE T AKIREE R
RERFREN(BAEZSHRIEHEH
)RR AZEBEKE HEEE
835,000,00078 o (= & — X F :
598,000,000 8 7T ) B IBE TR &
Bl rEfERm o

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 90. Details of the changes in the
Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the

year are set out below:

B 35 SRR MY RE

29 BEX - RERKRE

(a)

EERD 22

AEERSEREHD 2 FANEF
R HRENEIOEZFAE
HmBER o AN FME B EEBHR
FUORFRZEBFRHINT :

AAF
The Company
Shares held Share-based
Share by share award payment  Accumulated
capital scheme reserve losses Total
ok B R EH
kx  FkEzRG PATEN-4 ZitER gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAT FAT TET
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-H 4,499,045 (8,042) 5,931 (82,957) 4413977
Equity settled share-based WRAERALEERN
transactions % - - 2,084 - 2,084
Shares vested under share award  BIERGEEEEE
scheme 2B - 7,045 (7,945) - -
Total comprehensive income for the  AEE2FHEE
year - - - (207,430) (207,430)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 RZ8-RE
January 2017 tZR=+-Bk
“E-tE-f-A 4,499,045 (97 170 (290,387) 4,208,631
Share issued under share award RERG BT R
scheme B 129,546 (129,546) = = =
Share repurchase under share RERAREHEEE
award scheme B - (260) - - (260)
Equity settled share-based ARG ALEEERN
transactions R - - 56,712 - 56,712
Shares vested under share award ~ BERAEBH EEE
scheme BB - 24,353 (26,039) 1,686 -
Total comprehensive income for the  AFE2EURAE
Jear - - - (£23.943) (423.943)
At 31 December 2017 RZE-t&
tZB=t-A 4,628,591 (105,550) 30,743 (712,644) 3,841,140

TS HEEERAT
eyt
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share held by share award scheme
and share-based payment reserve

The Company’s shares held by Youyu
Share Award Scheme Nominee Limited,
TMF Trust (HK) Limited and Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited for the
share award schemes are presented as
a deduction in equity as shares held for
share award scheme.

Share-based payment reserve
represents the grant date fair value of
unexercised share options granted to
employees of the company that has
been recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose
on the revaluation of the trading rights
in the exchanges in Hong Kong in
prior years. The carrying value of the
trading rights have been fully amortised
in previous years. The remaining
revaluation reserve will be realised
when the Group disposes of the trading
rights.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note
2(v).

29 X RERKRE#E)

(b) REEZMERAR

()

(i)

R ER BFEZRG R
URGBERZ I EE

HEARGEBEREAS
ROTE - ZRETRE(FE)
BRAAF RXBRITERLE
ROAFREEZAQRRARDIESR
—ERIRE ERA R 2
] SMERRDRBE B
BZBRAD -

LURR 0 B B 2 SRR T35
6 2% 2% B) 18 & X i i 14 R AT 2
ZBREREHBAHPZAF
B HERBURGHERZ
A RMERAN 2 S5 BUERTER -

EEEMRE

EEEMRBBEREGBEIFE
REBZRZMZREREE
£ XZEZBRAECRBE
FEBBHEE - RTEMMRE
BRAEEHERZEEE
B o

(iii) [E 77 E

ERFABEEMARENEZE
BB BREEZELER -
ZRBIREBENE2(V) FE S
SR T UEE -
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(iv)

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the Company Law of the
PRC, in accordance with the relevant
subsidiary’s articles of association,
10% of the net profit of the relevant
subsidiary, determined in accordance
with the relevant accounting rules
and financial regulations applicable to
enterprises in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”),
is required to be transferred to the
statutory reserve until such time
when this reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the subsidiary

B 35 SRR MY RE

29 BX - @ERKRE )
(b) EEZMERARGE)

EERE

RBEPEARKMBQAREZ
AEER  RIBERARSPED
¥ AR5 E B R B AR A
BENEBHEBLRERNELN
10 % ([ BIGAAP]) - A&
AZERNES  EEZREES
E 2 E P E MR LB
TEMEARMS0% ° Frih B
MBS ARBARERRE
MEXRL - FELATEESEA
MEARE  FerRMDEEARL
AADRHE AR ZEMERLN

(iv)

=

incorporated in PRC. The reserve 25% °
appropriated can be used for expansion
of business scale and capitalisation. If
the statutory reserve is capitalised into
registered capital, the remaining reserve
is required to be no less than 25%
of the subsidiary’s registered capital
before capitalisation.
(c) Distributability of reserves (c) RBEZTDIKME
As at 31 December 2017, the Company NR—E—+tE+=-_B=+—H " ' &
did not have any reserves available for BIEBRAAGROI(E622E)5%6
distribution to equity shareholders of the IR IR LT E 4NN B W A{E A
Company, as calculated under the provisions RS IRFARRD B REES A 2
of Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies B(ZE—RF HE)o
Ordinance (Cap. 622) (2016: nil).
(d) Dividend (d EKE
No dividend was paid or proposed for the BE_ZE—+t&+=-_H=+—H
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: nil), Jj:irgjﬁﬁ;‘mﬁﬁjzﬁ;jﬁgﬁg(:g
nor has dividend been proposed since the = /) mEBEEARLIR
end of the reporting period. ﬂL%Jﬁﬁﬁcﬂﬂ“%‘ °
(e) Share capital (e) B
Movements of the Company’s ordinary AATEBERZEHEINAOT :
shares are set out below:
2017 2016
“E-tF “E-RE
Number of Number of
shares HK$°000 shares HK$'000
RG#E TEr Re#A A7
Issued and fully paid BRTRAR
Balance brought forward REERE 2,399,336,394 4,499,548  2,399,336,394 4,499 548
Shares issued under share award ~ RIERA BB E%IT
scheme (note 29(a)) LR ((HiE29a) 23,990,000 129,546 - -
Balance carried forward rELE 2,423,326,394 4,629,094  2,399,336,394 4,499,548

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER
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29 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Share capital (Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time
to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and
reserves stated on the Group’s and the
Company’s statement of financial position.
The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for the shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Company manages capital by regularly
monitoring its current and expected liquidity
requirements rather than using debt/
equity analyses. Neither the Company
nor its subsidiaries, except for Yunfeng
Financial Markets Limited (“YFFM”), Yunfeng
Securities Limited (“YFSL”) and Yunfeng
Asset Management Limited (“YFAM?”),
is subject to externally imposed capital
requirements. YFFM, YFSL and YFAM are
regulated by the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) and are required
to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the Securities
and Futures Ordinance.

The management monitors YFFM, YFSL and
YFAM’s liquid capital daily to ensure they
meet the minimum liquid capital requirement
in accordance with the Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR”)
adopted by the SFC. Under the FRR, YFFM
and YFSL must maintain its liquid capital in
excess of HK$3 million or 5% of their total
adjusted liabilities whichever is higher. For
YFAM, it must maintain its liquid capital in
excess of HK$100,000 or 5% of its adjusted
liabilities whichever is higher. The required
information was filed with SFC on a monthly
or half yearly basis. YFFM, YFSL and
YFAM were in compliance with the capital
requirements imposed by FRR during the
current and prior year.

29 X RERKRE (&

(e)

(f)

R (&)

BEEREBEAREURTAKEIRZ
BRE  BERAQRBAARELERARKR
—Z - IEEBRIADQ T ZHER
EEHZAREMAL

ErER

EXRBERAEERADT 2B
RRRAFN 2 RARAEE - AEH
EREEACITERERBEBRITER
Bk P AERE 2 RIGERURUE
BRANGHE  REAEE
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30 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED

ARRANGEMENTS
Share award scheme

On 17 October 2014, the board of directors
approved the adoption of the share award
scheme (the “2014 Share Award Scheme”). The
purpose of the 2014 Share Award Scheme is to
(i) encourage or facilitate the holding of shares
by the selected participants; (ii) encourage and
retain such individuals to work with the Company
and the Group and (iii) provide additional
incentive for them to achieve performance goals,
and the share award scheme took effect on 30
October 2014. The awarded shares are awarded
by issuing new ordinary shares. Before vesting,
the awarded shares are held in a trust set up by
the scheme.

With similar purpose of 2014 Share Award
Scheme, on 12 December 2016, the board
of directors approved the adoption of 2016
Share Award Scheme (the “2016 Share Award
Scheme”) and the Company issue of 23,990,000
new ordinary shares of the Company to TMF
Trust (HK) Limited to be granted to the Group
A Participant (Group A Grantees) as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 24
January 2017. The share was issued at value of
HK$5.4 per share. On the other hand, the Group
repurchase 48,000 number of Company ordinary
share through Bank of Communications Trustee
Limited for share award to be granted to the
Group B Participant (Group B Grantees) during
the year with consideration of approximately
HK$260,000. During the year, no 2016 share
award was granted to Group B Grantees.

The fair value of share award of the 2014 Share
Award Scheme and 2016 Share Award Scheme
at the date of the grant are charged to staff
costs and related expenses over the projected
vesting period being the period for which the
services from the employees are rendered with
a corresponding credit to employee share-based
payment reserve.

Upon vesting and transfer to the awardees, the
related costs of the shares are credited to share
held for share award scheme, and the related fair
value of the shares are debited to share-based
payment reserve.
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30 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

(i) Details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme

30 EERDZH )

IR0 S Bt 8 (4F)

(i) 2014 FRGE/EFIE

Number of
Number awarded Average
Date of approval by Awarded  of shares shares fair value
Board Date of award Sum issued awarded  per share Vesting period
BRfT ERLRE  SRYY
EZeEAS RABS REEE  RGHA RH%AE AYE BES
HK$'000 HK$
FE7 AT
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 11,042 3,025206 3,025,206 3.65 31 October 2014 — 31 December 2014
“E-METASTR ZE-META=T-A “E-METR=1-%
“E-ME+=A=T-A
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 904 247,660 247,660 3.65 31 October 2014 — 01 February 2015
“2-META=TA ZE-WETA=T-H “R-META=T-Z
—2-1%-8-H
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 1,298 355,667 355,667 3.65 31 October 2014 — 18 February 2015
“2-METASTA ZE-META=t-H “R-META=T-Z
“E2-1E-ATNH
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 1,620 443,791 443,791 3.65 31 October 2014 — 26 February 2015
“Z-META=TH “E-ME+A=1-H “E-META=T-E
ZE-RFZACTAR
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 2,731 748,345 748,345 3.65 31 October 2014 — 20 March 2015
“E-META=TA “E-META=T-A “E-METRZT-Z
Z2-1=B-1H
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 562 153,968 153,968 3.65 31 October 2014 — 14 August 2015
“§-META=TR  Z§-META=1-A Z§-MEFA=1-E
“E-EF\BTHA
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 3,650 1,000,000 1,000,000 3.65 31 October 2014 — 16 September 2015
“2-META=TA ZE-WETA=T-H “R-META=T-Z
“Z-IENATAA
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 2,835 776,666 776,666 3.65 31 October 2014 — 30 October 2015
“E-mELAZTE CE-MEAZ1-A “§-mELA=-E
“Z-1§+A=tH
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 1,371 375,629 375,629 3.65 31 October 2014 — 14 December 2015
“E-METASTR ZE-META=T-A “E-METR=1-E
Z$-RE=ATMA
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 904 247,660 247,660 3.65 31 October 2014 — 02 January 2016
“E-META=TA  ZE-META=T-H :gggﬁzfi;EF
—=<= NF—H-—
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 2,732 748,345 748,345 3.65 31 October 2014 — 20 March 2016
“3-META=tR  —E-WETAZt-A “E-mELAz1-E
ZE-AEZAZ1H
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 562 153,968 153,968 3.65 31 October 2014 — 14 August 2016
“Z-META=TH “Z-META=1-H “E-META=T-2
ZE2- ENATHA
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 3,650 1,000,000 1,000,000 3.65 31 October 2014 — 16 September 2016
“E-META=TA ZE-ME+A=T-A “E-METR=1-Z
“E-RENATHA
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 97 26,667 26,667 3.65 31 October 2014 — 29 October 2016
“E-META=TR ZE-META=1-A “E-METR=1-%
“E-~ETA-ThA
30 October 2014 31 October 2014 97 26,667 26,667 3.65 31 October 2014 — 29 October 2017
“2-META=TA ZE-WETA=T-H “B-META=T-Z

“E-tFtA=thA
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30 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

B 35 SRR MY RE

30 EERDZH )

Share award scheme (Continued) BRAP SR EETEI (&
(i) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (i) BFAHAERKEA 2016 F K17 5EF T
(to Group A Grantee) BFE
Number of
Number awarded Average
Date of approval by Awarded  of shares shares  fair value
Board Date of award Sum issued awarded  per share Vesting period
BRT CRERE  SRIY
ESeHEAS REAH RESE  ROHA RH%E ATE BES
HK8'000 HK$
& AT
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 5.25 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2017
“Z-tE-ffMA ZE-t5-B-1@A “E-tE-A-1MAZ
“2-t£RAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 525 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2018
“E-tE-fCFMA ZE-tE-BI1MA “E-tE-A-tMAZ
~Z-\ERAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5997500 5,047,500 525 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2019
“E-t-A-tMA  —E-t%-A-1MA ZE-tE-A-IMAZ
“E-nERAMA
24 January 2017 24 January 2017 26,499 5,997,500 5,047,500 5.25 24 January 2017 - 4 May 2020
ZE-tE-AtMB ZE-tE-ACTMA “E2-{E-f-{MAZ

(iii) Details of the 2014 Share Award Scheme

vested and forfeited

2 2FIANA

(iii) BB 22014 K7 5EF&#F1E

At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

R-ZB-tF+ZA=+t-B RZB-RE+=A=t-H

Number of Fair value Number of Fair value

Average awarded of related awarded of related

fair value shares awarded shares awarded

per share vested shares vested shares

BRYH ERERR HERXBRC CcHRERR HBERBRG

Vesting date SEHH AYE RO EE ZDVE RHEE ZBVE
HK$ HK$’000 HK$'000

B FET FET

02 Jan 2016 =ZE—~"E—HA=H 3.65 - - 247,660 904
20 Mar 2016 Z—ZE—-~E=A=1H 3.65 - - 748,345 2,732
14 Aug 2016 —Z—~ENA+THNA 3.65 - - 153,968 562
16 Sep 2016 =—F—~ENB+AE 3.65 - - 1,000,000 3,650
290ct2016 —Z—-~E+AZtThHBE 3.65 - - 26,667 97
- - 2,176,640 7,945

During the year, 26,667 awarded share of
2014 Share Award Scheme with vesting
date on 29 October 2017 were forfeited
with amount of approximately HK$97,000
measured at HK$3.65 per share.

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER

REAEER U=ZTE—+tF+ A
ZTt+hhEBEEREEHRBHN26,667=
T FERMDERBERRDE R
W - IRERI.65BTEE SN
97,0008 T °
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30 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED 30 EERMDZHEE)

ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued) % 0 2 B 5T &I (48)
(iv) Details of the 2016 Share Award Scheme (iv) EEB - BUS RAICK IR Z
vested, cancelled and modification of 2016 [R 17 2 Bt &I 15

service condition to Group A Grantee.

At 31 December 2017
R-E—tF+=ZA=1-H

Number of
awarded
share
subject Total a
Number of Number of Number of to service mount
Average awarded awarded awarded condition of related
fair value shares shares shares  modific- awarded
per share vested cancelled forfeited ation shares
BEXERE HEREB
SR¥Y CHRERE CHERD SRUERD RERD Rz
Vesting date HEAH AYE ROBE KROEE ROBE RAEHAE AYE
HKS$ HK$°000
BT FET
4 May 2017 “Z—tFRAMA 525 4,510,000 450,000 3,037,500 87,500 42,446
4,510,000 450,000 3,037,500 87,500 42,446

(v) ERH 201445 EREEE =
25

(v) Movements in the number of 2014 Share
Award Scheme

Number of awarded shares

172

IR R B B

At 31 At 31

December December

2017 2016

S S

—E—+t5F —E—REF

+=A +=A

=t+—H =t+-—AH

Outstanding at 1 January K—A—HBHEKRTE 26,667 2,203,307
Vested ERE - (2,176,640)
Forfeited 28 (26,667) —
Outstanding at 31 December RtZA=+—REKRTE - 26,667

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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30 EMPLOYEE SHARE-BASED 30 EERMDLH (&)
ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Share award scheme (Continued) B3 R B E S (4E)
(vij Movements in the number of 2016 Share (vi) ERHTALERRZEA 2016 K750
Award Scheme to Group A Grantees 2B E 2 25

Number of awarded shares

gvig-3 k4=
At 31 At 31
December December
2017 2016
n S
—E—tF —E-REF
+=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
Outstanding at 24 January M—A=+MAEKRTE 20,190,000 —
Vested 2B (4,510,000) —
Cancelled 2 BUH (450,000) —
Forfeited 28 (3,037,500)
Outstanding at 31 December R+=—A=+—BEKR1TE 12,192,500 =
31 COMMITMENTS 31 &iE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHEERIE
As lessee ERAMA
As at 31 December 2017, the total future RN=-F— -tE-I-_ =+—H &
minimum lease payments under non- ?FT—HEHE%“ SN 2 KRR FIEE
cancellable operating leases are payable as HHEER Iﬁfﬁ'ﬁﬁizl]'l'
follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Within one year —F R 18,801 21,345
After one year but within five years —FZ&EBHER 5,711 23,647
24,512 44,992

The Group leases a number of offices under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of one to five years. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

TS HEEERAT
eyt
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31 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Other commitments

(i)

(iii)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group
has a total of HK$0.6 million intangible
asset capital commitment contracted
but not provided for and US$127 million
other capital commitment (31 December
2016: US$25 million) related to third
party managed funds with US$37
million (31 December 2016: US$3.15
million) having been contributed.

As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 4 February
2016, Yunfeng Financial Market
Limited (“YFM”) (formerly known as
Reorient Financial Markets Limited),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a joint venture
agreement with Giant Investment Co.,
Ltd., and Jiangsu YuWell Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Jdiangsu
Limited”) on that day. As disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 29
April 2016, the joint venture agreement
was superseded and replaced by the
amended and restated joint venture
agreement entered among YFM,
Hangzhou Dr. Herbs Electronics
Commerce Company Limited and
Jiangsu Limited on 13 April 2016.
Upon establishment of the joint venture
company after obtaining all necessary
approval as defined and disclosed
in the circular, YFM is committed to
contribute RMB1,290,000,000 of the
registered capital of the joint venture
company.

As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 17 August
2017, the Company and the other
investors (as the Purchasers) and
MassMutual International LLC, entered
into the Share Purchase Agreement
pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire 60% of
the issued share capital of MassMutual
Asia Limited. The portion of the
consideration payable by the Company
is HK$7,860 million of which HK$5,200
million will be satisfied by the issue of
an aggregate of 800,000,000 shares
of the Company at the issue price
of HK$6.50 per share representing
approximately 24.82% of the issued
share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the issue of the shares.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES
Interest in consolidated structure entities

The Group had consolidated certain structured
entities, mainly funds related to wealth
management operation. For those structured
entities where the Group is involved as manager
or as investor, the Group assesses the extent of
controlling power according to relevant group
accounting policies.

As at 31 December 2017, the net assets of
consolidated fund entities as detailed in note 15
amounted to HK$574 million with net carrying
interest held by the Group being HK$417 million.

Interests held by other investors in these
consolidated structured entities, mainly fund
entities were classified as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss of the
consolidated statements of financial position
with fair value change of financial liability at fair
value through profit or loss presented in the
consolidated income statements.

At year end, the Group reassessed the control
of structured entities and decided whether the
Group is still a principal.

Interest in unconsolidated structure entities

Among those structured entities held by the
Group where the Group directly or indirectly
involves as investment manager or in equivalent
capacity, the Group regularly assesses and
determines whether:

o the Group is acting as an agent or a
principal in these investment funds;

o substantive removal rights held by other
parties may remove the Group as an
investment fund manager; and

° the investment interests held together
with its remuneration from servicing and
managing these structured entities create
significant exposure to variability of returns
in these investment funds

In the opinion of the directors, the variable
returns that the Group to these structured entities
is not significant and the Group is primarily
acting as an agent. Therefore, the Group did not
consolidate these structured entities.
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32

33

INTERESTS IN STRUCTURED ENTITIES
(Continued)

The Group classified its investment in those
unconsolidated entities as available-for-sale
investments with minimal loss exposure due to
small investment amount involved. During the
year, the amount of management fee income from
the unconsolidated structured entity managed by
the Group was approximately HK$340,000.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
foreign currency risks arises in the normal course
of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to accounts and other
receivables and bank balances (segregated
and general accounts). Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts and other
receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers. At the end of the year,
amount of HK$493,000 (2016: nil of the total
account and other receivables) accounts
and other receivables was due from the five
largest customers respectively.

32

33
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 MBEBREEREMIAEZAFE

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)

INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERBE)
Bank balances (segregated and general RITEFBILIR—REF)IER
accounts) are placed with high-credit-quality REEBEZSZHE  EEERR
institutions and management considers that EREERREBM -
the credit risk for such is minimal.
The maximum exposure to credit risk without KRetEAEEzEFRZESREE
taking account of any collateral held is BERAE RS MR R KA S
represented by the carrying amount of each T Rl & 2 MR E N R AE A RE B
financial asset in the consolidated statement BEEYER AREYERHEEATS
of financial position after deducting any SHEHEEREZER -

impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of FRASRERBEWERRMELH 2E
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising ERBzE-—SEEREERNEAR
from accounts receivable are set out in note sk 20 o
20.

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REELER
Individual operating entities within the rEERENKEEREELTG 2
Group are responsible for their own cash ReEE BREUSEERUEN
management, including the raising of loans BHREEZE RERETHEE
to cover expected cash demands, and to TRARA o AREBE 2K A EHEE
ensure compliance with FRR. The Group’s HABHESEERBTRERZEZ
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity BN WEREEHRESHMBRIRK
requirement and its compliance with lending BAEECHBEBZREAEESH
covenants, to ensure that it maintains EENERBRRERDESSE
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate Eo

committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

TS HEEERAT -
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group and the
Company’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group and
the Company, as applicable, can be required

to pay:

BEEREEREMIAZATE

(4&)

(b)

REBEEERE)

TREMMEERAQREHEE
RBEMR BT ENINHHR -
DRERENVRBRREREB(BER
REHR R (7 E) HR S H
RZBATNRITE2HNEFE) R
AREBRART(RIBRME) A8
AXNYz&RAHFTESRL :

Contractual undiscounted

cash outflow

BHRMRR SR
More than
1 year but Carrying
Within 1 year within amount at
or on demand 5 year Total 31 December
I
‘ t=A
-ERg  BE-F . =+-R
REX BRER @t ZEHE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET TEr TEx TEx
As at 31 December 2017 R-2-t%
+ZA=t-H
Accounts payable RS 452,575 - 452,575 452,575
Accrued expenses and other i ERRAMENTE
payables 101,890 - 101,890 101,890
Financial liabilities at fair value RAVET A ER
through profit or loss ZEREE 78,063 363,677 441,740 441,740
Finance lease liability HEREER 7,789 16,479 24,268 23,072
640,317 380,156 1,020,473 1,019,277
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B 35 SRR MY RE

33 XEKREERSMIACZATE

(&)

(b)

RBE SR (F)

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow

ANABRRER
More than
1 year but Carrying
Within 1 year within amount at
or on demand 5 year Total 31 Decemb;/{
‘ =
—F%  BE-F ) =t-§
FREKR BRER Bt ZREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TEr TEr A T
As at 31 December 2016 i3
+t-A=t-H
Accounts payable AR 370,677 - 370,677 370,677
Accrued expenses and other i ERRAMENTE
payables 55,483 - 55,483 55,483
Financial liabilities at fair value BAVEARR
through profit or loss _ZSHAE - - - -
Finance lease liability MENEEE 977 1,466 2,443 2,227
427,137 1,466 428,603 428,387
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=EEp

The Group’s exposure to cashflow interest
rate risk is mainly attributable to its bank
balances (trust, segregated and general
accounts). The Group’s fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate
overdue accounts receivable and fixed
deposits held under bank balance - trust
and segregated accounts.

The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy. The
management monitors the Group’s exposure
on an ongoing basis and will consider
hedging interest rate risk should the need
arise.

As of 31 December 2017 and 2016, the
Group is not exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk with all the financial instruments is
carried at nil or fixed interest rate. Therefore,
no sensitivity analysis is performed on
cash flow interest rate risk. As most of the
financial instruments on nil or fixed interest
rate having relatively short maturity, the
Group is not exposed to material fair vale
interest rate risk.

EHSMABERAR
—T—LEER

AEE 2SN EEREER
BEBGERE(EL  BYR R
BF) AKE-AFENERR
FESRELABERERRAR
GG —EERBYRFRAZE
2% -

B B 3 48 4 {7 K 5 3 0
BESEEEAER R
3 50 B R R

*

RZE—tFRZZE—XRF+=A
—+ B $EITﬁEﬁémz
FMERK > FIEEMIAHIUER
ZHEEMELF - itk » HIRE
REBRNZE T ETHEBED N -
EFK%%%%@IQKIEﬂ%
MR ZABEEERE  AEBRFE
EXAAEEFEAR o
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(d)

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 MBEBREEREMIAEZAFE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (d) HhE&E R
The Group has assets and liabilities REBHEELENEERUIINE
denominated in currencies other than its BITENEENERE WIHNER
functional currency and that are subject to BEEFBNTE KAXEEEXTER
fluctuation in foreign exchange amounts HUEXTRARERBEN ZRITHE
in the different currencies. The Group is BRHAARETREMEEZEH
exposed to currency risk arising from various B A SEBEZRINER
currency exposures, mainly to the extent of B WHREFEREZEHAEKR
its and bank balances in currencies such INEE [ B o
as the USD and Renminbi. Management of
the Group monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will hedge significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, BE-_Z—tHF+=-HA=+—HL
the Group did not engage in the use of other FE AEEYEEAHMESRT
financial instruments for hedging purposes, BEEHHHEZ  RZB—tF+=
and there were no hedging instruments B=+t—BFEEAAFRELE+PT
outstanding as at 31 December 2017. B o
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) EXERERE
The following table details the Group’s TRFINAREBARSHARE
exposure at the end of the reporting DUAKEDEE R B TUININE
period to currency risk arising from BiEZERRAEESEEHR
recognised assets or liabilities EEERERZEE -2
denominated in a currency other than = BEBAEREIIUE TS
the Group’s functional currency of =
Hong Kong dollars. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are expressed in Hong Kong dollars.
2017
“E-tE
United United
States Japanese China  Australian Kingdom  Singapore Canadian
Dollars Yen Renminbi Dollars Sterling Dollars Dollars
T RE AR% A 3 Fimsg i
HK$000 HK$000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$000 HK$000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Accounts and other  FEWERS R E
receivables FWEE 36,382 - - - - - -
Bank balance - trust $§78% - £XR
and segregated BIKF
accounts 168,881 - 412 140 67 14 14
Cash and cash RERRL%HE
equivalents EH 3,033,375 - 17,676 - - - -
Accounts and other  ENERRRE M
payables EfFE (186,584) - (368) (109) (67) (14) (14)
Netexposureto  EMERAETH
currency risk 3,052,054 - 17,700 3 - - -
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(i)

BA RS AR MR

33 MKEREEREMIAZATE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) HhEEEBs(48)
Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥EpEREE)
2016
ZE-RE
United United
States Japanese China  Australian Kingdom  Singapore Canadian
Dollars Yen Renminbi Dollars Sterling Dollars Dollars
i BE N A7 S )V 7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FA7 FA7 FA7 FA7 FAT FA7 FA7
Accounts and other  EXERHRE M
receivables EYEE 9,792 - - - 1 1 1
Bank balance - trust $178% - £7R
and segregated BikF
accounts 1,526 - 17 123 46 7
Cash and cash BERHLSE
equivalents EH 1,947,715 1 13,397 4 - - 18
Accounts and other  FEfTERF R E
payables R (1422) - (17) (99) (46) ) (18)
Netexposureto  EMERAETHE
currency risk 1,957,611 1 13,397 28 1 1 1
Sensitivity analysis (i) HEESH

(ii)

The Group’s significant net exposure
to Renminbi and United States Dollars
at the reporting date and the estimated
impact to the Group’s profit/(loss) for
the year had the foreign exchange rates
of Renminbi and United States Dollars
changed at that date are illustrated
below. In this respect, it is assumed
that the linked exchange rate between
the HKD and the USD would remain
unchanged and therefore, fluctuate
between lower limit of HKD7.75 to
USD1 and upper limit of HKD7.85 to
USD1.

EESREBARAT

—E—tEEH

AEERKEAEEZERA
EE¥RETEBRESZHERR
ZHZARMKRETTE RN E
BAREBANFERZRN,(EHE)
ZARET S ERBENT o mikm
s BRETHEEI T 2HERE
RA% At TRA7.75
BHEEE13E » LIRA7.858

ME1XET o
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 MBEREEREMIAZAFE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d) HShEEmEBs(48)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued) (i) HEE D (E)
2017 2016
“E-tE “E-RE
Appreciation/ ~ Effect on profit Appreciation/  Effect on profi
Netassetsin  (depreciation) after tax and Netassets  (depreciation) affer taxand
foreign in foreign retained in foreign in foreign retained
currency currency profits currency currency profits
HhRER st
fMeAE/  RREE \ fenE/  RRGE
NEEEFE (BE) A MEEERE (Bf) phi
HK$'000 % HK$000 HK8'000 % HK8'000
77 71 71 7T
Renminbi ARH# 17,700 10 1,478 13,397 10 1,119
(10) (1478) (10) (1,119
United States dollars X7 3,052,054 05 11,74 1957611 12 19,89
(0.8) (20872) (01) (1810)
The sensitivity analysis assumes that BREIMBREREFHOE
the change in foreign exchange rates AREHTEZSERHET R
had been applied to re-measure those SAEBEEEINERER 2R
financial instruments which expose TH - ZE—XRXFz2oME
the Group to foreign currency risk at MHEEEET o
the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2016.
(e) Equity price risk (e) BRERE

The Group is exposed to equity price
changes arising from equity investments and
derivative instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (see note 19 and 26) held by
the Group. Gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are dealt with in consolidated
income statement. For private credit funds,
credit-linked note and distressed investment
fund and perpetual capital classified as
available-for-sale financial assets (see note
18), the Group relied on recent price of
the investment, net asset value statement
provided by the fund managers and broker
quote. The performance is monitored
regularly, together with an assessment of its
relevance to the Group’s strategic plans.

AEEEHAEESEIRABER
FHEHAAEZZEMEEZRER
ERTTETAREREBE(RMKE
19KR26)TEE ZREZB R -
BAVPEFABREZESREERE
BAVERBELE BB IRGS
WHRPEE - HREBELSTHE
ETREENREES  FRABE
SHEAMKBEBER(RKE18) A&
Bk 58 R T MY IR B E AR ML B R
E- HRBADNZEHER » WA
?;%%Hﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁtﬂﬁ
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B 35 SRR MY RE

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 MBEREEREMIAZAFE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (#&)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)
(e) Equity price risk (Continued) (e) BRERPRE)
The unlisted fund option is quoted by third FLEMESHERFEF=FEEKE
party fund manager and the fund-linked note ME MESHHONEERAAEHS
is valued by our Group with reference to the ZRLILMESHEEEETMHE
unlisted fund option value. At 31 December R=ZZB—+tF+=-A=+—H " 14
2017, it is estimated that an increase/ ST LEmESHERBEESRE
decrease of 2% in the underlying fund of the i, WA 2%  BRAKREREE
unlisted fund option, 10% (2016: 10%) listed /B 10% - RAESREEE
price of overseas equity share, 3% in credit- FEEM BD10% - EHBEZE
linked note quoted price, 10% in net asset BREEM HOIN MERRE
value of private fund investment and 10% HE&®, WA 10% - mrEHA
quoted price of mutual funds by the Group, AEARERETE KEEZRKRH
with all other variables held constant, would #BaA(RREBER) KGR
have increased/decreased the Group’s profit T
after tax (and retained earnings) and other
comprehensive income after tax (and fair
value reserve) as follows:
2017 2016
ZE-tF ZE-RE
Effect on profit Effect on profit
after tax and after tax and
retained profit retained profit
Change in the relevant equity ~ HEREERTERZ HBRBHRTR HRBRRTR
price risk variable: 2B ! RERRz 22 RERFZFE
% HK$’000 % HK$’000
FET FET
Unlisted fund option FrmESHE
Increase #m 2 3,765 N/A
Decrease D 2 (2,07M) N/A
Fund-linked note HeHNZE
Increase 2m 2 (1,975) N/A
Decrease HD @ 228 N/A
Listed share Ea#%
Increase m 10 321 10 1,870
Decrease HD (10) (321) (10) (1,870)
Preference share liability Brkat
Increase m 10 - N/A
Decrease HD (10) - N/A
Third party interest in consolidated A& EEMESH
fund E=hER
Increase 10 Note## (11,138) N/A
Decrease HY Notes# 11,138 N/A
Note: weighted average of price change impact of 7 HBEEENERESLEZENMETF

HE

the underlying asset

EESREBARAT
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(e) Equity price risk (Continued)

33

BEEREEREMIAZATE

(&)

(e) RERM(E)

2017 2016
—g-tE “E-0E
Effect on other Effect on other
comprehensive comprehensive
income after income after tax
tax and fair and fair value
value reserve reserve
Change in the relevant equity ~ HERERRTERZ HBRREERR ARHBRRR
price risk variable: 288 RERfzze REENz 2
% HK$'000 % HK$:000
TEn FEr
Mutual fund HEREES
Increase 0 10 27,259 N/A
Decrease A (10) (27,259) N/A
Private funds RAESRE
Increase Syl 10 29,580 N/A
Decrease D (10) (29,580) N/A
Credit linked note GRBEZZE
Increase m 3 5,782 N/A
Decrease B &]] (5,782) N/A
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

Financial instrument measured at fair
value

(1)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instrument measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets
or liabilities at the measurement
date.

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER

33

B 35 SRR MY RE

BRREEREHTIAE 2 AFE

(4&)

(f)

AT EIE

HURFlEGTFEZEZMTA

(i)

AFEEE

TREJUEEHEIRIBE
HAGFTEBZAEEEHITAL
FE - DREBEBMBRELE
BISE135% » AF(EFTEMR
EDER=ZRAFERE - A
FEFEZRBISEMLERE
TR ZBABIE 2 TBELER
EEMMoEREENT :

s HB-RKMEE: AFEE
£ A 58 — R A BUE (8D
NSFERMHEEE
FEBEERDT S 2K
EHBRE)GE -

e FE_&ME: XFEME
P = Rk A 5 (ADoK
RREINE-—R2TEE
WARE)  BXWEER
BEARUERERABIE
SE e AABEHAR
BAYETSHEZS
AEE -

s H=RKME: 2FEE
REARFABE @A
HIEETE -
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 BXREREEREMIAEZATE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL (&
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

DNLEHE(F)

URFETEZZMTAE)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) ()

Financial instrument measured at fair
value (Continued)

RFEZE (E)

TREMAQXFERBITUD
FEEFENEHITA

(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i)

The table below analyses financial
instrument carried at fair value, by fair
value hierarchy:

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2016 categorised into

Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2017 categorised into

RZB-tE+=A=+-H WZE-~"E+ZB=1-H
ZATBHEREA LATEHERER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E—1f EZf =4 F-4 E224 E=4
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FiET TEr FEr FEr
Recurring fair value ~ EEHATEHE
measurement
Assets/(liability) &/ (88)
Financial asset SREERLNTE
designated at fair value FtABHEZEE
through profit or loss: &% :
— Listed equity - LmE% 3,209 - - 204,800 -
Held for trading: BIFEE
— Unlisted fund/share - ¥ LHEE/ - 2,721 - - 5,470
option REBERE
Available-for-sale MEHESREE
financial assets
Overseas investment B/MREES
funds
— Mutual fund - RFREESE 326,601 - - - -
investments
— Private credit funds — REEEES - - 293,554 - - 24,430
— Distressed asset - FREEES - - 2,243
funds
Credit linked obligation EAKEZE - - 192,721 - -
note
Perpetual capital WA EGHKE - 76,989 - - 75,423
measured at fair BX
value
Financial liabilities at ~ £BWEENAAE
fair value through HPN-
profit or loss
— Fund-linked note ~~ — ESHHEHE - (78,063) - - -
— Preference share - BERER - - (207,0M) - -
liability
— Third-party interests  — SAAGFEER - - (156,606) - -
in consolidated EEmE=4
funds ER
329,900 1,653 124,841 204,800 80,893 24,430

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial instrument measured at fair
value (Continued)

(1)

(1)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

There were no transfers between Level
1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the
year in which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The Group determines the fair value of
unlisted fund option based on broker’s
quote and the risk management team
carries out independent assessment
using option valuation model technique
such as the Black-Scholes Option-
Pricing model and appropriate
assumptions including the underlying
fund price for the option pricing
reasonableness assessment. With
reference to the quoted fair value of
the unlisted fund option fund-linked
note, the Group further determines
the fair value of the fund-linked note.
The Group determines the fair value of
perpetual capital by making reference
to the brokers’ quote as there is over-
the-counter markets for such financial
instrument. For mutual funds, the Group
determines the fair values based on
the redeemable price quoted by fund
manager.

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER

33

B 35 SRR MY RE

HERBREEREMTIAZATE

(&)

()

DFEFEE)

URFEGEBZEHTA(E

(i)

(ii)

RFEZE(E)

B-MEF K oBIEE
B SBE=RNWEEARE
H oo REE 2 BERERREH
RIERBHER D FERBRL
ZE2ERB -

BoRAFEFEBHFHAZIGE
FEREA 2

REERBELAREBERTE
EHETHENIAEBE A
nEIREE KA EEERE
il Nz — EFEETIHE
EEEASHEGERXSE
NEERR(BEEBESHN
ERER)ETEIFEESE
ML - 2ZFR EHESHE
EcHBREENLFE K
EEE-—SETESHATE
MDY E - WABBUEER
ZHSHEHEREE - B
BERRKBERFES I
5 ARB2EZELHKRERTE
KEBEAHNAFEE - AKEH
SEZARREESEBEARME
WA EEERSRRREES
M AFEE -
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued)

Financial instrument measured at fair

value (Continued)

(iii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in

Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group has determined that the
fair value of private debt securities
investment fund and distressed
fund based on the net asset value
attributable to the Group determined
by the respective fund managers. If
such net asset value attributable to
the Group is not yet readily available,
adjustments to the fair value of the
funds are made based on the latest net
asset value with adjustments based
on subsequent contribution made and
distribution received by the Group.
Regarding to credit link obligation note
investment, the Group has determined
the fair value based on valuation
model and price quote provided by
the arranger of the note with ongoing
monitoring of our investment committee
and risk management team in
conjunction with additional information
compiled by portfolio manager
including performance and covenant
compliance information as provided by
the independent trustee. For the fund-
linked note, the Group determined the
fair value of the note based on the
principal repayment terms, underlying
reference fund price and option pricing
model with appropriate assumptions.

33

BRREEREHTIAE 2 AFE

(4&)

(f)

NV EEE
URFlEGTFEZZHMTA(E)

(iii) F=RLFEGTBIAZIGE

T ERBIA BE

AEERBESKERMN
IANBEBBSZREEERAF
REEESFEEEMBEE
AAEBRSZREESHAF
BHeMAKEESLS 2EEF
BEERAEER AEER
BRE@EEFELREZR
FHHES CHERESH
H 2 Kk & A8 B 1= BB ) 1 i
ESQAFEHFELHBERAE -
AREABERERE &
BN REZESNARERE
BERSEEET  AEEER
HREAESEEARHNE
SHER . BEHBULZEA
RENKBARZOSHREN -
RBAE R R AR EREA
HREWET AFE-

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED

Annual Report 2017



()

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33 HMEEREEREMIAEZATE
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL &)
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) AFEFEE

Financial instrument measured at fair URAFEFEZLHMTEA(E)

value (Continued)

(i) Valuation techniques and inputs used (i) FE=RIFETTEHMHZEE
in Level 3 fair value measurements Tt R A 2% (48)
(Continued)

The reconciliation of financial assets EE=MAFLEFETHELHE
and liabilities under Level 3 fair value EENEENHRNT
measurements is as follows:
Available-for-sales investment AHEESHmEE
At 31 At 31
December December
2017 2016
JiS I
—2-tF ZE2-5F
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
At 1 January K—A—H 24,430 -
Purchase/contribution made BE HE 453,533 24,430
Disposal HE Dk — —
Exchange alignment MESRRITE =5 1,685 —
Impairment loss recognised in FFABEZBESE
profit or loss (1,980)
Net unrealised gain recognised &t A 4R E Wz
in other comprehensive income 2 k& Rz 10,850 -
At 31 December BR+=-—A=+-—H 488,518 24,430
Financial liabilities at fair value through THEEULFEFAEZ
profit and loss
At 31 At 31
December December
2017 2016
JiS I
—E—+tF —E—REF
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—H
HK$’000 HK$’000
FrBT FET

At 1 January W—B—H - =

Share issued/contribution received RE%1T INEIHE 354,960 =

Settled/distribution B DK - —

Exchange alignment IMERRITEER 1,091 —

Fair value change recoginsed in STABRZ ATEERE

profit or loss 7,626 —
At 31 December R+t=-—B=+—H 363,677 —

Notes to the Financial Statements
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued) ()

Information about level 3 investment

Unlisted available-for-sale

BRREEREHTIAE 2 AFE

DFEFE(E
F-RRERGE

investment Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
FEMAHEERE fh{E 5 & EENATEREARE

Credit linked obligation note Price quote Price quote

ERBMERE HwE HwE

Private credit funds and distressed Net asset value
funds

AEEREESRTREEES BEERE

Preference share liability Discounted cashflow

BrREE WRAETRE

Third-party interests in consolidated Net asset value
funds

MAGHEENESNE=THEE EEFE

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of
level 3 unlisted available-for-sale financial
assets including private credit funds and
distressed funds, preference share liability
and third party interest in consolidated
fund are measured based on the net asset
value provided by underlying fund manager.
Regarding to the credit linked obligation
note, management determines the fair value
mainly based on the price quote provided
by the arranger. The sensitivity analysis is
presented in note (e).

Net asset value
EEFE

Expected distribution from
underlying fund investment per
annum and net asset value of
underlying fund investment
EEESBFREFH I RER
REEEFE

Net asset value
EEFE

BE-_Z—tHE+=-A=+—8"
HNHEMBEATHEESREE
WAFENEREAF=ANALE
BEEESRTREEES BEAR
EERMAGHEENESHNSE=
FiERE  HRNEAESETEE
EEBIERBEZTHARMNRE
BEAREME - DT RHE
(e)°
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

(i) Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting
arrangements or similar agreements

BA RS AR MR

33 BXEREREEREMIAEZAYE

(&)
() EHERHEERTHAME

(i) ZRREH BHARHIZETE
g%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ/@(/ﬁﬁ%z%ﬂﬁ

As at 31 December 2017
RZE-t#+-A=1+-H

Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement

of financial position

TERGRUBRRRPEH L ABEE

Gross
amount of Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross offset in the in the
amount of consolidated consolidated
recognised  statement  statement Cash
financial  of financial of financial collateral Net
assets position position received amount
REelE  REeHE
MARPEE RAKRPE5
BRALH ZCHRASH 2oREE EKEZ
Type of financial assets £REEET BELE BELE BE  ReHRR 38
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEn FiEx FEn FiEx FEn
Accounts receivable due  JEIKZEE i
from clearing house R 8,731 (8,731) - - -

EHeMEBERAT
—E—tEEH
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33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(i) Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting

33 BXREREEREMIAEZATE

(&)

(9)

BEHTREERERMAEGE)

(i) ZRREHE > BHYRIZEFE
Vol B T A =

arrangements or similar agreements E (&)
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2016
R=B-R"E+ZA=t-A
Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position
TRAGEHERRRPEE 2 EBEE
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
Gross  offset in the in the
amount of  consolidated consolidated
recognised statement statement Cash
financial  of financial  of financial collateral Net
assets position position received amount
REEHE  RESHE
RARFEE ARRPZS
BRZER <CHILR 2oREE BB
Type of financial assets £ REEER EEAH BEAHE e RefERR 38
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FiEx &7 FET FiEx
Accounts receivable due  EWZEEFZ
from clearing house LR 2,012 (2,012) = = =
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Notes to the Financial Statements

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities subject to

BA RS AR MR

33 FXEREREEREMIAECZAFE

(4&)
() BEHETHEERESBMAGEE

(i) ZRREH BHRHIZEE

offsetting, enforceable master FHGEXELNGREZEME
netting arrangements or similar =
agreements
As at 31 December 2017
R=B-tf+=B=t-H
Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position
YERGRUBRRRTEH 2 EBLH
Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
Gross offset in the in the
amount of consolidated consolidated
recognised statement statement
financial  of financial  of financial Collateral
liabilities position position pledged  Net amount
REEHE  REERE
HRRPESFE RRRA25
BEALH ORISR 2oREf BER
Type of financial liabilities £&& &5 BEL%E BEHAE 38 ZERR ]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000
TET FET FEx FET T
Accounts payable due to ~ FEfSEEFT2
clearing house R 60,051 (8,731) 51,320 3,958 47,362

TS HEEERAT
eyt
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Financial liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master
netting arrangements or similar
agreements (Continued)

33 FXEREREEREMIAECZAFE

(4&)

() BEHETHEERESBMAGEE

(i) ZRREH BRI ZEE
FHGHEXHE U R EHE

& (#&)

As at 31 December 2016
R=Z-~E+=A=t-H

Related amounts not offset in the consolidated statement

of financial position

TERGRUBRRRPEH 2 AEER

Gross
amount of  Net amount
recognised  of financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
Gross  offset in the in the
amount of  consolidated  consolidated
recognised statement statement
financial ~ of financial  of financial Collateral
liabilities position position pledged  Net amount
RERHE  RERUHE
HRETEE RRKPEL5
BEIEH ZCRIER ZERER EEH
Type of financial liabilities ~ £ E BRI BEAE ERAR B8 LB ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn A TEn TEr TEr
Accounts payable dueto  FE&EFT2
clearing house AR 12,215 (2,012) 10,203 = 10,203
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

33 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENT (Continued)

(g) Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

(iii) The tables below reconcile the
“net amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities presented
in the consolidated statement of

33

BRREEREHTIAE 2 AFE

(4&)

() BEHETHEERESBMAGEE

(iii) T #BLEXFBIRGENE
MREFZESEHBEER
BB EF 5 /B R & B Bk
R 2 Bl 2 JE W AR R FEAT

financial position”, as set out above, R ZH R -
to the accounts receivable and
accounts payable presented in the
consolidated statement of financial
position.
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Net amount of financial assets 30 L X3R4 E
after offsetting as stated ZEMEETH
above - -
Financial assets not in scope of I RIKEIHBELE R
offsetting disclosure ZEMEE 100,641 50,513
Impairment losses RIEE R (26,403) (26,902)
74,238 23,611
Net amount of financial liabilities 40 £ SRl AR 42
after offsetting as stated ZERIEEFHE
above 51,320 10,203
Financial liabilities not in scope W3R KW EHE R
of offsetting disclosure Zemas 401,255 360,474
452,575 370,677
34 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34 HAREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

TS HEEERAT
eyt

AEER-E—tEFER_ZE—RE+=
B=+—HYEEMEARRAR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

35 EARBBALRS

In addition to the related party information MBI SRR EMEIBR IR E BB AL
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, BRI REBETUTERBEEA L
the Group entered into the following material R o

related party transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) EEEEBAEME

AEEZETEEEAEMEWMT ¢

Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group is as follows:

2017 2016

—E—£F CB-AF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAET

Short-term benefits 2 HR R F 33,789 48,725
Post-employment benefits BB EEA - =
Equity compensation benefits R 15 22 [Eh 52 A 14,667 —
48,456 48,725

B & @EET AIE TRA (R
6(a)) °

Total remuneration is included in “staff
costs” (see note 6(a)).

196

(b)

During the year, amount of approximately
HK$763,000 transaction and management
fee related to key management personnel’s
securities brokerage and wealth
management transaction is waived by the
Group.

Other transactions with related parties

AEER AEERREIEEE
ABESELERMEEERSA
B 763,000 B RGN EEHE
F

(b) EERABATETZHMRS

2017 2016

—2-tF ZE2-5F

HK$’000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Brokerage fee income (note (i) DB (BEE () 243 349
Advisory fee income (note (ii)) R BUA (B (i) 2,750 29,984
Interest expense (note (iii) RlE B AN (M2 (iii)) 107 —

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

35 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Other transactions with related parties
(Continued)

Note:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group provided brokerage services to (i) a
company where our independent non-executive
director, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP,
is an independent non-executive director; and
(i) a company where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder and an executive director; and
(iii) a company where our chairman, Mr. Yu
Feng (“Mr. Yu”) is a director and substantial
shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group provided brokerage services to (i) a
company where our independent non-executive
director, Dr. Wong Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP,
is an independent non-executive director; and
(i) a company where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder and an executive director; and
(iii) a company where Mr. Ko is a director and
substantial shareholder.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Group provided advisory services to (i) a
company where our executive director, Mr.
Huang Xin (“Mr. Huang”), is the chairman;
(i) a company where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder; (iii) a company where Dr. Wong
Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, is an independent
non-executive director.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group provided advisory services to (i) a
company where our chairman, Mr. Yu Feng
(“Mr. Yu”), is a substantial shareholder and our
independent non-executive director, Dr. Wong
Yau Kar, David, GBS, JP, is an independent
non-executive director of this company; (ii)
two companies where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder and an executive director; (iii)
a company where Mr. Yu is a director; and
(iv) companies where Mr. Ko is a substantial
shareholder.

During the year, the Group incurred interest
expense for cash custodian transactions with
key management personnel.

As of 31 December 2017, amount of US$1.65
million investment commitment is made by key
management personnel to the funds managed
by the Group.

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER

B 35 SRR MY RE

35 BEXEBALRS @)

(b) EHEBMALETZHMRE(F

Bt -

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

RZZE—tE+-A=+—HLEF
B AKEERPG—BARGEKAR
ZEBLFHTEEEREE L
GBS ' JPAZAR 2B FHITE
5); (i —BAR(SLEEAEZAT
REERRRHATES)K ; (i) —
BAR(KATREFEESREE(TEL
Y BEERITERR)EHELCRKR
ﬁ%o

RZE—RFE+ZA=1+—HILHF
B AEEBG{-—BAIEKAT
ZEBIUFYTEEEREE L
GBS JPAZATRZBILFHITE
) ()-BAR((BEEAZAT
CEERRRIATES)R ; (i) —
EAR(BEAERBEERETERR)
REKLR -

RZZE—tF+-A=+—HILHF
B AKE@EG—BABGERF
BITEEEES(ELEDAZD
AEE) () —RB2a(EXEEZ
ARZEBRRE) ; (i) —BEAF (K
RBEZABUFHITESER =T
+ GBS JPHZATZE IR
TEE)

R-ZE—XE+=-A=+—HI®E
B AEER () —BEAR(RATE
FEEREE(TEXE)AZATE
ERREADNBDZBIEHNITES
RELKEMET GBS JPAZAT
ZEBYEHTES); (\WE2QF
(BEEBZERAZETERREH
TESE); (i —BEAT(EEEEZ
DREIER) ; R(ivVEEAG(SEE
BAEZSEQATEERR)EEZHR
i«% °

REZE-—EtHF+-A=+—HILF
B rAEBEOEREEASRMHRE
SR ERBRETHETERS K
EENRAEZE -

R-E—t&+=-A=+—-HB %
ZEBAESHAEEEENESE
165 BETHIRE R ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B SRR M &
36 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 36 AEEEZBBARRERE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
HaE FET FE T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B AT 2R 1,009,119 180,695
Total non-current assets ~ : *rpEERE 00000 1,009,119 180,695
Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value BRAFETABRZ
through profit or loss EMEE - 59,256
Other receivable and prepayment H{thfEURFRIE K&
FEFIE 46,677 6,766
Fixed bank deposits with original  ZIHHAFR % FA =18 B i
maturity more than 3 months RITEHTER 1,505,766 =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRELEHEER 1,329,331 3,961,917
Total currentassets ~~ #BHEEAE 000 2,881,774 4,027,939
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued expenses and other EstE AR HEMmER
payables FRIE 49,753 3
Total current liabilities REBEEAE 49,753 3
Net current assets REBEEFEE 2,832,021 4,027,936
NET ASSETS BEZFE 3,841,140 4,208,631
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 29(a) 4,628,591 4,499,045
Reserves HittfFE 29(a) (787,451) (290,414)
TOTAL EQUITY REaE 3,841,140 4,208,631

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board
on 29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf

RZZB-NF=ZA-thBEESEH
EREETIEIW A TIAREE

by:
Li Ting Huang Xin
= S
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director
BITEERITHAEHE HITEE
198 YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING
COMPANY

At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate holding company
of the Company to be Yunfeng Financial Holdings
Limited which is incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and beneficially owned as to 29.85%
and 70.15% by Mr. Ma Yun and Mr. Yu Feng,
respectively. Yunfeng Financial Holdings Limited
does not produce financial statements available
for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a few
amendments/new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2017
and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

37

38

B 35 SRR MY RE

BEERBRERLDF

EERR/LFLARE-—LtHE+ZA
=S+ -BEESRARERERAT

AERSMERERLIE ?3% Gz
EHESMAY THEELEERER
S ERER29.85% K& 70.15% BRHE o
EHRSHIERAER D T EFE IR
RUBEABALFER o

EBE-F-—tF+=A=1+—H
I FEATE AHERRERNE
TiﬁTE HERENRERELENTRESR

BEELSUBBR2BHEH BES
SR AEEEM T Z|EFT RHMEL

BREETNHLARBE—S— L&
TASt—BLBHEEMRENR

At REAREESBHREK - ATREE
REBEBBEETMHENMT -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
ER=R gl
LR B AN

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BRMBHREZENFEIFI €M TA |

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

(BBYBHREERDE15RERI EBEFITHIWA

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share-based payment: Classification and
measurement of share-based payment transactions

C P ERETEURG

(BRMBHREEL)E25E
RERNZNRS ]

A1 AR D R ER A AT

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment property: Transfers of investment

property

(BRETEADFI0RET N REVHE  REVEEZ

HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

225R[ MR Z R BT RE ]

B (ERMBRERBEEE)E

HKFRS 16, Leases
(BB HEREERDFE 1635 FHE ]

EHSMABERAR
—T—LEER

1 January 2018
20181 A1H

1 January 2018
20181 H81H

1 January 2018

20181 A1H

1 January 2018
20181 A1H

1 January 2018
2018%F1 B 1H

1 January 2019
20191 H1H

199



200

Notes to the Financial Statements
B SRR M &

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified
some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the
expected impacts are discussed below. While the
assessment has been substantially completed
for HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15, the actual impacts
upon the initial adoption of the standards may
differ as the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to
the Group, and further impacts may be identified
before the standards are initially applied in the
Group’s interim financial report for the six months
ended 30 June 2018. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in that financial report.

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, HKAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement
of financial assets, including the measurement
of impairment for financial assets and hedge
accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9
incorporates without substantive changes the
requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification and measurement of financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 on a retrospective
basis. The Group plans to use the exemption
from restating comparative information and will
recognise any transition adjustments against the
opening balance of equity at 1 January 2018.

—2—tF+-A=+—H
IEFERC DB RERNE
Bl MRENREBRELENTRESR

KREBEREFEELEBSE  FHERRR
BUHNKEAHRBENSE . BEZBA1 A
I AREBCEAFERMEL TS
HENPKBREXNEASE - 5EFE
AEENEZHBEHIAT - BEH
IEBYEREERNFIER(E B
B ISR EE R NE15FNTEE KB T
B BEBRERZESERNEREEn
BEEMTE RABZEBACTHKMNT
HRENAEERIBITRNENER - £
ZEERNAEBEHZE2018%F6 30
Hib @R FHMEREDNBEBA
AEETEERINESNTE - XEH
BU T2 ERENVREAZSEA
B NEHESTHENRE @FBE

Ve

(BEBUBHREER)FE IR &M T A

(BB B I|E LR )E KA MR
ERMITENSFTEIE B ELDE
B9F[ERM T H : BAEFE | (FB
MBRELENDEINNEREEN D]
M2 - EWMEENREFERYPS
SOABIEFMNER - Z—FH  (BUH
BRELERDFEIRMA T(EBETER
FFIETMTANBRNKLRS
MEENSTENHEAERLRBEEANR

o

(BB EHREERYE IS N 2018 F 1
B1EREBRANEEIRBEPLENY -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on
the Group’s financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal
classification categories for financial assets:
measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”):

The

The classification for debt instruments
is determined based on the entity’s
business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the asset.
If a debt instrument is classified
as FVTOCI then interest revenue,
impairment and gains/losses on
disposal will be recognised in profit or
loss.

For equity securities, the classification
is FVTPL regardless of the entity’s
business model. The only exception
is if the equity security is not held for
trading and the entity irrevocably elects
to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as
FVTOCI then only dividend income on
that security will be recognised in profit
or loss. Gains, losses and impairments
on that security will be recognised in
other comprehensive income without
recycling.

Group has assessed that its financial

assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the
adoption of HKFRS 9.

EESREBARAT

—T—LEER

B 35 SRR MY RE

f—tE+=H=+—A
B A% B Y R ER S
BRI E L 0 AW

(BERMBHREERFEIR EMTA |

(&)

FERUAEEMNTERRNVET L
T -

(a)

ZTERTE

(BEBMBHREERDFIRATES
MEEE=KRDHE
HIMBERAR - QBEBER N
RRAFEER Q) EBBAEMEZE
B FEE BT

SFEER DR

BR LA RERNERE
EeRMEENBERERARZE
ENSHNRESRIEHE - 5UB
3B H At 2 1 Wik A R R B
BEDE  HERFAE - BE
EHBRR LRI 2 BRZER
W ss R HERT o

1D S REB RS AR
NP EEFIEMETZRE
BHEEREN - E—HPIE
HREEERRZHEZRD
TH  BERTURNKRERKE
HARHEREE  EZER
MIAEEIPBABEBEME
E W m AR R FEE - BB
Ht2E W= U RRDFEE
KR TR z2REER ISR
WHERR - T H K AR KR
EFEIREMZEKE - M
AREEHERBETA - TR
Hit2m W= RS EE T
THEERHERA °

BB - NEBEH E
BRRAREBIERARRAFEE
BENTREESERA(E B
BMEERDFIRE » BERHER
KRR D EMEE -
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B B R AR B R

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

Expected impacts of the new requirements on
the Group’s financial statements are as follows:
(Continued)

(a) Classification and measurement
(Continued)

With respect to the Group’s financial assets
currently classified as “available-for-sale”,
these are investments in funds and debt
instruments which the Group is required
to reclassify the investment at FVTPL. The
Group will recognise any fair value changes
in respect of these investments in profit or
loss as they arise. This will give rise to a
change in accounting policy as currently
the Group recognises the fair value changes
of available-for-sale equity investments in
other comprehensive income until disposal
or impairment, when gains or losses are
recycled to profit or loss in accordance
with the Group’s policies set out in notes
2(m). This change in policy will have no
impact on the Group’s net assets and total
comprehensive income, but will increase
volatility in profit or loss. Upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS 9, fair value gains of
HK$14,318,000 related to the available-for-
sale investments will be transferred from
the fair value reserve to retained profits at 1
January 2018.

The classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities under
HKFRS 9 are largely unchanged from
HKAS 39, except that HKFRS 9 requires
the fair value change of a financial liability
designated at FVTPL that is attributable to
changes of that financial liability’s credit risk
to be recognised in other comprehensive
income (without reclassification to profit or
loss). As the financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL are either collateralised or arising
from consolidated fund products with
substantial asset backing, the related credit
risk of those liabilities with substantial asset
backing is considered not material and,
therefore, management does not expected
to have material financial impact to the
Group.

202

—2—tF+-A=+—H
IEFERC DB RERNE
Bl MRENREBRELENTRESR

(BRMBHREREAEIRISMTA |

(/%5

MERUAEENMBREROEATZE
T : (&

(a) ZERAE(HE)

HREMEEREEATHEE]
MEMEE SLERESNERT
ERRE SELARBBEZNU
RRAFEEEHFIBRE - &H
AREEELERENAABEELEE

RHESSIREREEE  BAT
HHEESHEENRITEHBER
BARBEESHEILAHMESW
T  BEZEBERRERNKERE
BIRBH T 2(m) 5 BB = 5T
REOZEZ EEHNFEEEHSE
B FREENEZHGERBZREY
2, BEFEREMNESE  UFAH
MERWKE - REXRNE BT
HERFEIWEE  HuEHER
BEHEK A FEWE 14,318,0008
TTHEA2018FE1 B 1 BHRFERE
BEBEZREER -

(BBMBHEERIEIRT - Y
THEENIBRTENERA
(BRETEA)EIVRAHMER
T8 EEEABBREZURRLD
FEENERHEENASEERAR
ZRFEESZSY  SRAMEER
ERIA (AT EFIBEEWRS
xA e ARUAREEFEREH
ST AEHEENEMEEESE
NEBEREEXFNGHESE
m EEERARBEREEXEN
ELERERBEEANEARR - B
HERBAEERBRZFEL R
DN
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% R 3k B =

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 38 EHE=ZE—tHFE+=-HA=+—H
NEW STANDARDS AND IFERE DM EREKRERNIE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT 7] FEENREREEN TS
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED &5

31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued) (BRVERELERIFIHEMT A |

(&
(b) Impairment (b) EE

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 TKERMBEREERNIEIRF

replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS
39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model,
it will no longer be necessary for a loss
event to occur before an impairment loss is
recognised. Instead, an entity is required to
recognise and measure either a 12-month
expected credit loss or a lifetime expected
credit loss, depending on the asset and the
facts and circumstances. The Group expects
that the application of the expected credit
loss model will result in earlier recognition
of credit losses. Based on a preliminary
assessment, if the Group were to adopt
the new impairment requirements at 31
December 2017, no material impairment
loss at that date would be recognised
as compared with that recognised under
HKAS 39 given most of financial instrument
carried at amortised cost are either
placed with bank with high credit rating or
counterparties with strong credit background
and settlement history. As a consequence,
no material adjustment is expected to be
made to the opening balances of net assets
and retained profits at 1 January 2018.

Hedge accounting

HKFRS 9 does not fundamentally change
the requirements relating to measuring and
recognising ineffectiveness under HKAS
39. However, greater flexibility has been
introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting. Further,
the Group has currently has no hedge
relationships will qualify as continuing
hedges upon the adoption of HKFRS 9
and therefore it expects there will not be
significantly impacted.

HHWBESFTEREAFERIEHER
Bk IHAERER(EBESEL)D
FIEFRMECBEERKL [ER-
E(EBYHEREERDEIRT »
TUHECEHEHBERTRIER
BXo-fR REBEEEMRR B
BRAMBERE  AEBEERR
MErE 128 B A2 FEHE i k=
EHNHATEHREREXR - AEH
AR RPTEHIEEEEEN SE
HIEREHRRAGEEEFE - ERWIFE
i » ZER KRB UBERIZXR
HERASENESH T EEREH
TEBRENRIRTNEERESLR
MEESNRZEFRITERE UR
AREBETE2017F12 A 31 BERAHBH
FURERTE  RZ BN EFHREE
B EAEB(EBETXR)5E 395
BROBFTHEBEIEEEZE -

(c) #HHEq

(& 78 B35 3 5 22 BI ) 58 9 55 30 SR AR
AR E(EBETHERDEIIRT
HMEHNFERMETNER
TR BHEARETEHNRS
BERETERNEM - AEER
SRR R B HRMEERIFO
RRENSHEEREE  RERS
SFEMEZEEE TN R YRS E
BRI ERA(E BT 2RI 39
SREREEHE ©
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B SRR M &

38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive
framework for recognising revenue from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace the
existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue,
which covers revenue arising from sale of
goods and rendering of services, and HKAS
11, Construction contracts, which specifies
the accounting for revenue from construction
contracts.

Based on the assessment completed to date, the
Group has identified the following areas which
are expected to be affected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 2(u). Currently, revenue
arising from the provision of financial
services is recognised over time, whereas
revenue from the sale of goods is generally
recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised
when the customer obtains control of the
promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identifies 3 situations in which
control of the promised good or service is
regarded as being transferred over time:

(i) When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

(i)  When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example work
in progress) that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced;

(iii) When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(a) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s
activities do not fall into any of these 3
situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good
or service at a single point in time, being
when control has passed. Transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership is only one of
the indicators that will be considered in
determining when the transfer of control
occurs. The Group has assessed that the
new revenue standard is not likely to have
significant impact on how it recognises
revenue from corporate consultancy service
agreement and other financial service
contracts.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2(h), currently the Group
classifies leases into finance leases and operating
leases and accounts for the lease arrangements
differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the
lessor and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly
on the way that lessors account for their rights
and obligations under a lease. However, once
HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients,
lessees will account for all leases in a similar
way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at
the commencement date of the lease the lessee
will recognise and measure a lease liability at
the present value of the minimum future lease
payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
of the right-of-use asset, instead of the current
policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis
over the lease term. As a practical expedient,
the lessee can elect not to apply this accounting
model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease
term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses
would continue to be recognised on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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38 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2017 (Continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s
accounting as a lessee of leases for properties,
plant and equipment which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of
the new accounting model is expected to lead to
an increase in both assets and liabilities and to
impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the statement of profit or loss over the period
of the lease. As disclosed in note 31, at 31
December 2017 the Group entered certain future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, the majority of which is payable
between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date.
Some of these amounts may therefore need to be
recognised as lease liabilities, with corresponding
right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed
analysis to determine the amounts of new
assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16,
after taking into account the applicability of the
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases
entered into or terminated between now and
the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The
standard offers different transition options
and practical expedients, including the
practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are,
or contain, leases. If this practical expedient is
chosen, the Group will apply the new definition
of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial
application. If the practical expedient is not
chosen, the Group will need to reassess all of
its decisions about which existing contracts
are, or contain, leases, using the new definition.
Depending on whether the Group elects to
adopt the standard retrospectively or follow a
modified retrospective method of recognising
a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application,
the Group may or may not need to restate
comparative information for any changes in
accounting resulting from the reassessment.

Currently the Group accounts for certain
procurement contracts as lease arrangement and
classified it as finance leases. The Group has
not yet decided which transition approach to be
taken.

38

EBE-F—tF+=A=+—H
IEFERE AMEERERNE
g(‘%ﬁ%iﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁéiﬂ’ﬂﬂﬁ‘é £7

(BRMBREENF 165K BE (A

(BEBUBRELERNFE16HKIEETELE
AEBEBHEYEBAMRDE  BER
&ﬁﬁmhﬂ*%@%m%)méﬁﬁﬂ
LEeo EHERATESEXNSLEREE
FEBHEREMN  RELEHPARIE
ﬁﬁﬁwﬁ§MMﬁ RIS M E 31 B3R
B R2017F 12831 H » "EBE%
THHELEHNEBTHMYWERHE
EWNRRBZREBEFRES D AR
ME-ZRFR  FI - EHRMAC
IR EERDFE 165K E *Bﬁ
HEHEBENERES
EE8E  AEEKEE]
o UEEERMNEEE
EEAEREEE NS
B OWEEATREES LE S NE
HIFERAN(E BT IEHREERDE 1658
BB LSRR IENEMBEE - LRITIR
B (T .

»

3 %
il
o 5 2

.

ﬁ:“wlIH{iz‘n”)
{an]
&

L

/\

fib
=
BE
=Y
v

ELTH“WM

mmm|
M%%WE
I D T
i
]
D> R D

« o

AR /THE’J BREMATHEER
o BEREARAEZELSHEERESE
BN ARG c MRBEATHER
& ZlK’Elﬂ%F'\%iﬂf%Mﬁhé W:R,‘Zfé
AIVMENER(E BT ®REERNE
165K THENHES - Zzl]% QR E
ﬁE’Wéﬂfi,ﬁ Zli’ilﬂ %ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ

L/?ﬂ??k WEZL%’E—EJJ ’ EETmFHﬂ“E&ZE’JiE_/?ﬂE
ERMER A IE B AN B Y 4 25 B 90 A5 B AE
BiiEm . AEE L E T AL
MEFTE2BEFTEMEMALRER -

BAl > SEERELERBSEEAEER
BFARIEESBDAMEEE - 2Z5H

B ARREFKBIBBES R ©

YUNFENG FINANCIAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Financial Statements

39 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Proceeds from interest income from client is
reclassified from investing activity to operating
activity in the consolidated statement of
cash flows and certain disclosure in relation
to impairment losses in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements are adjusted to
conform to current year presentation.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 January 2018, the Company
has obtained the necessary approval from
shareholders to proceed with the transaction
to acquire 60% of the issued share capital of
MassMutual Asia.

As disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 26 January 2018, 950,000 2016
share award shares were granted to Pool B
grantee at fair value HK$6.09 per share.

On 28 February 2018, the Group has entered
a strategic fund management agreement with
another well-established financial institution.
By sharing the operating and financing decision
making power through the agreement, the Group
is considered no longer being principal of the
related fund and the fund is expected to be
deconsolidated.
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Five Year Financial Summary

hERBHRE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E-t§ B -1 ZE-QmF ZEB-=§
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
RESULTS ES |
Revenue W5 21,064 46,120 193,967 133,370 77,516
(Loss)/Profit before taxation ~ BRB{AT (&), &7 (378,168) (324,869) (77,869) 759,327 (87,360)
Taxation BiE (1,138) 8,327 (79,172) (450) —
(Loss)/Profit for the year KEE(BE) /&7 (379,306) (316,542) (157,041) 758,877 (87,360)
Basic (loss)/earnings SREKR(EE) /B
per share (HK$) (1) (0.16) (0.13) (0.21) 1.73 (0.22)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Property and equipment MERH 17,035 21,418 13,930 5,289 6,247
Goodwill and intangible BEREVEE
assets 36,110 21,512 550 550 550
Interest in associates REE AR 2 & - - - 27,311 33,076
Non-current financial assets ~ FEREMIRAFEFTA
at fair value through profit ~ BREZLREE
or loss - - - 556,427 -
Non-current available for sale 3EREMAIEHES R
financial assets B 565,507 99,853 = = =
Other non-current assets HivERBEE 9,160 10,684 15,260 8,856 805
Net current assets REBEEFE 3,890,752 4,292,041 4,749,774 422,468 120,391
Non-current liabilities FREEE (379,232) (1,385) (18,171) — -
4,139,332 4,444,123 4,761,343 1,020,901 161,069
Share capital L 4,629,094 4,499,548 4,499,548 614,919 498,231
Reserves s (489,762) (56,532) 260,759 400,015 (343,184)
4,139,332 4,443,016 4,760,307 1,014,934 155,047
Non-controlling interests FERER - 1,107 1,036 5,967 6,022
Total equity eyt 4,139,332 4,444,123 4,761,343 1,020,901 161,069
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